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ARRANGER’S DISCLAIMER

DBH Finance PLC (the “Issuer” or “DBH”) has authorized DBH Finance PLC (the “Arranger™) to distribute this
Information Memorandum in connection with the proposed transaction outlined in it (the “Transaction™) and the
Bonds proposed to be issued in the Transaction (each, a “Bond”).

“DBH Finance PLC” means DBH Finance PLC and any group, subsidiary, associate or affiliate of DBH Finance PLC
and their respective directors, representatives or employees and/or any persons connected with them. Nothing in this
Information Memorandum (the “IM™) constitutes an offer of securities for sale of any jurisdiction where such offer or
placement would be in violation of any law, rule or regulation.

The Issuer has prepared this Information Memorandum and the Issuer is solely responsible for its contents. The Issuer
will comply with all laws, rules and regulations and has obtained all regulatory, Governmental and corporate approvals
for the issuance of the Bond. All the information contained in this Information Memorandum has been provided by
the Issuer or is from publicly available information, and such information has not been independently verified by the
Arranger.

No representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is or will be made, and no responsibility or liability is or will be
accepted, by the Arranger or its affiliates for the accuracy, completeness, reliability, correctness or fairness of this
Information Memorandum or any of the information or opinions contained therein, and the Arranger hereby expressly
disclaim, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any responsibility for the contents of this Information Memorandum
and any liability, whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise, relating to or resulting from this Information
Memorandum or any information or errors contained therein or any omissions therefrom.

By accepting this Information Memorandum, you agree that the Arranger will not have any such liability. You
should carefully read and retain this Information Memorandum. However, you are not to construe the contents of this
Information Memorandum as investment, legal, accounting, regulatory or tax advice, and you should consult with
clients’ own advisors as to all legal, accounting, regulatory, tax, financial and related matters concerning an investment
in the Bond.
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Bonds

As set out in this Information memorandum, the Issuer will conduct the issuance in respect of the Bonds (Investors
with an issue amount of up to BDTequivalent of USD 30 million and such amount being approximately up to BDT
3,500,000,000), subject to the Subscription Agreement setting out the terms of subscription of the Investors. The Trust
Deed will create settlement of trust for the appointment of UCB Investment Limited as trustee with respect to the
Bonds.

Please refer to the terms of the Subscription Agreement and Trust Deed for further details.
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3. REPORT TO THE ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

Issuer has obtained information regarding Bangladesh economy from various Government publications and other
sources. In the consideration of belief that its sources are reliable, it should be kept in mind that it has not independently
verified information it has obtained from industry and Government sources and information from its internal surveys
has not been verified by any independent sources. In addition, the information provided about the Trustee for Bonds
(i.e. UCB Investment Limited) is received from the Trustee and the Arranger does not accept any responsibility for
the information contained in the section entitled “The Trustee”. Further, the Arranger does not accept any
responsibility for the information contained in the section entitled “Credit Rating”. The Arrangeralso does not make
any representation concerning the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in the section “The Trustee”
or in the section “Credit Rating”. The distribution of this Information Memorandum and the offering can be made both
inside and outside Bangladesh. The offerings will not be offered to the public at large in Bangladesh, or outside
Bangladesh.

The Arranger may withdraw this offering at any time, and also reserves the right to reject any offer to purchase the
Bonds in whole or in part and to sell to any prospective investor less than the full amount of the Bonds sought by such
investor. The Issuer has obtained approval of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC),
Bangladesh for issue of Bonds and the distribution of this Information Memorandum. Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission has given their consent to issue the Bonds through its letter No.................. dated:

4. RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT'S PERCEPTION ABOUT THE RISKS

Following are certain issues for the investors to consider before taking an investment decision in this offer. In some
of the risk factors and management proposals thereof, reference has been described below in addition to the other
information contained in this Information Memorandum:

a. Interest Rate Risk

The financials consists of assets and liabilities contracted basically on account of relationship or for steady income and
statutory obligations and are generally held till maturity/payment by counterparty. The earnings or changes in the
economic value are the main focus in financials. Interest rate risk is the risk that a company will experience
deterioration in its financial position as interest rates move over time. Interest rate risk in the financials arises froma
company’s core companying activities.

Management Perception: In order to manage interest rate risks, DBH has adopted a clearly defined set of policies
and procedures for limiting and controlling the risk. The company also takes efforts to ensure that these approved
policies and procedures are routinely applied and monitored. These include maintaining an interest rate risk
management review process, appropriate limits on risk taking, adequate systems of risk measurement, a
comprehensive interest rate risk reporting system, and effective internal controls.

b. Exchange Rate Risk

Exchange Rate Risk refers to the potential change in earnings resulting from exchange rate fluctuations, adverse
exchange positioning/ holding and market volatility. If the local currency appreciates against the major foreign
currencies and the company holds a significant net long position in foreign currencies during that time, a company
might incur loss. Similarly, if the local currency depreciates against the major foreign currencies while a company
holds a netshort position in foreign currencies, the company might lose.

Management’s Perception: Since Non-bank Financial Institutions (NBFIs) are not allowed to enter into any FX
transaction, risks associated with exchange rates fluctuations is not applicable for any NBFI including DBH.

¢. Non-Repayment Risk (i.e. Credit risk)

Non-repayment risk is defined as the risk of default on a debt that may arise from a borrower failing to make required
payments. In the first resort, the risk is that of the lender and includes lost principal and interest, disruption to cash
flows, and increased collection costs.
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Management’s Perception: DBH believes that a key component of a disciplined credit culture is adherence to internal
policies and procedures. Hence comprehensive investment policies and guidelines have been established in the
company to ensure quality and transparency of investment decisions at all times. The Board of Directors has approved
the credit Policy for the company where major policy guidelines, growth strategy, limits and risk management strategy
have been described/stated in details. Credit policies & practices are updated as required to cope up with the changing
global and domestic economic scenarios.

d. Prepayment, Call or Refunding Risk

Prepayment, call or refunding risks are the risks associated with the early repayment of the principal amount of a bond.
Such risks exist in a bond that has prepayment or call option.

Management Perception: The bond does not have voluntary prepayment option hence; the risk does not prevail.

e. Security Risk

Security Risk pertains from the adverse changes in the value of collaterals securing the credit exposure of the Company
and it takes the worst turn in case of default situation. In companying arena, components of security risk are more
relatedwith the operational part i.e. failure of system, process, procedure or occurrence of any other incident due to
supervisory lapses on the part of management. Besides, security risk also arises from the failure to protect the
information assets (data security) having direct impact on the business portfolio of the Company.

Management’s Perception: Since this debt issuance is secured by first ranking pari-passu against all receivables
and assets, and the asset quality of the receivables of DBH is superior with minimum non-performing loan, the risk
is minimum. Moreover, the receivables are secured by collaterals originating from real estate property.

f. Liquidity Risk

The Company's businesses are subject to liquidity risks and could affect the Company's ability to meet its financial
obligations.In order for the Company to continue to meet its funding obligations and to maintain or grow its business
generally, it relies on customer deposits as well as ongoing access to the wholesale lending markets and alternative
debt instruments. The ability of the Company to access funding sources on favorable economic terms is dependent on
a variety of factors, including a numberof factors outside of its control, such as general market conditions and
confidence in the companying system.

Management’s Perception: Liquidity management is treated as a priority at DBH and efforts are taken to ensure
that objectives for liquidity management are clear across the company. DBH has adequate internal controls over its
liquidity risk management process that is a part of the overall system of internal control. This process monitors net
funding requirements based on both current cash inflows and outflows and projected future needs. An adequate
information system is maintained that produces regular independent reports and evaluations to review adherence to
establish policies and procedures. DBH also keeps protective reserves in addition to planned reserves that are derived
from regulatory requirements.
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g. Management Risk

Management risk refers to the chance that company managers may put their own interests ahead of the interest of the
company and shareholders. The term signifies the risk of the situation that may occur if the company or any of its
stakeholders other than the management would have been better off without the choices made by management.

Management’s Perception: DBH is one of the leading non-bank financial institutions in Bangladesh with a track
record of consistently exceptional performance achieved through effective leadership and corporate governance. DBH
has a sound management system that is not only efficient but also dynamic in taking relevant decision to make the
organization more effective and results oriented. Therefore, with a strong leadership on the back, management risks
are not a matter of concern or a vital risk factor for DBH.

h. Operational Risk

The business of the company depends on the ability to process a large number of transactions efficiently and
accurately. Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or fromexternal events. Operational risk may also arise from error and fraud due to lack of internal control
and compliance across the company.

Management’s Perception: In order to manage operational risks, management at DBH has established the desired
standards of risk management and clear guidelines for practices that would reduce operational risks. As operational
risks may arise from a wide spectrum of organizational units, management has developed operational risk mitigation
practices which are inbuilt in the business process for each business unit.

i. Business Risk

Business risk is the possibility that a company will have lower than anticipated profits, or that it will experience a loss
rather than a profit. Business risk is influenced by numerous factors, including business environment, economic
situation and government regulations.

Management perception: DBH has a robust risk management system to counter any adverse business risk and to
maneuver in a hostile business environment. Most business risks have been covered in Credit, Liquidity and Market
Risk. To counter and mitigate business risk, the following mitigation measures are in place:

Regular review of impact of global economic meltdown and taking appropriate measures;
Innovative and convenient financial products and services;

Taking prompt actions on customer complaints;

Frequent assessment of clients’ satisfaction;

e Regular review of performance against budgets and targets;

¢ Review and analysis of competitors’ performance;

Prevention of risk by forecasting future market condition gives DBH competitive edge over other competitors in the
local market. In order to mitigate prospective risks of the market, the strategy team regularly assesses the market
information. This assessment updates the management about the current market situation, growth of certain industries,
current global phenomena, price index of raw materials, refinance scheme taken by central company and regulatory
steps taken by various regulatory bodies. This also helps to make future prediction on any industry and the market as
a whole.
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j- Industry Risk

Industry risk is the possibility that a specific industry will not perform up to the level or at par. When problems plague
one industry, they affect the individual organizations of that particular industry. They may also cross over into other
industries. The issuer is operating in a highly competitive market as modern companying industry has brought greater
business diversification. Some companies in the industrialized world are entering into investments, underwriting of
securities and portfolio management. The entry of new competitors may also deteriorate the competitive environment
and result in lower profitability of the company.

Management Perception: DBH keeps constant watch on ever changing economic and business environment which
sometimes leads some industry risk as well as opportunity.

k (i) Market Related Risk

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a company caused by changes or movements in the market variables
such as interest rates, equity prices and commodity prices. Company’s exposure to market risk arises from investments
(interest related instruments and equities) in trading book. The objective of the market risk management is to minimize
the impact of losses on earnings and equity.

Management perception: The Company’s Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) regularly meets to assess
prevailing market risks. ALCO members analyze the changes in interest rates and market conditions, and conduct an
analysis on the asset-liability maturity gap and product repricing, thereby taking effective measures to monitor and
control interest rate risks. DBH clearly defines policies and procedures for limiting and controlling ALM risks by
delineating responsibility and accountability and defining authorized instruments and position-taking opportunities.
ALCO ensures that the company embraces the policies and procedures that enable effective ALM risk management.
These include maintaining:

e Aninterest rate risk & liquidity risk.

e Appropriate limits on risk taking

¢ Adequate systems of risk measurement

e A comprehensive risk reporting system and effective internal controls

k(ii) Technology Risk

Risk that customers may suffer service disruptions, or that customers or the group may incur losses arising from system
defect such as failures, faults, or incompleteness in computer operations, or illegal or unauthorized use of computer
system. As the companying industry is becoming more and more technology dependent, the risks arising from
technology use is increasing day by day. The company might be exposed to risks such as cyber-attack, system collapse,
system hacking, unauthorized electronic fund transfers, etc.

Management perception: Technology Risk is mitigated by the company’s robust IT department, which assesses any
technologically associated risks and implements suitable counter measures.

I. Risk Related to Potential or Existing Government Regulations

The issuer operates its business under the specific guidelines laid by the Bangladesh Bank, the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission and other regulatory bodies. The company is also regulated by the Financial Institution Act
1993, Companies Act 1994, Income Tax Ordinance 1984, Income Tax Rules 1984 and Value Added Tax (VAT) Act
1991.Moreover, Bangladesh Bank sets policy rates including Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) and Statutory
Liquidity Ratio (SLR) of non-bank financial institutions from time to time. Any abrupt changes in the policies and
regulations made by the authorities may adversely affect the business of the company.

Management’s Perception: Internal Control and Compliance of DBH works to achieve effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 of Basel-11
Accord also focused on operational risk and supervisory review respectively attaching considerable importance to
internal control & compliance and on supervision & monitoring. As prescribed in the Bangladesh Company core risk
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guideline on Internal Control & Compliance, Audit Committee of DBH reviews the overall effectiveness of internal
control system.

m. Risk Related to Potential Changes in Global or National Policies

Changes in existing global or national policies can have either positive or negative impact for the Issuer. The
performance of the Issuer will be hindered due to unavoidable circumstances such as political turmoil either in
Bangladesh or foreign countries or both.

Management perception: Since this security would be issued in the local market, potential global changes are
unlikely to have any impact on the security issued. Moreover, DBH has a robust risk management team and has the
capability to adapt to any global scenario that might affect the local market.

n. Risks Highlighted in Credit Rating Report & Mitigating Factor

SI. | Risk Factor Mitigating Report

I = - - . . -
Negative Aspects of Negative aspects of housing finance industry are components of systematic
Industry risk. DBH attempts to minimize the systematic components through

strengthening its credit standards, increasing geographical foot print, and
segment diversification, increasing brand presence and increasing customer
awareness.

Lower spreads are usually allowed for less risky clients and as such, are

2. Spread pressure expected to provide value in the form of lower provision. Moreover,
diversification of funding and lending portfolio may provide scope for reducing
pressure on spread.

The lending portfolio has been experiencing lower growth for last few years
Minimal Growth in due to interest rate cap, impact of Covid-19 on the economy, post covid
3| Lending Portfolio commodity price increased due to Ukraine Russia war. DBH has attempted to

combat this through venturing into sub segments like affordable housing and
extending geographical footprint to reduce dependency on real estate business
generated in Dhaka.

11|Page
Nasimul Baten Md. Abdul Ahad, (lf\]llnf“ll\hii!nr]fcs il =230
Managing Director & CEQ  EVP & Chief Financial Officer 1)13!; Finar L 2 'Jrv Tanzim Alamgir
DBH Finance PLC. DBH Finance PLC. Landma Managing Director & CEO

12-14 Gulshan-2. Dhak: UCB Investment Limited



5. DETAILED DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION OF THE ISSUER

1. a. Name of the issuer DBH Finance PLC

b. Legal status of the issuer | DBH Finance PLC (the "Company" or "DBH Finance") is a scheduled Non-
Bank Financial Institution established under the Financial Institutions Act,
1993, and incorporated as a public company, limited by shares, on 11 May
1996 under the Companies Act, 1994, in Bangladesh, vide RJSC registration
no. C- 30646 (1862) /96. The primary objective of the company is to conduct
all kinds of businesses allowed to Non-Bank Financial Institutions. On
completion of all legal formalities, the company commenced its operations on
11" May 1996. At present, the company has 14 branches spread across the
country.

DBH Finance has been listed on the Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong
Stock Exchange as a publicly traded company from 28 January 2007 and 24
January 2007, respectively.

¢. (i) Registered address and | The registered address of the company is:
telephone number of the | Landmark Building, (9" Floor), 12-14 Gulshan North C/A, Gulshan 2,
issuer Dhaka-1212.

E::I)eN:mee» addrbes: 2;3';‘11 Nahid Ahmed
phone numbe ® | Head of Treasury

conkact person Landmark Building (14th Floor),
12-14 Gulshan North C/A, Gulshan-2,
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

Tel: 09612 334142 (Direct)

Cell: +880 1613195645

Email: nahid@dbhfinance.com
Website: www.dbhfinance.com

Abdullah Al Jahid

Assistant Vice President-Treasury
Landmark Building (14th Floor),
12-14 Gulshan North C/A, Gulshan-2,
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

Tel: 09612 334128 (Direct)

Cell: +880 1620444422

Email: aa.jahid@dbhfinance.com

Website: www.dbhfinance.com

d. Date of incorporation Incorporated as a Public Limited Company on May 11, 1996 under the
(in caseof companies) Companies Act, 1994 in Bangladesh
e. Date of commencement | DBH started its operations from May 11, 1996.
ofbusiness
f. Authorized capital BDT 4,000,000,000

(in case of companies)
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g. Paid-up Capital (in case
of companies)

The paid up capital of Company is BDT 1,949,903,640 as of Dec 31, 2022

h. Total Equity of the issuer

Consolidated total equity BDT 7,994,960.897.00 excluding minority interest
as of Dec 31, 2022

i. Total Liabilities of the
issuer

BDT 53,751,124,876.25 as of Dec 31, 2022

j Total Financial
Obligations

Not Applicable as DBH is a Financial Institution

k. Total Assets

BDT 61,746,085,773.25 as of Dec 31, 2022

l. Total Tangible Assets

BDT 61,746,085,773.25 as of Dec 31, 2022

m. Net worth of the issuer

Consolidated net worth BDT 7,994,960,897 excluding minority interest as
of Dec 31, 2022

n. Others

N/A

a. Issue manager

DBH Finance PLC

b. Legal status of the issue
manager

Same as issuer

¢. Contact Information

Nahid Ahmed

Head of Treasury

Landmark Building (14th Floor),
12-14 Gulshan North C/A, Gulshan-2,
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

Tel: 09612 334142 (Direct)

Cell: +880 1613195645

Email: nahid@dbhfinance.com
Website: www.dbhfinance.com

Abdullah Al Jahid

Assistant Vice President-Treasury
Landmark Building (14th Floor)
12-14 Gulshan North C/A, Gulshan-2,
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

Tel: 09612 334128 (Direct)

Cell: +880 1620444422

Email: aa.jahid@dbhfinance.com

Website: www.dbhfinance.com

d. Name of the issue
managed by the issue
manager:

DBH Affordable Housing Bond

e. Others

N/A

3,

a. Name of the Issue

DBH Affordable Housing Bond

b. Type of debt instrument
to beissued

Non-Convertible Redeemable Fixed Coupon Senior Bond

¢. Purpose of the Issue

To provide affordable housing financing facility to lower and middle income
households and women

d. Number of securities
being

offered and the total issue
amount

See Part 7, Table 1 below

e. Face Value and issue price

See Part 7, Table 1 below

f. Coupon rate/discount rate
and YTM

See Part 7, Table 1 below

g. Tenor/Maturity

See Part 7, Table 1 below
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h. Prepayment, Call,
Refunding, Conversion
features

See Part 7, Table | below

i. Mode of redemption

See Part 7, Table 1 below

ij. Mode of Option

Not Applicable

k. Rate of return

As the Coupon Rate

l. Applicable tax rate

As per applicable law, any available exemptions and transaction documents
with respect to the Bonds

m.Default protection
mechanism

See Part 7, Table 1 below

n. Type of collateral
securities being offered

Not Applicable

o. Status of securities
holders in case of priority
of payment:

Senior

p. Period within which
securities to be issued

To be issued within 180 days from BSEC consent or as per terms approved
by BSEC

q. Nature of tradability

A Subscriber shall have the right to freely transfer, novate or assign all or a
portion of its rights and obligations under the Subscription Agreement.

r. Others

Not Applicable

a. Name of trustee

: UCB Investment Limited
BULUS Center, Plot- CWS (A)-1, Road: 34, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-
1212, Bangladesh

b. Paid-up capital of the
Trustee

BDT 1,000,000,000.00 as of December 31, 2022

¢. Net worth of the Trustee

BDT 1,173.067,142.00 as of December 31, 2022

d. Name of the issue(s)
where performing as
trustee:

DBH Affordable Housing Bond

e. Others

Not Applicable

a. Credit Rating Company

Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL)

b. Credit Rating Status of
the issuer

ECRL: Long Term: AAA, Short Term: ST-1, Outlook: Stable

c. Credit Rating Status of
the issue

ECRL: Long Term: AAA (), Outlook: Stable

d. Date, validity of rating,
and surveillance rating

[ssuer: DBH Finance PLC

Date of Rating: 01 Jul 2023; Valid Till : 30 Jun 2024
[ssue: DBH Affordable Housing Bond

Date of Rating: September 26, 2023

Valid Till: September 25, 2024

e. Latest default rate of the
credit rating company:

1-Year Default Rate 0.00%
3-Year Cumulative Default Rate (CDR) 0.00%

f. Average time to default of
the rated category:

No default in the rated category

g. Rating trigger, if any:

See Part 7, Table 1 below

h. Others

: Not Applicable
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6. Particulars of originators, | :Not Applicable
ifany
7. Particulars of  other | : Not Applicable
contractual parties
8. Date of audited accounts, : For the period ended on Dec 31, 2022
whichis included in the IM

6. DETAILS OF THE UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS

The issuer plans to raise BDT 3,500,000,000.00 through issuance of coupon bearing bonds to provide affordable housing
finance to the middle income and facility and utilize the proceeds as hereunder:

Bonds

The issuer will utilize the BDT equivalent of USD 30,000,000.00 (such amount being approximately up to BDT
3,500,000,000) through issuance of the coupon bonds to provide housing financing facility, including affordable
finance facility to lower and middle income groups, as set out in Section 2.01 of the Subscription Agreement.

7. FEATURES OF THE DEBT SECURITY TO BE ISSUED

Table 1: Features of the Debt Securities

Issuer DBH Finance PLC (DBH)
a. Basic Features of the Instrument

R S st DBH Affordable Housing Bond

Non-Convertible Redeemable Fixed Coupon Senior Bond of DBH

The lssae Finance PLC

Tyestor International Investor

Arrangement Basis Best Efforts / Strictly Non-Underwritten

P To provide the issuer with funding to be used exclusively for financing its
Uposs lending operations in the affordable housing finance space by way of

Affordable Housing Loans

Currency Bangladeshi Taka (BDT)

Face Value of each bond BDT 1,000,000.00

No. of Bonds in Each Lot 1

Number of tranches !

oy Denomination of each lot of bond is indicated at BDT 1,000,000.00 Face
Denomination:

Value
Total no. of Lots Up to 3,500
Mode of Placement: Private Placement
Maturity: Up to 5 years from the Issue/Subscription date

@ USD/BDT exchange rate of lUSD =BDT 116.67.
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Governing Law:

English Law (other than any clauses of the Trust Deed relating to the
creation of trust under the Trust Deed as required under Bangladesh law
which shall be governed accordingly): SIAC arbitration seated in
Singapore

Credit Enhancement:

A first priority Bangladesh law hypothecation over all assets of the Issuer
to be shared pari passu with other secured creditors of the Issuer

Form:

Registered

Listing:

To be listed in Alternative Trading Board (ATB) or as required by BSEC

Documentation / Transaction
Documents

e Trust deed

Subscription Agreement

Information Memorandum

Terms and Conditions

Any other instrument(s) relating to such transaction

Conditions Precedent:

As more particularly detailed in Subscription Agreement, including
without limitation: (i) applicable authorizations being obtained by the
Issuer, (ii) receipt by relevantsubscriber of appropriate legal opinions
from external counsel, (iii)required insurance policies being entered into,
(iv) compliance with environmental and social action plan, and other
environmental and socialrequirements and (v) agreement on parameters
of certain on-going

Financial covenants.

Trustee

Trustee: UCB Investment Limited
Agent: UCB Investment Limited

Legal Counsel Lex Juris
b. Coupon Rate Fixed rate of 8.50% p.a.
c¢. Coupon Frequency Semi-annual

d. Transferability /Liquidity

Freely transferable in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

e. Prepayment, Call,
Refunding, Conversion
features

No voluntary prepayment/call option or conversion.

f. Late Redemption

The Issuer shall pay a late payment penalty of 2% (two per cent) above
the coupon rate on any late redemption amount (including principal,
coupon or fees) and be payable on the amount not paid on the due date
up until the date of actual payment, unless otherwise provided in the
Subscription Agreement.

ig. Credit Rating Trigger

In the event the credit rating of the Bond is downgraded below the rating
trigger under surveillance rating (as defined in the Debt Securities Rules)
(the “Rating Downgrade™) from the rating applicable at the date of
issuance of the same bonds in accordance with the Subscription
Agreement, the coupon rate of the Bonds shall be subject to a risk premium
set out in the below table (in addition to the Coupon Rate) with respect to
any coupon payable following the date of the Rating Downgrade:
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Issue Rating Risk Premium to be Added’
BB 0.25%
0.50%
0.75%
D 1.00%

T As per applicable law and transaction documents with respect to the

Bonds
i. Aggregate Cost related to the Total of Arrangement fee, “Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar, Transfer
issue of the Bonds Agent fee,” (for 5 years), Bond Rating fee & Legal Counsel Fee, Other

fees: BDT 37,783,300 (approx.)
Application Fee to BSEC: BDT 10,000
Consent Fee to BSEC: 0.10% on the total face value

5 years” maturity from the date of subscription; with 8 approximately equal
semi-annual principal payments starting on month 18 from the date of]
subscription of the relevant Bond tranche considering Coupon rate of]
8.50%.

j- Repayment Schedule

6th Month 14515759
__12thMonth .-, 3500000000 @: 148,302,466 |
_ 18th Month . 437500,000 3, .. 586657534

437,800,000 2,625

: 00,000 567,299,656 |
437,500,000 ' 2,18 :

_3ehMonth | 2187,

. 42ndMonth ' 1,750,000,000
asthMonth | 1,312,500,000 | 55934,075
sathMonth | 875,000,000 . 37,289,384 437,500,000
60thMonth 437,500,000 | 18,542,808 - 456,042,808 |
967,384,418 4,467,384,418

UCB Investment Limited in its capacity as Trustee for the Bonds may a
its discretion take proceedings against the Issuer to enforce the obligations
of the Issuer under the Trust Deed with respect to the Bonds, provided tha
the Trustee shall not be under any obligation to do any of the foregoin
unless it shall have beenso requested in writing by the Bondholders (excep
over securities for matters expressly stated as requiring a Resolution in the Trust Deed) o
shall have been so directed by a Resolution (as further set out in the Trus
Deed). Bondholders will hold the securities created in its own name and i
case of default Bondholders may enforce the security by itself against th
Issuer.

k. Enforcement of Charges

8. DESCRIPTION OF COLLATERAL SECURITY AND TYPE OF CHARGES TO BE CREATED
AGAINST ISSUE

The Issuer owes bondholders an indebtedness same to all secured lenders/investors. DBH Affordable Housing Bond
will be backed by a first priority Bangladesh law hypothecation over all assets of the Issuer to be shared pari passu
with other secured creditors of the Issuer.

9. RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER
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Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have meaning as ascribed to such terms in the Subscription Agreement, the
Trust Deed and/or the Terms and Conditions (as the case may be).

Please refer to the terms of the Subscription Agreement, the Trust Deed and Terms and Conditions for the Bonds for
an exhaustive list of the Issuer’s rights and obligations regarding the Bonds.

9.1 Covenants to Repay

The Issuer will on any date when the Bonds become due to be redeemed in accordance with the SubscriptionAgreement
and the Trust Deed conditions unconditionally pay to or to the orderof the Trustee (in its applicable capacity) in BDT
in immediately available funds the principal amount of the Bonds becoming due for redemption on that date and will
until such payment (both before and after judgment) unconditionally so pay to or to the order of the Trustee interest
on the principal amount of the Bonds outstanding as set out in the Subscription Agreement and Trust Deed, as well as
any other amounts due and payable in connection with such redemption. The Trustee will hold the benefit of this
covenant on trust for itself and the Bondholders.

Any payment to be made in respect of the Bonds by the Issuer or the Trustee may be made as provided in the Terms
and Conditions and the Subscription Agreement, and any payment so made will to that extent be a good and complete
discharge to the Issuer or the Trustee, as the case may be.

9.2 Compliance with Transaction Documents

The Issuer shall comply with, perform and observe all those provisions of the Transaction Documents for the Bonds
which are expressed to be binding on it (including make all payments due under the relevant Transaction Documents
as and when they are due and payable). All amounts payable by the Issuer under the Trust Deed or any other
Transaction Document to the Bondholders or, as the case may be, the Trustee shall be made for value on the due date
in BDT by electronic transfer to the Designated Account of that Bondholders communicated in writing to the Issuer
or in case of the Trustee, in an account communicated in writingto the Issuer by the Trustee.

9.3 Compliance with Applicable Law
The Issuer shall comply with, perform and observe all those provisions of the Applicable Laws including, but not
limited to Debt Securities Rules.

9.4 Books of Account
The Issuer shall keep proper books of account and, so far as permitted by Applicable Law, allow the Trustee and
anyone appointed by it, access to its books of account at all reasonable times during normal business hours.

9.5 Notice of Events of Default
The Issuer shall notify the Trustee in writing immediately becoming aware or being notified of the occurrence of any
Potential Event of Default or Event of Default without waiting for the Trustee to take any further action, and provide
to the Trustee a notice setting forth the details of the Event of Default or Potential Event of Default, and the action
which the Issuer proposes to take with respect thereto.

9.6 Information
The Issuer shall, so far as permitted by Applicable Law, give to the Trustee such information as it requires to perform
its functions and/or exercise its rights, powers and discretion as Trustee under the Trust Deed.

9.7 Reporting Requirements
The Issuer shall have its financial statements prepared as per International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
audited as per International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and other applicable legal requirements and send to the
Trustee such financial information, notices and other information as set out in the Terms and Conditions.

9.8 Notices to Bondholders
The Issuer shall, prior to the giving of any notice, send to the Trustee at least ten (10) days (or such shorter period as
may be agreed by the Trustee) prior to the date of publication, a copy of the form of each notice to be givento
Bondholders and, once given, two copies of each such notice, such notice to be in a form approved by the Trustee.

9.9 Notification of non-payment
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The Issuer shall notify the Trustee in the event that it does not, on or before the due date for payment of any sum in
respect of the relevant Bonds, pay unconditionally the full amount in the relevant currency of the moneys payable on
such due date on all such Bonds.

9.10 Further Acts

The Issuer shall so far as have permitted by applicable law, do such further things as may be necessary in the opinion
of the Trustee to give effect to the relevant provisions Trust Deed.

9.11 Notice of Late Payment
The Issuer shall forthwith upon request by the Trustee give or procure to be given notice to the Bondholdersof any
unconditional payment to the Trustee of any sum due in respect of the Bonds made after the duedate for such payment.

9.12 Risk Premium

In case where the credit rating of the Issuer falls below the minimum investment grade i.e. “BBB” in the long term or “ST-3" in the
short term, pay an additional interest (in addition to the then Interest Rate) as risk premium, as set out in the below table:

Issuer Rating Risk Premium
BB 0.25%
B 0.50%
C 0.75%
D 1.00%

9.13 Legal Opinions

The Issuer shall prior to making any modification or amendment or supplement to the part of the Trust Deed relating
to the Bonds, procure the delivery of (a) legal opinion(s) as to any relevant law, addressed tothe Trustee, dated the
date of such modification or amendment or supplement, as the casemay be, and in a form acceptable to the Trustee
from legal advisers acceptable to the Trustee.

9.14 Authorization and Consents

The Issuer shall obtain, comply with and do all that is necessary to maintain in full force and effect any consent,
approval, authorization, exemption, filing, license, order, recording or registration (i) to enable the Issuer to lawfully
enter into, exercise its rights and perform and comply with its obligations under the Bonds, the Trust Deed and the
Transaction Documents, (ii) to ensure that those obligations are legally binding and enforceable and (iii) to make the
Bonds, the Trust Deed and the Transaction Documents admissible in evidence in Bangladesh andEngland.

9.15 Acceleration after Default.

If any Event of Default occurs and is continuing (whether it is voluntary or involuntary, or results from operation of law
or otherwise), the Trustee (acting in accordancewith the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed) may, by notice to the
Issuer, require the Issuer to repay the outstandingamounts under the Bonds or such part thereof as is specified in that
notice. On receipt of anysuch notice, the Issuer shall immediately repay outstanding amounts under the Bonds (or that
part specified in that notice) and pay all interest accrued on it, any other costs in accordance with the Subscription
Agreement, and any other amounts then payable under the Transaction Documents to which it is a party. The Issuer
waives any right it might have to further notice, presentment, demand or protest with respect to that demand for
immediate payment,

10. RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE TRUSTEE

Rights and obligations of UCB Investment Limited in its capacity as Trustee for the Bonds.

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have meaning as ascribed to such terms in the Subscription Agreement, the
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Trust Deed and/or the Terms and Conditions.

Please refer to the terms of the Subscription Agreement, the Trust Deed and the Terms and Conditions for an
exhaustive list of the rights and obligation of the Trustee regarding the Bonds.

10.1. The Trustee shall have all such duties and obligations as set out in the applicable laws including but is not limited
to the Debt Securities Rules and the Trusts Act.

10.2. The Trustee shall manage and administer the Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed and execute,
acknowledge, confirm or endorse any agreements, documents, deeds, instruments and papers in connection therewith
and to implement, give effect to and facilitate the terms and conditions of the Bonds and such other documents, deeds
and agreements in contemplation thereof.

10.3. To the extent permitted by Applicable Laws of Bangladesh, the Trustee shall act on behalf and for the exclusive
interests of the Bondholders and be liable to sue and to be sued on behalf of them.

10.4. The Trustee shall ensure that the Issuer is observing Applicable Laws (including, but not limited to, the
requirements of the Debt Securities Rules) and the terms and conditions of the Transaction Documents. Promptly
upon becoming aware of any breach of Applicable Laws or the Transaction Documents by the Issuer, the Trustee shall
immediately inform the Bondholders and the Issuer of such breach.

10.5. The Trustee shall open and maintain such accounts as it deems necessary for discharging the functions of Trustee
pursuant to the provision of the Trust Deed, the Trusts Act and the Debt Securities Rules.

10.6. The Trustee shall hold and keep the money and assets representing the Trust Property and to deposit and
withdraw such moneys and assets as may be required from time to time.

10.7. The Trustee shall monitor timely payment of all amounts due and payable by the Issuer to the Bondholders
pursuant to the relevant Transaction Documents and submit an annual compliance report to the BSEC on the activities
of the Issuer including repayment of amounts payable to the relevant Bondholders. When Trustee shall submit such
report to the BSEC, it shall provide a copy of such report to the Issuer and each of the Bondholders.

10.8. Upon receipt of a complaint from the Bondholders, the Trustee shall take necessary steps for redress of
grievances of the Bondholders within one month of the date of receipt of the complaints and it shall keep the BSEC
and the Issuer informed about the number, nature and other particulars of the complaints received and the manner in
which such complaints have been redressed.

10.9. On the requisition of the Bondholders in accordance with the provision of the Trust Deed, the Trustee shall call
any meeting of the Bondholders and to facilitate the proceedings of such meeting as it deems appropriate in accordance
with the terms of the Trust Deed.

10.10. Upon instruction by the Bondholders in accordance with the Trust Deed, the Trustee shall sell or otherwise
dispose of the Trust Property and close any company accounts that may have been opened pursuance of the Trust Deed
after distribution of amounts standing to their credit. The Trustee shall, if required, inspect or call for books of
accounts, records, register of the Issuers and the Trust Property to the extent necessary for discharging its relevant
obligations under the Trust Deed.

10.11. The Trustee shall, in case a downgrade of credit rating (i.e. below the rating trigger) of the Issue under
surveillance rating as defined under the Debt Securities Rules, ensure the collection of the Risk Premium from the
Issuer as per declaration in the Trust Deed or Information Memorandum.

10.12. In case the delay is approved by the trustee for a certain period upon any reasonable ground, the trustee shall
ensure repayment of the dues within the approved delay period along with interest for the delay period at a rate of 2%
(two percent) per annum above the interest rate of the Bonds.

10.13. The Trustee shall submit an annual compliance report to the Commission regarding the activities of the Issuer
including repayment of dues to the investors.
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10.14. The Trustee shall take adequate steps for redress of grievances of the investors within one month of the date of
receipt of the complaints and shall keep the Commission informed about the number, nature and other particulars of
the complaints received and the manner in which such complaints have been redressed.

10.15. The Trustee may, if required, inspect or call for books of accounts, records, registers of the Issuer and the trust
property to the extent necessary for discharging its obligation.

10.16. APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT AND REMOVAL OF THE TRUSTEE

The Issuer has the power of appointing new trustees but no person will be so appointed unless previously approved
by a Resolution. A trust corporation will at all times be a Trustee and may be the sole Trustee. Any appointment of a
new Trustee will be notified by the Issuer to the Bondholders as soon as practicable.

Any Trustee may retire or be removed, in each case, at any time in accordance with Rule 16 of the Debt Securities
Rules. A Trustee shall not be responsible for any costs, charges and expenses occasioned by such retirement or
removal.

The Trustee may by prior written notice to the Issuer appoint anyone to act as an additional trustee jointly with the
Trustee: (a) if the Trustee considers the appointment to be in the interests of the Bondholders; (b) to conform with a
legal requirement, restriction or condition in a jurisdiction in which a particular act is to be performed; or (c) to obtain
a judgment or to enforce a judgment or any provision of the Trust Deed in any jurisdiction.

Subject to the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Trustee may confer on any person so appointed such functions as it
thinks fit, provided that such additional trustee shall agree to be bound by the provisions of the Trust Deed. The Trustee
may by written notice to the Issuer and that person remove that person. At the Trustee’s request, the Issuer will
forthwith do all things as may be required to perfect such appointment or removal and it irrevocably appoints the
Trustee as its attorney in its name and on its behalf to do so. The Trustee shall not be responsible for monitoring or
supervising any such additional trustee and shall not be liable for the acts and/or omissions, or any misconduct,
negligence, default, fraud or breach of duty of any additional trustee. The obligations and liabilities of each co-trustee
shall be several and not joint. If there are more than two Trustees, the majority of them will be competent to perform
the Trustee’s functions provided such majority includes a trust corporation.

Any corporation into which the Trustee may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated, or any
corporation resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which the Trustee shall be a party, or any
corporation succeeding to all or substantially all the corporate trust business of the Trustee, shall be the successor of
the Trustee hereunder (provided it is a trust corporation), without the execution or filing of any paper or any further
act on the part of any of the parties hereto. Notice shall be given to the Issuer by the Trustee as soon as practicable if
any such event occurs. No trustee or co-trustee may be appointed or removed, and no Trustee or co-trustee hereunder
may retire without the prior written approval of the BSEC.

11. RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have meaning as ascribed to such terms in Subscription Agreement, theTrust
Deed and/or the Terms and Conditions (as thecase may be).

Please refer to the terms of the Subscription Agreement, the Trust Deed and the Terms and Conditions for an
exhaustive list of the rights and obligation of the eligible investors regardingthe Bonds.

11.1. Binding Obligation
The Bondholders have the rights and obligations under the relevant TransactionDocuments to which they are a party
or otherwise expressed as benefitting them or as being binding on them.

11.2. Severability of Bondholder’s Obligations and Individual Rights
The rights of each Bondholder are separate and independent rights and any debt arising under the Bonds andthe Terms
and Conditions to a Bondholder from the Issuer shall be a separate and independent debt. An amendment or waiver
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to the Terms and Conditions for the Bonds shall require the consent of the Bondholders by way of a Resolution.

11.3. Powers
Each Bondholder has the right to participate in meetings of the Bondholders and vote therein in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Trust Deed.

11.4. Subscription
The Investors will subscribe and pay the aggregate purchase price for the Bonds in accordance with the Subscription
Agreement.

11.5. Compliance
The Bondholder(s) are obligated to comply withall applicable laws and regulations.

11.6. Indemnity

(a) The Issuer shall indemnify Bondholders and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and
representatives (each, an "Indemnitee") against, and hold each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all losses, claims,
damages, liabilities, and expenses (including fees, charges and disbursements of counsel) incurred by or asserted
against any Indemnitee arising out of, in connection with, or related to (i) the execution, delivery or performance of
any Transaction Document or any other agreement or instrument contemplated thereby or the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby, (ii) the Bonds or the use of proceeds thereof, (iii) non-compliance with any law or
regulation, including any environmental law or regulation, or (iv) any actual or prospective claim, litigation,
investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, whether based on contract, tort or any other theory and
regardless of whether any Indemnitee is party thereto; provided that such indemnity will not be available to any
Indemnitee to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses resulted directly from such
Indemnitee’s gross negligence or willful misconduct as determined by a final judgment of a court of competent
jurisdiction. (b)To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the Issuer shall not assert, and hereby agrees to
waive, any claim against any Indemnitee, on any theory of liability, for special, indirect, consequential or punitive
damages arising out of, in connection with, or relating to, the Subscription Agreement or any agreement orinstrument
contemplated hereby, the Bonds or the use of the proceeds thereof.

11.7 Payment
The Bondholders will subscribe for the relevant Bonds in accordance with the Subscription Agreement (as
applicable).

11.8 Termination

The Trust shall be extinguished on the date on which the Trustee is satisfied (acting in accordance with a Resolution
of the Bondholders) that: (a) all indebtedness and other liabilities of any nature of the Issuer due, owing or incurred
under or in connection with the applicable Transaction Documents, whether present, future, actual or contingent,
matured or unmatured, liquidated or unliquidated, has been irrevocably, indefeasibly and unconditionallypaid and
discharged in full; (b) the Issuer has no liability to the Trustee or any Bondholder under any Transaction Document
applicable to such Bondholders (other than any contingent liability in respect of an indemnity provided bythe Issuer
under the Transaction Documents applicable to such Bondholders where there is no outstanding claim for payment in
respect of any such indemnity), (c) and the Subscription Period with respect to the Bonds has ended and the Issuer has
no further right to request a subscription under the terms of the Subscription Agreement.

11.9. Protection of Interest
The Bondholders are entitled to have their interests protected/preserved by the Trustee for the Bonds.
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12. Description of the Issuer

(a) Capital Structure

Table 2: Capital Structure of DBH Finance PLC

as on 31 August 2023

Group Name No. of Shareholders No. of Shares Pen(::/n:;age
Sponsors/ Directors 5 102,072,758 51.32
General Public 9242 22,453,932 11.29
Financial Institutions & Other Companies 205 40,499,407 20.36
Foreign Investors 14 33,864,074 17.03
Total: 9466 198,890,171 100.00
Shareholding Position of each Sponsors / Directors:
Status
Nasie (Sponsor/Promoter/Director/Sponsor No. of Percentage
Director/Nominated Director/Independent Shares (%)
Director/Depositor Director ete.)
BRAC SPONSOR 36,572,729 18.39
DELTA LIFE INSURANCE SPONSOR 35,059,185 17.63
CO. LTD.
GREEN DELTA SPONSOR 30,440,772 15.3
INSURANCE CO.LTD.
FARUQ A. CHOUDHURY SPONSOR 36 0
DR. SALEHUDDIN AHMED SPONSOR 36 0
Mr. Kazi Fazlur Rahman SPONSOR 0 0
Mr. Q. M. Shariful Ala SPONSOR 0 0
Mr, Nasir A Choudhury Chairman & NOMINATED DIRECTOR 0 0
(GDIC)
Dr. AM R Chowdhury Vice Chairman & NOMINATED DIRECTOR 0 0
(BRAC)
Ms. Mehreen Hassan NOMINATED DIRECTOR (DLIC) 0 0
Mr. Khandkar Manwarul Islam NOMINATED DIRECTOR (DLIC) 0 0
Mr. Syed Moinuddin Ahmed NOMINATED DIRECTOR (GDIC) 0 0
Mr. Nazir Rahim Chowdhury NOMINATED DIRECTOR (DLIC) 0 0
Ms. Rasheda K. Choudhury INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 0 0
Major General Syeed Ahmed INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 0 0
BP, (Retd
Mr. Nasimul Baten MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO 0 0
100,071,333 51.32
(b) Business of DBH Finance PLC
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Background:

DBH Finance PLC. Previously known as Delta Brac Housing Finance Corporation Limited (DBH) was incorporated
in Bangladesh on May 11, 1996 as a Private Limited Company. DBH is the pioneer, largest and specialist in Housing
Finance Institution in the private sector of the country. DBH is the major player in the housing finance sector in
Bangladesh since 1997 and remains one of the leading non-company financial institutions. It is an acclaimed brand
for a high level of customer service and respected for ethics, values and corporate governance.

The company has developed an attractive suite of products that cater to all customer segments, with a primary focus
to strengthen the society by expanding home ownership. By leveraging customer profiling from different economic
segments, DBH extends a range of products and services in loans as well as deposits through its specialized team
members.

Business Model:

Products and Activities

DBH is involved in extending long-term housing loan facility to individual borrowers. Its main objective is to increase
the stock of housing in Bangladesh and to promote individual home ownership.

DBH is also authorized to collect term deposit from corporate and individual depositors for short to medium term.

The core business of DBH, however, is housing loan. DBH extends housing loan for the following purposes:

=  Purchasing apartment

= Constructing own house

»  Purchasing approved plots

= Extending/renovating existing dwelling
Portfolio Analysis

The main category of borrowers is employed category where people are employed in government organizations,
NGOs, local large corporate, multinationals etc. Another category includes independent professionals like doctors,
engineers, accountants etc. and businessmen (self-employed). DBH has organized its loan portfolio in such a way so
as to keep the average loan size small and diversify the types of borrowers in the portfolio. At the close of financial
year DBH has extended loan to different categories of borrowers in the following manner:

Employment Category as of Dec 31, 2022 % of total
Employed 72.00%
Self-employed 17.00%
Others 11.00%

Based on monthly household income of the outstanding borrowers of DBH, we can see that approximately 50%
of DBH Loan portfolio comprises of income group of up to 9th decile. The details are as shown as follows:

Decile 6 85,000
Decile 7 99,000

™
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Decile 8
Decile 9

117.000
150,000

Asset Quality

Strong underwriting, loan administration and risk management practices of the company has successfully maintained

an NPL ratio below 1.0% in last five years. As of December 31, 2022 NPL Ratio of DBH was 0.86%.

consistently retaining the asset quality due to the factors like;

Stringent credit appraisal system

Lower Loan to Value Ratio

Strong monitoring and effective recovery procedure
Targeting middle and upper middle income salaried customer

DBH has been

Besides, the company set aside a comfortable amount as provision against the delinquent loans as a safety measure.
Loans that are overdue for more than 180 days are treated as NPLs by the definition of company whereas the central
bank considers the minimum 270 days’ overdue loans as to fulfil the criteria of NPL for housing loans. DBH provides
100% for NPLs and does not take into account any security values.

PL ratio (%)

Operational Highlights

Loan sanction 8,632 8,934 T32d% 10,896 10,493

Loan disbursement 10,273 10,112 7,028 10,803 11,029
Cumulative disbursement 103,274 113,386 120,414 131,217 142,246
Cumulative sanction 105,780 114.714 122,241 133,137 143,630

Profitability

The following information on the company reflects the profitability position of the Company for last five financial

years:

Profit before tax 1,607 1,555 1,498 1,721 1,580
Profit after tax 1.048 1,073 891 1,044 1,017
Earnings per share in BDT 8.60 8.04 5.78 5.89 5.21
Earnings per share (restated) in BDT 591 6.05 5.03 5.35 521
¢. Management of DBH Finance PLC (DBH) e
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NASIMUL BATEN
MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

Mr. Nasimul Baten is the Managing Director & CEO of the Company since January 01, 2021. He is the home grown
Managing Director of the company where he served for 23 years before taking the lead role. He was previously
working as Deputy Managing Director & Head of Business and also worked as Acting Managing Director of DBH
from July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020. He has more than two decades of experience in housing finance and real
estate industry. He worked extensively with Bangladesh Company, World Company, IFC, ADB, FMO and other
reputed local and international organizations for promoting affordable housing practices for the sustainable growth of
real estate sector in Bangladesh and for promoting global best practices in the housing finance sector. He is leading
the Executive Management team for DBH’s next phase of growth as the company solidified its position as country’s
largest home loan provider and presently operating as one of the leading financial institutions. DBH achieved AAA
rating for all consecutive years since 2005 with lowest level of NPLs among all financial institutions, where Nasim
played significant leadership roles in various capacities like Head of Business, Head of Operations, Head of Home
Loans, Head of Branch, etc.

An ex-student of Faujdarhat Cadet College, he completed his BBA and MBA from Institute of Business
Administration (IBA) of University of Dhaka. He joined DBH in early 1998 and since then he managed almost all
functional areas covering business, operations, treasury, sales, risk management, distribution and branch network
during his long association with the company. He attended various local and overseas trainings in England, Ireland,
Singapore, Thailand, India and Bangladesh. He is member of Old Faujian Association (OFA), IBA Alumni
Association (IBAAA) and Cadet College Club Limited (CCCL). He is an avid sports lover and his other interest areas
are current affairs and traveling.

DBH Finance Corporation has a dedicated Management Committee comprising of senior executives and headed by
the CEO & Managing Director. The members have long and diversified experience in different roles in the financial
industry and are entrusted with key functions of the institution. The Management Committee is the highest decision
and policy making authority of the management.

Brief profile of the Management Committee of DBH is provided below.

Name Academic Background Experience
Mr. Nasimul Baten BBA and MBA from IBA, Managing Director & CEO, DBH Finance PLC.
University of Dhaka. (DBH) since January 01, 2021. He is the home

grown Managing Director of the company. He has
about 23 years’ experience and training in the
financial services industry both at home and
abroad.

Deputy Managing Director in DBH since March
01, 2020. He has over 30 years’ experience
which also includes different multinational
organizations.

Deputy Managing Director in DBH since March
01, 2020. He has about 25 years’ experience and
training in the financial services industry both at
home and abroad.

Mr. Tanvir Ahmad MSS from University of

Dhaka.

Mr. A.K.M. Tanvir Kamal | B. Sc. in Civil Engineering
from BUET.
MBA from IBA,

University of Dhaka.

Mr. Hassan I Yussouf B.Sc. from RUET, Deputy Managing Director in DBH since March

Rajshahi. 01, 2020. He has about 25 years’ experience and
MBA from [BA, training in the IT field both at home and abroad.
University of Dhaka.

MBA from A. M. C.
Bangalore, India
B.Sc. from BUET.
MBA from IBA,
University of Dhaka,

Mr. Saiyaf Ejaz Executive Vice President in DBH since July 01,
2019. He has about 22 vears’ experience.
Senior Vice President in DBH since July 01,

2015, He has about 20 years’ experience.

Mr. Md. Zakaria Eusuf
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Name

Academic Background

Experience

Mr. Md. Abdul Ahad,
FCA

BBA, MBA in Accounting
Information System from
University of Dhaka.

A qualified Chartered
Accountant from ICAB.

Executive Vice President in DBH since September
13, 2023. He has about 15 years’ experience.

Mr. Jashim Uddin, FCS

MSS from University of
Dhaka.

Completed the Chartered
Secretary Course from
ICSB.

Senior Vice President in DBH since July 01, 2019.
He has about 25 years’ experience.

Mr Sabed Bin Ahsan

BBA from Independent
University of Bangladesh

Senior Vice President in DBH since July 01, 2022.
He has about 19 years’ experience

Ms. Nahid Ahmed

BBA and MBA in Finance
from University of Dhaka.

Senior Vice President in DBH since January 01,
2022. He has about 18 years’ experience.

Mr. Md. Fakhrul Amin

LLM from Department of
Law from University of
Dhaka

Senior Vice President in DBH since January 01,
2018. He has about 20 years’ experience.

d. Description of encumbered and unencumbered assets with value thereof

Since DBH Finance PLC is a non-bank financial institution (NBFI), all of its fixed and floating assets —including book
debts are encumbered and all secured lenders have charge on its assets. The value of the total assets comprising of
Loans, Advances, and Property and Equipment is BDT 61,746,085,773 as at December 31, 2022.

Encumbered and unencumbered assets position as on 31 Dec 2022 is as below:

List of Encumbered Assets:

Particulars Balance as at 31 December 2022 Status

Cash 575.,264,085.00 | Encumbered
Balance with other Banks 11,018,065,981.00 | Encumbered
Money at Call and Short Notice 2,700,000,000.00 | Encumbered
Investments 2.516,950,591.00 | Encumbered
Loans and Advances 44.,535,972,899.00 | Encumbered
Fixed assets including land, building, furniture and
equipment:

Furniture & fixtures 15.409,264.00 | Encumbered

Office Equipment 6,180,521.00 | Encumbered

Computer and computer equipment 8.036,570.00 | Encumbered

Vehicles 12,652,266.00 | Encumbered

Building 161,507,634.00 | Encumbered

Land 13,658.300.00 | Encumbered

Right of use asset 34,315,192.00 | Encumbered
Intangible asset:

Software N Sqrp 2,722,633.00 | Encumbered
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Other Assets:

145,349.837.25

Encumbered

Total

61,746,085,773

Secured Loans:

Amount as of December 31, 2022

% of Total

Asset
a) Secured Short-term & long-term loans:
Standard Chartered Bank 1,300.000,000
b) Secured Bank Overdraft:
Commercial Bank of Ceylon plc 5,836,346
Woori Bank 163,545,227
Pubali Bank Limited 122,490,438
Total Secured Loan* 1,591,872,011 2.58%

*Note:

The aforesaid secured short term & long term loans (a) are secured by first charge on company's all present and future
movable and immovable assets including book debts ranking pari-passu security charges with other lenders of the
company. Bank overdraft (b) from Commercial Bank of Ceylon plc and Pubali Bank Ltd are secured by pari-passu
security charges and overdraft from Standard Chartered bank and Woori bank is secured by FDR.

However, against the secured loans while all assets are encumbered, the total secured loan as a percent of total

asset is only 2.58%.

Nasimul Baten Md%

Managing Director & CEO  EVP & Chief Financial Officer
DBH Finance PLC. DBH Finance PLC.
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¢. Brief Profile of the Board of Directors

Mr. Nasir A. Choudhury
Chairman

Mr. Nasir A. Choudhury is acting as Advisor of Green Delta Insurance Company Limited (GDIC). He is in the
insurance profession for over the last 50 years and was the Founding Managing Director of GDIC. After obtaining his
Master’s Degree from the University of Dhaka, he started his career in Karachi in the then Pakistan Insurance
Corporation in 1958. Mr. Choudhury received advanced training in insurance and reinsurance from UK and Germany
during 1961 and 1962. He was the Managing Director of GDIC since its inception (01-01-1986) until his retirement
in May 2013. Mr. Choudhury is an executive committee member of the Federation of Afro-Asian Insurers &
Reinsurers (FAIR). He was the Honorable Insurance Advisor of Bangladesh Biman and Bangladesh Shipping
Corporation for decades. He was the Chairman of Bangladesh Insurance Association from 2001 to 2005. Mr.
Choudhury is the Chairman of Green Delta Securities Ltd., Green Delta Capital Ltd. & GD Assist Ltd. He is one of
the Sponsor of Union Capital Limited and Director of United Hospital (Pvt.) Limited and Managing Director of
Nascom (Pvt.) Ltd. Mr. Choudhury is also the Member of Governing Body of Bangladesh Insurance Academy. He
was honored with “Lifetime Achievement Award” by The DHL-Daily Star in April 2010 for his outstanding
contribution towards the development of the insurance industry in Bangladesh. His other notable awards include:
Lifetime Achievement Award by Asia Insurance Review as the first Bangladeshi Insurer, Mother Teresa International
Award for contributions as a Social Worker, Honesty Award by Campus and Golden Award by Jalalabad Association.
He has been a Director of DBH, nominated by Green Delta Insurance Company Limited, since 1996 and Chairman of
DBH since May 2017.

Dr. AM R Chowdhury
Vice Chairman

Dr. Mushtaque Chowdhury is the Vice Chair of BRAC, the world’s largest nongovernmental organization,
Previously, he was its Deputy Executive Director, founding Director of the Research and Evaluation Division and
founding Dean of the James P. Grant School of Public Health. Dr. Chowdhury is also a Professor of Population and
Family Health at the Mailman School of Public Health of Columbia University in New York. During 2009-12, he
worked as the Senior Adviser to the Rockefeller Foundation, based in Bangkok, Thailand. He also served as a
MacArthur Fellow at Harvard University. Dr. Chowdhury holds a PhD from the London School of Hygiene and
Tropical Medicine, an MSc from the London School of Economics and a BA (Hon’s.) from the University of Dhaka.
Dr. Chowdhury had been awarded the prestigious “Medical Award of Excellence” in the year 2017 by US-based
Ronald McDonald House Charities (RMHC) for his outstanding contribution to improving health and ensuring
wellbeing of children. Dr. Chowdhury was a coordinator of the UN Millennium Task Force on Child Health and
Maternal Health, set up by the former Secretary General Kofi Annan. He is a co-recipient of the “Innovator of the
Year 2006° award from the Marriott Business School of Brigham Young University in USA and in 2008 he received
the PESON oration medal from the Perinatal Society of Nepal. Dr. Chowdhury has published over 150 articles in
peer-reviewed international journals including the International Journal on Education, the Lancet, the Social Science
& Medicine, The Scientific American and the New England Journal of Medicine. Dr. Chowdhury is a founder of the
Bangladesh Education Watch and Bangladesh Health Watch, two civil society watch-dogs on education and health
respectively. He is on the board and committees of several organizations and initiatives, including: Board of Trustees
of BRAC University in Bangladesh, and head Group of Scaling up Nutrition (SUN) Movement set up by UN Secretary
General. He has been a Director of DBH, nominated by BRAC, since February 2015 and Vice-Chairman of DBH
since May 2017.

Ms. Mehreen Hassan
Director

Ms. Mehreen Hassan is a Barrister-at-law and Advocate practicing in the High Court Division of the Supreme Court
of Bangladesh. Her areas of practice (both litigation and advisory matters) involve mostly Corporate and Commercial
Jaws. She has experience working with several companys and insurance companies on matters involving Companying,
Insurance laws and Securities laws. She also practices in the areas of International Arbitration, Admiralty matters,
Constitutional and Administrative laws. Ms. Hassan obtained her Bar-at-law degree from City University, UK in the
year 2007 and is a member of the Lincoln’s Inn, UK. She completed a mini-pupillage with Staple Inn Chambers in
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London prior to returning to Bangladesh in 2007. She is a member of the Dhaka Bar Association and the Supreme
Court Bar Association of Bangladesh and also participates in various social and charitable activities through her
association with Zonta International Dhaka. Ms. Hassan has been a Director of DBH, nominated by Delta Life
Insurance Company Limited, since June 2012.

Mr. Khandkar Manwarul Islam
Director

Mr. Khandkar Manwarul Islam is a reputed Business person in Bangladesh with an overall 23 years of experience
in different sectors of the country.

Mr. Islam obtained his MBA degree from Southeast University, Dhaka & BBA from University of Madras, India. He
also did Diploma in Computer Integrated Management from First (1st C) Computers, Madras, India. Mr. Islam did
research study & submitted report on ‘Growth and Development of Small Scale Industries’ by the supervision of
Project Management Department, University of Madras and under the assistance of Bangladesh Small & Cottage
Industries Corporation (BSCIC).

Before starting his career as a professional banker with Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited where he worked for around
18 years, Mr. Islam started his career as Marketing Executive at ITSL (Intelligent Trade Systems Limited, Dhaka). He
also contributed for a while in the largest NGO of the country (BRAC). Currently he is involved with HaMeem Group,
one of the largest Bangladeshi conglomerates in textile & garments sector. Mr. Islam is the Chief Executive Officer
of HaMeem Group Sweater Division & Managing Director as well as Chief Executive Officer of Styllent Knit Limited.
He has been a Director of DBH. nominated by Delta Life Insurance Company Limited, since November 2022,

Mr. Syed Moinuddin Ahmed

Director

Mr. Syed Moinuddin Ahmed is a respected companying and finance professional in Bangladesh with an experience
spanning over two decades. Having an MBA in Finance from the University of Dhaka, Mr. Ahmed started his career
at Southeast Company. Beginning as a management trainee at the company, he subsequently drew rich experience by
virtue of working with several other reputed commercial companys in the country and across various roles, before
joining the renowned Green Delta Insurance Group in 2009.

Mr. Ahmed’s contribution in evolving the GDIC Group into its present exalted status has been a highlight of his long
and illustrious career. At Green Delta Insurance, the flagship of the GDIC Group, Mr. Ahmed has worked in various
departments and has taken up several responsibilities that include managing Board affairs and engaging in business
development, business process optimization, human resource and ensuring project deliverables. The recognition of Mr.
Ahmed’s relentless efforts in building strong foundations of the Group was his elevation to the role of Additional
Managing Director and Company Secretary of Green Delta Insurance Company and Managing Director of GD Assist,
a fast-emerging company in the group.

Today, Mr. Ahmed continues to lead and inspire his team through his experience and foresight. Having travelled
throughout the world for work and having being exposed to several workshops and seminars globally, Mr. Ahmed is
passionate about implementing global best management practices and technological advancements in Bangladesh.
thereby contributing to the country’s advancement in his own small way. He has been a Director of DBH, nominated
by Green Delta Insurance Company Limited, since September 2019.

Nazir Rahim Chowdhury

Director

Mr. Nazir Rahim Chowdhury is a promising entrepreneur with an excellent business background of Export & Import
in readymade garments sector in the country. He has also extended business in the areas of IT and Trading in
partnership with experienced specialist of the country.

Mr. Chowdhury completed his Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from [ndependent University, Bangladesh
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in 2001. After completing his graduation, he started his career in Standard Chartered Bank. After 10 years of service
providing at banking sector, Mr. Chowdhury involved in business. He is the Vice Chairman of M.I.M. Fashion Wear
since 2012.

Mr. Chowdhury is involved with many social activities and associated with Chittagong Club Limited, Bhatiyari Golf
& Country Club, Chittagong Senior’s Club Limited and Chittagong Chamber of Commerce & Industry.

He has been a Director of DBH, nominated by Delta Life Insurance Company Limited, since November 2022.

Ms. Rasheda K. Choudhury

Independent Director

Ms. Rasheda K. Choudhury is the Executive Director of CAMPE, a network of more than a thousand education
NGOs, researchers and educator groups in Bangladesh. It is well known for its evidence based advocacy, pro-people
campaigns and capacity to mobilse thousands of people particularly at the grassroots level. Ms. Rasheda is also
Member-Secretary of Education Watch, the largest academia-civil society joint initiative that regularly reviews the
status of Education in Bangladesh. It has earned wide recognition at home and abroad and inspired Watch initiatives,
at the courtesy of GCE and in cooperation with ASPBAE and ANCEFA, in other countries of Asia-Pacific and Africa
regions. Ms. Rasheda is Co-Founder of the Global Campaign for Education (GCE), a civil society movement working
to end the global education crisis, operating in almost 100 countries. She is currently the elected Vice-President of
GCE. Rasheda is also an elected Member of the CCNGO Coordination Group of UNESCO. She has been nominated
to represent global civil society in the Technical Cooperation Group (TCG) of UNESCO Institute of Statistics (UIS)
that has been assigned by the UN to work on indicators of SDG-4. Ms. Rasheda is currently a member of the
Consultative Group of ERD (CGE), Government of Bangladesh. In 2008, Rasheda became an Adviser (Cabinet
Minister) to the Interim Non-party Caretaker Government of Bangladesh. Serving in that position involved high-level
decision making, particularly in the Ministries of Primary and Mass Education, Cultural Affairs, Women and Children
Affairs. Her involvement in the government’s decision-making process, even for a short period, has gained recognition
for the education campaigners in the country. The pro-learner, pro-quality reforms that she introduced were later
accepted and continued by the elected government. She regularly writes in national newspapers and participates in
debates of national and international significance relating to development issues particularly on the right to education,
gender justice and inclusive development. Ms. Rasheda is also an Independent Director of DBH, since December 2017.

Mr. Major General Syeed Ahmed, BP, AWC, PSE (RETD.)
Independent Director

Major General Syeed Ahmed BP (retd) is a freedom fighter of the Liberation War of 1971. He served thirty-three
years in Command, Administrative and Management positions and acquired experience at various echelons of Ba
ngladesh Army and also in later years, in diplomatic postings, as Ambassador and High Commissioner to Kuwait and
Kenya. During his tenure in the military he served as the Principal Staff Officer at the Armed Forces Division under the
current Prime Minister. Armed Forces Division operates directly under the Prime Minister as the highest coordinating
Headquarters for the three Services (Army, Navy and Air Force) of the Bangladesh Armed Forces. At the Army
Headquarters level as Director Military Operations he oversaw the world wide deployment of Bangladesh Armed Forces
in UN Peace Keeping Operations. During his tenure he commanded Divisions, Brigades and Battalions in the field,
which included serving as the General Officer Commanding (GOC) of the 19th and the 9th Infantry Division
respectively. He attended Army War College (awc) at Carlyle, Pennsylvania, USA, and National Defence University at
Beijing, China. He is a BA (Honours) graduate in General History from University of Dhaka and completed his SSC
and HSC from Faujdarhat Cadet College. He had served as Advisor and CEO of BRACNet Limited, an Internet Service
Provider Company, a joint venture between BRAC of Bangladesh, Defta Partners of USA and KDDI Corporation of
Japan. He has been a Director of DBH, since December 2018.
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f. Description of Assets and Liabilities

Assets (As of 31 Dec 2022)

Cash, Company Balances, Money at Call on Short Notice and Investments

Items Amount in
BDT
Cash and company balances 575,264,085
Balance with other companys and financial institutions 11,018,065,981
Money at Call on Short Notice 2,700,000,000
Investments 2,516,950,591
Loans and advances 44,535,972.899
Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures 254,482,380
Other assets 145,349,837
Total Assets 61,746,085,773
Investments
Items Amount in
BDT
Government 1.658,567,002
Others 858,383,589
Total Investments 2,516,950,591

Fixed Assets

Items Amount in BDT
Furniture & Fixtures 15,409,264.00
Office Equipment 6.180,521.00
Computer and Computer Equipment 8,036,570.00
Vehicles 12,652,266.00
Building 161,507,634.00
Land 13.658.300.00
Right of use asset 34.315.192.00
Software 2,722.633.00
Total 254,482.380.00
Other Assets
Items Amount in BDT
Interest receivable 42,687.539
Dividend receivable 10,494,882
Sundry receivable 72,418,076
Advance to employees 132,668
Advance to suppliers 1,299,000
Security deposits 4,170,000
Prepaid expenses 1,073,118
Stamps and pay orders in hand 3,450,762
Deferred tax assets 9.623.792
Total Other Asset 145,349,837
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Managing Director & CEO
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Liabilities (As of 31 Dec 2022)

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions, agents, Bangladesh Company, and Deposits

Items

Amount in BDT

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions & agents

8,740,150,527

Borrowings from Bangladesh Company

1,239,991,060

Money at call on short notice 1,100,000,000
Deposits and other accounts 40,060,590,590
Other liabilities 2.610,392,699
Total Liabilities 53,751,124,876

Borrowings from other companys & financial institutions and agents

Items

Amount in BDT

Borrowings inside Bangladesh

Borrowings outside Bangladesh

11,080,141,587

Total

11,080,141,587

Borrowings from Bangladesh Company

Items

Amount in BDT

Bangladesh Company refinance

1.239,991,060

Total

1,239,991,060

Deposits and Other Accounts

Items

Amount in BDT

Current accounts & other accounts

Bills payable

Savings deposits

Fixed deposits

40,060,590,590

Other deposits

Total Deposits

40,060,590,590

Other Liabilities

!ashimiUddin FCS

Md~ ;\bdljl Ahad, FCA Colnpagy Secretary
DBH Finance PLC.

DBH Finance PLC. Landmark Bldg.

12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka.

Items Amount in BDT
General provision 447,704,930
Specific provision 493,817,006
Provision for diminutions in the value of investments 142,204,843
Provision for income tax 246,921,782
Interest suspense 77.181,131
Interest payable on deposits & loans 828,957,657
Lease liability 29,936,203
Sundry creditors 114,669,333
Unclaimed instruments 11,876,431
Payable to clients 90,419,091
Loan under litigation 8,022,686
Privileged creditors 102,014,115
Liability for expenses 4,594,209
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Items Amount in BDT
Deferred tax liability 1.642.121
Other Assets Provision 6,346,933
Unclaimed dividend account 4,084,168
Total Other Liabilities 2.610,392,699
¢. Description of previously issued debt or equity securities
Description of Debt Securities:
Figures in Crore Taka
Sl Date of Date of Maturity i Redemption : Default
no | consent | subscription period insile Subscription amount Outstanding if any
amount amount amount
(Face Value)
05 March, 10 June, ; .
01 2008 2008 5 Years 150 30 30 Nil Nil
o 05 June
02 | October, : 4 Years 300 300 44.65 224.83 Nil
2022
2021
Description of Outstanding Debt Securities as on Dec 31, 2022:
i . No Subscription
Client Name Sub;c;tlstmn M;:’t;'ty of }:::.3: Amount Outstanding
Lot/s (Face Value)
Concord Real Estate & Development Ltd. 8-Nov-21 | 8-Nov-25 | 70 560 280,000,000 191,881,262
Mr. Shahriar Kamal 8-Nov-21 | 8-Nov-25 | 1 8 4,000,000 2,741,161
A.K.Khan & Co. Ltd. 25-Nov-21 |25-Nov-25| 114 | 912 456,000,000 311,622,555
UCB Asset Management Ltd. 29-Nov-21 |29-Nov-25| 28 224 112,000,000 76,488,607
Bangla Telecom Ltd. 5-Jan-22 5-Jan-26 | 12 96 48,000,000 38,577.787
Sena Kalyan Insurance Company Ltd. 13-Jan-22 | 13-Jan-26 | 2 16 8,000,000 6,421,192
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. 18-Jan-22 | 18-Jan-26 | 56 | 448 224,000,000 179,645,696
Ms. Yasmine Khan Kabir 7-Mar-22 | 7-Mar-26 | 6 48 24,000,000 19,094,144
American Life Insurance Company Lid. 30-May-22 |30-May-26| 290 | 2,320 | 1,160,000.000 894,567,296
A.K.Khan & Co. Ltd. 30-May-22 |30-May-26( 43 | 344 172,000,000 132,642,737
UCB Investment Ltd. 2-jun-22 | 2-Jun-26 | 115| 920 460,000,000 354,541,148
Concord Real Estate & Development Ltd. 5-Jun-22 | 5-Jun-26 | 12 96 48,000,000 36.973,782
Mr. Shahriar Kamal 5-Jun-22 5-Jun-26 | 1 8 4,000,000 3,081,148
750 | 6,000 3,000,000,000| 2,248,278,516
........ v
m jashin Uddin FCS 5
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Nasimul Baten Md. Abdu ad, Company Tanzim Alamg
e . al Officer DBH Finance PLC. i Director & CEO
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13. AUDITORS REPORT ALONG WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE ISSUER,
DBH FINANCE PLC

a) Balance Sheet

ACNABIN

Chartersd Acconiants

PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Cazh
Trs hand

Baance win Bavglanesh Bank w dn agent Back
Balance with sther banks and finsncisd institutions
Irs Beanglsats

Cutsidhe Dangladesh
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?mmwmmmﬂmmm
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b) Profit & Loss Account

ACNABIN

Chtered A

cUoaRts
DBH FINANCE PLL.
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022
. ““‘; ;’ Ampunt in Taka
! il 2023 m_'___..}
Tt fegme 5 4830, 162057 (¥ AT i
Intgrest g ON OBPOSRE BT BorOUANGS 1 1% 5 }
Met Interest Incoms
Inceme from invastrnt ; E 145, 2.0, #0 125, 110.081
(& ot Z 2 182,509,368 177,520,507
O pperdimg ncone n P 1%«%9 035
Total opesating Income 2,134,5630,055 248,773,300
Sy it A 3 AR o Hio 554 |
R, tawes, insurann, sleChicity et b ] IBLINIT A B2 |
Lagal e professions: exsenses L RN e 15,197,000
Pegzage, stamp, telecormsication eis. b BAM16 BH730EG |
Seabiony, annting, advertmEets efc. 27 19,957 8R4 $1,309.74¢ |
Fpnagiveg DHRctes Siary ad fees b A | 13,000 06 ¥3000,000 |
Gieectors fees and exoenses F. 956,075 169,540
Ausdita's foes ) SIS0 46,250
Bepnecioton, repaits & 3 7,854,191 66,442.590 |
Oy epETmEE &+ 4 §5,780.218
Total operating expenses $10,462.120
Frofit bafore provisions 1,514,167935 1,917,645,
Provsitng: s Al LA : . e
Lo g aivanies il Y (184 2781580 s A
O e vl of | a2 105,645 751 (34,758 65
Totwl provisions
Profit before tax
Prowigien fos 1o w
Larent tax
Dipferred tay edpermaiintome)
Profit after tax
Statgony eserve
lrpral recerie
Retaind surplus
Earnings Per Share k

MNotes:
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¢) Cash Flow Statement

ACNABIN

Churtered Arconatants

DEH FINANCE PLE.
Cash Flow Statamant
Fer the year ended 31 December 2022

s i e

Cash i fro
Triteriat pogsmty
Tetesesd pirpments
Dreidendt teresis
Fees: aind cmirmission oty & cash
s gy s
Tresene e paks
Fabaipts foen siher oy ing: acthvith

Lash gererated froim aperating activiies befer chaoges in aperating asels e lalabiss

Inicrewse{ dacreasa) in operating assets and liabilities
Loang sl advances b0 customas

Irrustrnent 0 trading seourties

Other ansets

Lismes and deposits froen bk sivd Olhey Clidormens

Triterpst sispanse

Ot abilines

Cash ganerated) (utikred) & GDerating assets and Dabiies

et zush Tiows Trom  (used in) operating activities 5
Cash flows from investing

Metp ¥ g ©F Tesasury Bond
Other nvesTrents

Forchase of peapeny, piant & squipment

Prociey fram sell of propedty, plant & equipment

et cash flows from/{used in) mvesting activities
Het Revoipt of Logn & Tero Doupon Bond

Net cash Fows Froms/ (used in) finandng activities
Met increase/idecrease] in cash and cash squivelents

405,890,906 S070, 37,924 |
{2572,285,465) (20524, 2083
3E0a07e 44871594
152859,368 FPRSMLSE? |
1Z03.849,022) (501,975,990
(751,242.259) CEARATE IS
| . lBa5061 | iR3iar
G4 258943 A7 D
{202.202.381) (LDB2 A3, 87)
|3 5,005 {LAARER, 15
A1 [ #2206 445)
(RS127069,53) 151985 AU
{3,368, 714} 12,808 e
| fmaen]  @onen
LL Pl ] CLIMIILEH)
(3,530,337, 150} [7,938,943)
T1.650,325.909) ] 7200, 770
3.500,000 | 2000, 500
{32270 4604 110,127,450
. A JL53
(1,873,41%,727) 9,983,399

4 540 S2L 588 | TR, PR
521 1,213,877

ABF 7U1 918

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cosh equivalents 2,082
Cashi snd cash bemits (meel off wwerdrafl) ot the bogi of the period 14,631,530, 562
Cath and cash cqubvatents (net off overiraft) at the end of e period 74 __ LAO0LASRSSE 15 ILgR8A88
Bt
L. incingisradert Audos's Reporm-Fage L ol
2 The meined notes 1 o 42 form, an viegral part of these fngncast statemants..
3, These finaniial staterments weens apgooved by the Buard of Chegctons on 28 Mach J02T and were signad on on ehall by
”m Masimal Baten
Yice Comemnan Managing Diesctir & SEO
Datwed, Uheka ACHABIN, Chartered Azcountants
10 MAR 013
WW{WN&
Parter
AR Parclinent® 1139
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For detailed Auditors Report along with audited financial statements see Annexure 3

Md. Abdul Ahaq;,
EVP & Chief Financial Officer
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R

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEO
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d) Statement of Changes in Equity

ACNABIN

Chartered Acronntanss
D FINANCE PLC
Staterent of Changes in Equity
Ftwr the year ended 31 December 2023
At i Taks
Particatars Paid-up Capital | Share » ROWert  Hatwinod Tokal
Bekance s on | Jewery M2 4, 70635500 SEAE0,600 LEIEAN4A69 | 352500000 SRS L ¥4 13100
ket ot (e o] for the porind . 1016735758 [P
Teawderrad m eserve huds 100,080 452 ASD500, 058 {50,580 4525
L — 177,363,963 1177 268 560
{Cash dwiciend pact s ] - - (SEeRESH] (zssAsnsa
[Balance 2t 31 2037 | 1949.903,84¢ 5.894,963.641 | 3,575,040,000 | 20113616 | 7.994.960.697
Statement of Clumges in Egaity
For the yaar ended 31 Oecember 2021
I Amount in Taky
PRt Paid-up Capital ks Statutory | General & Other neh:«l Yotal
psionce 85 on 1 Jeary 2021 TEnAEAn | Bowon|  LasmarmAnl | 2Amewmt | SO | SAaEse
Mot profis {after te) foe e pariod 5043, BR8.5T3 1,04):388 573
Teansterd o cesena honds 007 488 1TR L0000 | (7 488478 .
Stk e asd 731,213 8% a8 -
Easih diviensd ot - - - [ERTER TR ENEETY
Balance ot 33 December 3021 | 1772,63%680 | 55,000,000 | 1683314189 | 3,125,04,000 S97,537,221 | 7,244,131,000
Page 12
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14. BRIEF OVERVIEW AND COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Table 3: BRIEF OVERVIEW AND COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS of DBH Finance PLC

DBH Finance PLC
Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2022

Amount in Taka

Md. Abdul Ahad, FCA
EVP & Chief Financial Officer
DBH Finance PLC.

Landmark Bldg.
12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka.

Jashim'Uddin FCS
Company Secretary
DBH Finance PLC,

icul N
Parhionin ™ 31-Dec-22 | 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18
PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Cash 575,264,085 558,066,972 575,240,921 873,001,710 798,514,488
. In hand 3.1 99,203 101,102 132,671 105,037 106,217
Balance with Bangladesh Company
and its agent Company 3.2 575,164,882 557,965,870 575,108,250 872,896,673 798,408,271
Balance with other companies and
Basncial Institations 11,018,065.981 | 14,725,958,032 | 14,338,776,038 | 13.028,725,061 | 11,779,169.860
In Bangladesh 4.1 11,018,065981 | 14.725.958,032 | 14.338,776.038 | 13.028,725,061 11,779,169.860
Outside Bangladesh 0 0 - - -
Money at call on short notice 5 2.700,000.000 0 =] . !,
Investments 6 2,516,950,591 678,218,185 489,024,228 462,108,462 607,821,066
Government 1,658.567,002 8,241,003 1,040,323 1,078.570 1,114,848
Others 858.383.589 669.977.092 487.983.905 461,029,892 606,706,218
Loans and advances 44,535.972.899 | 43.830,505.644 | 42,750,381,474 | 44,521,893390 | 43,847,701,062
Loans and advances 7 44.535.972,899 | 43.830.505.644 | 42,750.381.474 | 44.521,893.390 | 43.847,701.062
Fixed assets including land,
building, furniture and equipment 8 254,482,380 262,581,058 289,880,948 279,704,267 169,515,890
Other assets 9 145,349,837 223,282,992 163,712,258 114,496,609 296,259,328
Total Assets 61.746,085,773 | 60,278,612,883 | 58,607,015,867 | 59,279.929.499 | 57.498,981,694
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilities
Borrowing from other companies g
i Daanctal tnslitations 10 11,080,141,587 | 6,175,673,065 | 5,571,061,010 7.051,344,655 6,085,478,083
Deposits and other accounts 40,060,590,590 | 43,978,360,429 | 43,826,874,936 | 43.411,284.633 | 43,318,721.105
Fixed deposits | 111 40,060,590,590 | 43.978.360,429 | 43826874936 | 43.411.284.633 | 43.318,721.105
Other deposits ) - - = 5
Other liabilities 12 2,610,392,699 2,880,448,299 2,777,623,932 3.008,695,578 3.,054,803,259
Total Liabilities 53,751,124,876 | 53,034.481,793 | 52,175,559.878 | 53,471,324,866 | 52,459.002.447
Shareholders' equity
Paid-up capital | 13.2 1.949.903,640 1,772.639.680 1.541,425,810 1,340,370,270 1,218.,518.430
Share premium 14 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000 55,000,000
Statutory reserve 15 1.894 903,641 1.693.914.189 1,486,425 811 1,340.370.271 1,307,430,064
Other reserves 16 3,575,040,000 | 3,125,040,000 2,825,040,000 2.575,040,000 2.025,040,000
Retained eamings 33 520,113,616 597,537,221 523,564.368 497,824,092 433,990,753
Total equity 7,994.960,897 7,244,131,090 6,431,455,989 5,808,604,633 5,039.979,247
. Al
:;:?tly nkiliilen apd - Starehelters 61,746,085.773 | 60,278.612.883 | 58,607.015867 | 59,279.929499 | 57,498.981,694
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R Nk Amount in Taka
i . 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec20 | 31-Dec-19 | 31-Dec-18
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS - -1 - -
Contingent liabilities 17.1
Acceptances and endorsement - - = = £
Letter of guarantee - - - - -
Irrevocable letter of credits - - - - -
Bills for collection - - - - -
Other contingent liabilities - - 54.040.388 61,612.242 35,969,622
Total contingent liabilities - - 54,040,388 61.612.242 35,969,622
Other commitments 17.2
Documentary credit & short-term trade related ) } ) ’ )
transaction
Forward assets purchased and forward deposit . i » : )
placed
Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting 2 ) i v )
facilities
Undrayvn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other ] - | 578220.000 | 410.580,000 | 506,775,000
commitments
Total other commitments - - | 578220000 | 410,580,000 | 506,775,000
Total Off-Balance Sheet items including
contingent liabilities - - | 632260388 | 472,192,242 | 542,744,622
DBH Finance PLC
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Amount in Taka
Parti

Kthesinny N 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Interest Income 18 4,831.162.037 5,053,574.673 5,908,789.297 6,352,769.970 5.855.189.028
Interest paid on deposits and ; . ¥ L =
borrowings etc. 19 3.045,375.756 -2.889.901.976 | -3.960.184.480 4,644,846.591 -4,062.413,858
Net Interest Income 1,785,786,281 2,163,672,697 | 1,948,604,817 1,707,923,379 1,792,775,170
Income from investment 20 145,220,701 125,111,081 24,150,831 26.835,187 45906426
Commission, exchange and |° 5, 182.889.368 177.520.507 155,864.097 199,772,398 146116642
brokerage
Other operating income 22 20,733.705 16,469,035 19,674,791 6,795.002 11,239,822
Total operating income 2,134,630,055 2.482,773,320 2,148,294,536 1,941,325.966 1.996,038.060
Salary and allowances 23 377,439,782 364,346,554 354,075.491 337,505,438 324 963,562
Rent,  taxes, insurance, &
electricity etc. 24 35,613,730 37.625,863 32,007,229 34,585,575 53,797,572
Legal & professional expenses 25 17,808,124 15,777.000 12,567,554 8,347,617 4,709,869
rouNe, . samp | 96 8428.116 8.673.069 6.882.924 7,632,955 8.117.410
telecommunication etc.
Stationery, printing, 5
Sl amanle Bl &7 19.997 884 11,309,741 7.416,751 15,129.389 14458419
:‘nf;‘i‘i‘i':g Dimkes siay | 49 13,000,000 13,000,000 7,050,000 15,100,000 15,100,000
Directors' fees and expenses 28 956.075 1.069.840 956,897 658,837 690,716
Auditor's fees 29 575.000 546.250 517.500 483.000 460,000
Deprecistion,  repairs & | 3 70,854,191 66.127.992 60,950,452 62,380,239 37,608,567
maintenance
Other expenses iz ) FEIO I | 65,789218 46,651,883 | . 41,001,532 | 41841934 | 35,467,131
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: Amount in Taka
i Mot 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total operating expenses 610,462,120 565,128,192 523.426.330 523,664,984 495,373,246
Profit before provisions 1.524,167,935 1,917,645,128 | 1,624,868,206 1,417,660,982 1,500,664.814
Provisions:
Loans and advances | 12.1.A 164,278,158 226,288.475 151,605,837 -181,159,783 -146,239,.976
Diminution in value of |, | 5 105,946,283 -33.795.686 24,897,811 43,950,370 40,369,345
investments
Other Assets 2.239 804 4.107.129 - E -
Total provisions -56,092,071 196,599,918 126,708,026 -137,209.413 -105,870.631
Profit before tax 1.580,260.006 1,721,045.210 | 1,498,160,180 1,554,870,395 1,606,535,445
Provision for tax: 32
Current tax 563,325,906 691,404,197 604.672.845 477,069,747 557 865,603
Deferred tax expense 208,341 -14,247.960 2,561,925 4,545,655 771,279
563,534,247 677,156,237 607,234,770 481615402 558,636.882
Profit after tax 1,016,725,759 1.043.888.973 890,925,410 1.073,254,993 1.047,898,563
Appropriations
Statutory reserve 200,989,452 207,488,378 146,055,540 32,940,207 82,346,655
General reserve 450,000,000 300,000,000 250,000,000 350.000,000 580000000
650,989,452 507.488.378 396,055,540 382,940,207 662,346,655
Retained surplus 365,736,307 536,400,595 494,869,870 690,314,786 385,551,908
Earnings Per Share
(Restated) 34 521 535 578 6.96 7.82
15. RATIOS FOR THE LAST FIVE ACCOUNTING YEARS
Table 5: Ratios for the last five accounting years
Sl | Particulars Metric 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
1 Current Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2 | Quick Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 | Times Interest Earned Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
4 Break-Even Point* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
5 | Accounts Receivable Turnover Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
6 | Inventory Turnover Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7 Asset Turnover Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
8 | Debt Service Coverage Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
9 | Gross Margin Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
10 | Operating Income Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
11 | Net Income Ratio* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
12 | Debt to Equity Ratio Times 6.72 732 8.11 921 10.41
13 | Debt to Total Asset Ratio % 87% 88% 89% 90% 91%
14 | Net Interest Margin (NIM) % 3.06 3.74 3.40% 3.04% 0.0334
15 | Loan To Fund Ratio % 7531% | 64.08% 76.57% | 79.12% | 80.54%
16 | Cost Income Ratio % 28.60% | 22.76% 2436% | 2697% | 24.82%
17 | Return on Avg. Equity % 13.34% 15.27% 14.56% 19.79% 0.223
18 | Return Avg. Assets % 1.67% 1.76% 1.51% 1.84% 0.0187
19 | Capital Adequacy Ratio % 28.37% 25.94% 24.22% 21.92% 18.90%
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Sl | Particulars Metric 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

20 | Non-performing Loan Ratio % 0.86% 0.63% 0.41% 0.45% 0.30%
22 | Earnings Per Share BDT 5.21 5.89 5.78 8.04 8.6
23 | Earnings Per Share (Restated) BDT 521 5.35 5.78 6.96 7.82
24 | NAYV per Share BDT 41 37.15 41.72 43.34 41.36
25 | NAV per Share (Restated) BDT 41 40.87 41.72 37.68 37.6

16. REPAYMENT SCHEDULE OF THE BOND

17. CREDIT RATING REPORT OF THE ISSUE

Company Rating

- e e

o ouswnding | T | Redew B
6th Month 3,500,000,000 | 149,157,534 - 3,500,000,000 | 149,157,534

12th Month 3,500,000,000 | 148,342,466 @ - | 3,500,000,000 148,342,466 |
18th Month 3,500,000,000 | 149,157,534 . 437,500,000 = 3,062,500,000 | 586,657,534
24th Month 3,062,500,000 | 129,799,658 437,500,000 : 2,625,000,000 567,299,658
______________ 30th Month | 2,625,000,000 | 111,868,151 437,500,000 = 2,187,500,000 | 549,368,151
36th Month 2,187,500,000 | 92,714,041 . 437,500,000 = 1,750,000,000 530,214,041
__4ndMonth 1750000000 |  74,578767 437,500,000  1,312,500,000 512,078,767
~48th Month | 1,312,500,000 | 55,934,075 | 437,500,000 875,000,000 | 493,434,075
54th Month 875,000,000 37,289,384 437,500,000 | 437,500,000 | 474,789,384 |
60th Month 437,500,000 18,542,808 | 437,500,000 | - 456,042,808 |
967,384,418 3,500,000,000 4,467,384,418

DBH Finance has been assessed by a leading credit rating agency named Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL),
Based on financial statements dated December 31, 2022, as well as other quantitative and qualitative information, DBH
Finance’s ratings are as follows:

Table 7: Company Credit Rating

2022 2011 2020
Credit rating agency Long Short term | Long Term | Short term | Long Term | Short term
Term
ECRL AAA ST-1 AAA ST-1 AAA S§T-1

These ratings signify that:
e DBH Finance is one of the most financially-solvent NBFI in Bangladesh
¢  The company has the capability to honor its financial obligations

o  The company’s ability to meet its repayment obligations timely is noteworthy

At DBH Finance, we are indebted to our stakeholders for entrusting us with their business and the confidence reposed
in us throughout our journey.

Bond Rating

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEOQ
DBH Finance PLC.

Table 8: Bond Credit Rating

Jashim Uddin FCS

Md. Abdu 3
EVP & Chief Financial Officer
DBH Finance PLC.

Company Secretary
DBH Finance PLC.
Landmark Bldg.
12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka.
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2023

Credit rating agency

Long Term

Outlook

ECRL

AAA (s

Stable

For detailed Credit Rating Report, see Annexure 2 & 3

18. LATEST DEFAULT MATRIX AND TRANSITION STATISTICS:

ECRL Ratings’ Default Study-2022

Rating Category 1 Year Default Rate 3 Year Cumulative Default Rate

(CDR)

AAA 0.00% 0.00%

AA 0.00% 0.00%

A 0.00% 0.10%

BBB 0.00% i 0.00%

BB 0.10% 0.50%

B 3.00% 3.00%

c 0.00% 0.00%

ECRL Ratings’ Transition Matrix (2021-2022)
Previous Rating After 1 Year
Rating AAA AA A BBB BB B €

AAA 98.80% 1.20% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
AA 1.10% 98.50% 0.40% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
A 0.00% 1.50% 96.50% 1.90% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
BBB 0.00% 0.00% 1.80% 96.70% 1.40% 0.00% 0.00%
BB 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 11.40% 87.60% 0.60% 0.00%
B 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 13.60% 86.40% 0.00%
C 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

RSN VN

Nasimul Baten
Managing Directon &4 fi

DBH Finance Pl

19. DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUSTEE

UCB Investment Ltd (UCBIL) is a fully owned subsidiary of United Commercial Bank Limited — one of the leading
private commercial banks in Bangladesh. It was incorporated in Bangladesh with the Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies & Firms (RISCF), vide registration number: C-94654/11 dated 3rd August 2011 as a private limited
company under the Companies Act (Act XVIII) of 1994. It obtained full-fledged Merchant Banker & Portfolio
Management license (Reg No: MB97/2020) from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) on 5th
October 2020.

The company has been inaugurated on 29th November 2020, and Mr. Tanzim Alamgir is appointed as the founding
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the company. The company aims to play a vital role in bridging
the gap in professional financial management services in the country and the gap between investors and investment
opportunities. The registered address of the company is Bulus Center, Road: 34, Plot: CWS- (A)-1, Gulshan Avenue,
Dhaka-1212.

With its group of versatile financial consultants, UCBIL covers all investment banking services including Corporate
Advisory, Fixed Income Securities, Syndicate Loans, IPO Management, Portfolio Management, and many more. The
entity aims at delivering top-class, customized investment solutions to its clients to cater to their specific needs and
be their long-term growth partner.

With its group of versatile financial consultants, UCBIL covers all investment banking services including Corporate
Advisory, Fixed Income Securities, Syndicate Loans, IPO Management, Portfolio Management, and many more. The

Aﬁ& Jashim Uddin FCS
Md. 3 Company Secretary

EVP & Chief Financlal Officer DBH Finance PLC.

Landmark Bldg.
DBH Finance PLC. 12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka.
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be their long-term growth partner.

Board of Directors Status in Board

Mr. Nabil Mustafizur Rahman Chairman

Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman Independent Director

Mr. Md. Shah Alam Bhuiyan Director, representative of UCB

Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon Director, representative of UCB

Mr. Alamgir Kabir Director, representative of UCB

Mr. Tanzim Alamgir Managing Director & CEO

Shareholders % of Share Holdings No. of Shares

United Commercial Bank Limited 99.999999% 99,999,999

Mohammed Habibur Rahman 0.000001% 1

Key Milestones Major Products

1998 - Obtained merchant companying license =  Margin Loan

1999 - Commenced merchant companying through participation = Discretional Portfolio

in underwriting2003 - Managed first IPO as Issue Manager Management

2004 - Commencement of Margin Loan

Operations 2010 - Managed st ever IPO in Major Services

Book Building Method *  Corporate Advisory

2011 - Merchant Companying Division turned into separate company as UCB *  Issue Management
Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of IDLC *  Underwriting

2016 - Launched ‘EASY INVEST’- A Monthly Investment Scheme . Actin_g.as Trustee of debt

2020 - Managed the IPO of Robi Axiata Limited, the biggest ever IPO in the foTaniion

history ofBangladesh

Status of debt securities issued under trusteeship of UCB Investment Limited:

Repayment | Outstanding
Maturity Value of amount amount
Sk I afiths hage period/Tenure ::::lt“g::‘) /Principal (as of Sep Delanit
Redemption | 2023)

[ R N 07years | 3,000 . 3,000 il

2 | Bank Asia Perpetual Bond Perpetual 5,000 - 5,000 Nil

3 g;;ff“"'e Hank Pespetus] Perpetual 5,000 - 5,000 Nil

4 | Mir Akhter Zero Coupon Bond 04 Years 2,499 - 2,499 Nil

B | g Textiles Zerg Coupon 05 Years 2,000 : 2,000 Nil

6 | 3rd Subordinated Bond 07 years 5,000 - 5,000 Nil

7 | MTB 5th Subordinated Bond 07 years 5,000 - 5,000 Nil

8 | ICB Ist Mudaraba Sukuk 10 years 10,000 - 10,000 Nil

9 i’{;me Bank Subordinated Bond 07 years 3,000 ) 3.000 Nil

| TRmLnSOT | v 600 : 600 Nil

1l ;‘_‘{’;:::t;) o Limikd 20 Years 1,592 . 1,592 Nil
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portion of the Issue Amount have been fully redeemed and repaid in accordance with the Depository Agreement.

(b) The Trustee shall, in relation to each of the Bonds, obtain a list of the relevant Bondholders as of the relevant
Record Date from the Depository (for the purposes of notices issuance and/or interest transactions)within one (1)
Dhaka Business Day of the Record Date.

(c) The Issuer shall duplicate the Depository record in a duplicate register to be kept at the Issuer’s registered office
(the “Duplicate Register”) where such Duplicate Register shall include the names and addresses of the holders of the
Issue Amount of the Bonds and the particulars of such Issue Amount of the Bonds held by them and of all transfers
of the Issue Amount of the Bonds. The relevant Bondholders and the Trustee shall be entitled to inspect the Duplicate
Register and take copies therefrom upon payment of fees as may be prescribed by the Issuer from time to time.

Principal amount of the Bonds Issued
In aggregate, there shall be units of Bonds issued with a nominal amount of BDT 1,000,000.00 each, totaling, in
aggregate up to the BDT 3,500,000,000.00.

Refund
The Issue Amount of the Bonds shall not be refund/redeemed or otherwise prepaid by thelssuer before the Maturity
Date, except that early redemption is required for a change of control event set out in the Subscription Agreement.

Transfer

A Subscriber shall have the right to freely transfer or assign all or a portion of its rights and obligations underthe
Subscription Agreement.

Trading or listing with stock exchange
The Bonds are not listed with the stock exchange only listed in Alternative Trading Board (ATB),

Repayment and coupon payment

The Issuer shall repay the outstanding principal for each of the Bonds (being the portion of the Issue Amount) in eight
equal semi-annual principal payments commencing on the date failing eighteen months after the Issue Date and ending
on the Maturity Date by transferring BDT to the Designated Account of the Bondholders for the Bonds. The semi-
annual coupon payments will be transferred to the Designated Account of the Bondholders for the Bonds on the
corresponding date.

Conversion
Conversion feature is not applicable for either of the Bonds .

22. TERMINATION AND FINAL SETTLEMENT OF THE PROPOSED BOND

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have meaning as ascribed to such terms in the Subscription Agreement, the
Trust Deed and/or the Terms and Conditions (as thecase may be).

Termination

The Trust with respect to the Bonds shall be extinguished on the date on which the Trustee is satisfied (acting in
accordance with a Resolution of the Bondholders) that: (a) all indebtednessand other liabilities of any nature of the
Issuer due, owing or incurred under or in connection with the Transaction Documents for the Bonds, whether present,
future, actual or contingent, matured or unmatured,liquidated or unliquidated, has been irrevocably, indefeasibly and
unconditionally paid and discharged in full; (b) thelssuer has no liability to the Trustee or any Bondholder under any
relevant Transaction Document for the Bonds (other than any contingent liability in respect of an indemnity provided
by the Issuer under such Transaction Documents where there is no outstanding claim for payment in respect of any
such indemnity), and (c) the Subscription Period has ended and the Issuer has no further right to request a subscription
under the terms of the Subscription Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Trust Deed or the other Transaction Documents, the Issuer may revoke
the Trust with the express consent of all the Bondholders of the Trust.

Events of Default
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21. MODUS OPERANDI OF THE ISSUE

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have meaning as ascribed to such terms in the Subscription Agreement, the
Trust Deed and/or the Terms and Conditions (as thecase may be).

Application Procedure

Investors shall enter into the Subscription Agreement with the Issuer and shall be bound by the terms and conditions
contained in the Subscription Agreement containing in details its rights and obligations.

Upon receiving the Consent Letter in accordance with the Trust Deed, the Information Memorandum shall be
published by the Issuer on its official website, within the timeframes specified in the Consent Letter; provided further
that a notice regarding the publication of Information Memorandum in the website mentioning web-addressesshall be
circulated in at least one Bangla and one English language national daily newspaper. The approved Information
Memorandum shall be made available in the website of the Issuer until the final date for subscription under the terms
of the Subscription Agreement.

Following publication of Information Memorandum and subject to fulfilment of the conditions precedent set out in
the Subscription Agreement, the Issuer may request investors to subscribe to the Bonds in accordance with the terms
of the relevant Subscription Agreement. The Subscription Agreement will allow forthe subscription of one bond
tranche for the Bonds with an aggregate principal amount not exceeding the BDT equivalent of $35,000,000 (such
amount being as determined at the date of issuance of the same in accordance with the Subscription Agreement.

Confirmation of subscription in respect of each bond tranche along with company statement(s) shall be submitted to
BSEC within 10 days of the date of issuance by investor of a ‘Subscription Confirmation” for the Bonds in accordance
with terms of the Subscription Agreement or equivalent confirmation of subscription accordance with terms ofthe
Subscription Agreement.

The proceeds raised through the Bonds issue shall be placed in a designated company account maintained with the
company (in an office GL account as the issuer is a Company) as set out in the Request for Bond Subscription provided
under the Subscription Agreement. The utilization of the proceeds of the Bonds shall also be made from the said
account.

For the purposes of the Debt Securities Rules, the Issuer shall submit a report on the utilization of proceeds as well as
implementation status shall be submitted to the Commission (as defined in the Debt Securities Rules), on a half-yearly
basis within 10 days of the Issuer’s financial half year, until full utilization of the Bonds proceeds.

Register & Allotment
(a) Each Bond will be numbered serially with an identifying number which will be recorded in the Bondholders’

Register, a copy of which will be maintained by the Issuer. The Issuer shall prepare and maintain the Bondholders’
Register for each of the Bonds until all of the Bonds constituting the applicable

* @ USD/BDT exchange rate of IUSD =BDT 116.67.

46 |Page
Jashim Uddin FCS “
Nasimul Baten Md. Abdul Ahad, Company Secretary T-m"ri_r?:\i-".mqif
Managing Director & CEO EVP & Chilef Financial Officer DBH Finance PLC. = :

Landmark Bldg. Managing Director & CEO

DBH Finance PLC. S e LGS 12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka. UCB Investment Limited



uce §pvesmuen

Due Diligence Certificate of the Trustee
UCB Investment Limited

To
The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Sub: Issuance of DBH Affordable Housing Bond of up to BDT 3,500,000,000.00 issued by DBH Finance PLC.
We, the under-noted trustee to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state as follows:

1. We, while act as trustee to the above-mentioned issue on behalf of the investors, have examined the draft
Information Memorandum, legal and other documents, and materials as relevant to our decision; and

2. On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the issuer, its directors and officers, and other
agencies; independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the issue and the contents of the
documents and other materials furnished by the issuer.

WE CONFIRM THAT:

(a) all information and documents as are relevant to the issue have been received and examined by us and the
draft IM, draft deed of trust and draft subscription agreement forwarded to the Commission has been approved
by us;

(b) we have also examined all documents of the assets to be charged with the trust and are satisfied that the
assets bear the value, title and charge status as disclosed in the IM; N/A

(c) while examining the above documents, we find that all the requirements of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 have been complied with;

(d) we shall act as trustee to the issue as mentioned above as per provisions of the deed of trust to be executed

with the issuer or the originator, as applicable and shall assume the duties and responsibilities as described in
the deed of trust and in the IM;

(e) we shall also abide by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 and
conditions imposed by the Commission as regards of the issue; and

(f) the above declarations are unequivocal and irrevocable.

For Trustee

.__.l_\‘ —
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEQO
UCB Investment Limited

Date: December 26, 2023
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh

Bulus Center (17th Floor), Plot—-CWS—{A)-1. Road No—34, Guishan Avenue, Dhake—1212.
E-meail info@ucbhil.combd, Web: www.ucb-investment.com



As further set out in the Subscription Agreement, including:

Failure to Pay Principal or Interest. The Issuer fails to pay when due any principal of or interest on the Bondsand such
failure continues for five (5) days:

Failure to Comply with Obligations. The Issuer fails to comply with any of its obligations under the Terms and
Conditions or any other Transaction Document (other than payment of principal or interest on the Bonds or other loan
from the relevant Bondholders to the Issuer) relating to such Bonds and such failure continues for a period of thirty
(30) days after the date on which the Bondholder(s) (or the Trustee) notifies the Issuer of such failure; and

Bankruptcy Proceedings. If: (i) the Issuer (A) is liquidated or declared bankrupt; or (B) is unable or admits inability
to pay its debts as they fall due or otherwise becomes insolvent: (ii) the value of the Issuer’s assets is less than its
liabilities) (taking into account contingent and prospective liabilities; or (c) a moratorium is declared in respect of any
indebtedness of the Issuer, the Bonds, all interest accrued on it and any other amounts payable under the relevant
Subscription Agreement will become immediately due and payable without any presentment, demand, protestor notice
of any kind, all of which the Issuer waives;

Indemnification

The Issuer unconditionally and irrevocably covenants and undertakes, on demand by the Trustee, to indemnify and
hold harmless the Trustee, its directors, officers,employees and agents (each an “indemnified party”) in full at all times,
on an after tax basis, against all losses, liabilities, actions, proceedings, claims, demands, penalties, damages, costs,
fees, expenses disbursements, and other liabilities whatsoever (including any and all tax liabilities) (“Losses™),
including without limitation the costs and expenses of legal advisors and other experts, which may be suffered or
brought against or may be properly incurred by such indemnified party as a result of or in connection with (a) its
appointment or involvement hereunder or under the Bonds or the exercise or non-exercise of any of their powers or
duties hereunder or under the Bonds or the taking of any acts in accordance with the terms of the relevant parts of the
Trust Deed, the Bonds or its usual practice as a trustee or as a director, officer, employee or agent of the Trustee; or (b)
any instruction or other direction upon which the Trustee may rely under the relevant parts of the Trust Deed and/or
the Bonds as well as the costs and expenses properly incurred by an indemnified party of defending itself against or
investigating any claim or liability with respect of the foregoing; provided that this indemnity shall not apply in respect
ofan indemnified party to the extent but only to the extent that a court of competentjurisdiction determines that any such
Losses incurred or suffered by or brought against such indemnified party arisesdirectly from the gross negligence,
willful default or fraud of such indemnified party. The parties hereto acknowledge that the foregoing indemnities shall
survive the resignation or removal of a Trustee or the termination of the Trust Deed.

Advice

The Trustee may engage and consult, with any legal adviser. expert including any banker, accountant, auditor, valuer,
surveyor, broker, auctioneer or other professional adviser selected by it and act in reliance on the opinion or advice of,
or certificate, report or information obtained from, any such advisor or expert and the Trustee and each of its directors,
officers, employees and duly appointed agents will not be responsible to the Bondholders for any loss occasioned by
any action taken, or omitted to be done or suffered to be taken, in accordance with such opinion or advice or
information, whether such opinion or advice or information is obtained by or addressed to the Issuer, the Trustee or
any other person and notwithstanding any monetary or other limit on liability in respect thereof. Any opinion, advice,
reports, certificates or information from an expert including lawyers, bankers, accountants, auditors, valuers,
surveyors, brokers or auctioneers or other experts sent or obtained by letter or fax or any electronic communication
and the Trustee and each of its directors, officers, employees and duly appointed agents will not be liable to anyone
for acting in good faith on any opinion, advice, certificate, report or information purporting to be conveyed by such
means even if it contains some error or is not authentic and whether or not liability in relation thereto is limited by
reference to a monetary cap, methodology or otherwise and whether or not addressed to the Trustee. In the exercise of
its duties, the Trustee shall not be responsible for the verification of the accuracy or completeness of any certification
or legal opinion submitted to it by the Issuer or any legal adviser, expert or other professional adviser.

Trustee to Assume Performance
The Trustee need not notify anyone of the execution of the Trust Deed, the Bonds or any other document referred to
herein or therein or do anything to find out if a Potential Event of Default or Event of Default has occurred. Until it has
express written notice to the contrary, the Trustee may assume that (i)no such Potential Event of Default or Event of
Default has occurred and (ii) the Issuer is performing all of its obligations under the Trust Deed and the Bonds and any
other document referred to herein or therein.. IR MR ; =L
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Resolutions of Bondholders

The Trustee shall not be liable to any person by reason of having acted upon any instruction in writing of a Bondholder
(to the extent permitted under the relevant part of the Trust Deed), any Resolution in writing or other resolution
purporting to have been passed at any meeting of the holders of the Bonds in respect whereof minutes have been made
and signed or any direction or request of the holders of theBonds even though subsequent to its acting it may be found
that there was some defect in the constitution of the meeting or the passing of the resolution or (in the case of a
Resolution in writing, a direction or request) it was not signed by the requisite number of holders or that for any reason
the resolution, direction or request was not valid or binding upon such holders.

Certificate Signed by Authorized Representative

If the Trustee, in the exercise of its functions, rights, powers and/or discretion, requires to be satisfied or to have
information as to any fact or the expediency of any act, it may call for and accept as sufficient evidence of that fact or
the expediency of that act a certificate signed by one Authorized Representative of the Issuer, as to that fact or to the
effect that, in their opinion, that act is expedient and the Trustee need not call for further evidence and will not be
responsible or liable to any person for any loss occasioned by acting on such a certificate.

Deposit of Documents

The Trustee may appoint as custodian, on any terms, and deposit the Trust Deed and any other documents with any
company or entity whose business includes the safe custody of documents or with any lawyer or firm of lawyers
believedby it to be of good repute and may deposit the Trust Deed and any other documents with such custodian and
pay all sums due in respect thereof and the Trustee shall not be responsible for or required to insure against any loss
incurredin connection with such deposit.

Discretion

The Trustee will have absolute and unfettered discretion as to the exercise or non-exercise of its functions, rights,
powers and discretions and will not be responsible for any loss, liability, cost, claim, action, demand, expense or
inconvenience which may result from their exercise or non-exercise. Whenever in the Trust Deed, the Bondsor by law,
the Trustee shall have absolute discretion or permissive power, it may decline to exercise the same in the absence of
approval by the Bondholders. The Trustee shall not be bound to exercise any discretion or power or act at the request
or direction of the Bondholders unless first indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction against all
actions, proceedings, claims and demands to which it may render itself liable and all costs, charges, damages, expenses
and liabilities it may incurby doing so. As between the Trustee and the Bondholders, the exercise of such discretion
shall be conclusiveand binding.

When determining whether an indemnity or any security or pre-funding is satisfactory to it, the Trustee shall be entitled
(i) to evaluate its risk in any given circumstance by considering the worst case scenario and (ii) to require that any
indemnity or security given to it by the Bondholders or any of them be given on a joint and several basis and be
supported by evidence satisfactory to it as to the financial standing and creditworthiness of each counterparty and/or as
to the value of the security and an opinion as to the capacity, power and authority of each counterparty and/or the
validity and effectiveness of the security.

Agents

Whenever it considers it expedient and in the interests of the Bondholders, the Trustee may, in the conduct of its trust
business, instead of acting personally, employ and pay an agentselected by it, whether or not a lawyer or other
professional person, to transact or conduct, or concur in transacting orconducting, any business and to do or concur in
doing all acts required to be done by the Trustee (including the receiptand payment of money). If the Trustee exercises
reasonable care in selecting such agent, the Trustee will not be responsible to anyone for any acts or omissions by, or
any misconduct, negligence, default, fraud or breach of, any such agent or be bound to supervise the proceedings or
acts of any such agent.

Delegation

Whenever it considers it expedient and in the interests of the Bondholders, the Trustee may delegate to any person on
any terms (including the power to sub-delegate) all or any of its functions. If the Trustee exercises reasonable care in
selecting a delegate in accordance with this paragraph, it willnot have any obligation to supervise such delegate or be
responsible for any loss, liability, cost, claim, action, demandor expense incurred by reason of any act or omission by.
or any misconduct, negligence, default, fraud or breach of, any such delegate or sub-delegate.
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Forged Register

The Trustee will not be liable to the Issuer or any Bondholder by reason of having accepted as valid or not having
rejected any Bond purporting to be such or any entry in the register of beneficial owners of the Depository later found
to be forged or not authentic.

Confidentiality

Unless ordered to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction or in respect of information contemplated to be provided
to the pursuant to the relevant Transaction Documents, the Trustee shall not be required to disclose to any Bondholder
or any other person any confidential financial or other information made available to the Trustee by the Issuer and no
Bondholder shall be entitled to take any action to obtain from the Trustee any such information.

Determinations Conclusive

As between itself and the Bondholders, the Trustee may determine all questions and doubts arising in relation to any
of the provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant Bonds. Such determinations, whether made upon such a question
actually raised or implied in the acts or proceedings of the Trustee,will be conclusive and shall bind the Trustee and the
relevant Bondholders.

Currency Conversion

Where it is necessary or desirable to convert any sum from one currency (o another, it will (unless otherwise provided
hereby or required by law) be converted at such rate or rates, in accordance with such method and on such date as may
reasonably be specified by the Trustee but having regard to current rates of exchange, if available. Any rate, method
and date so specified will be binding on the Issuer and the Bondholders.

Application of Funds

All moneys received by the Trustee under the Trust Deed in respect of the Bonds or amounts payable under the Trust
Deed will, despite any appropriation of all or part of them by the Issuer, be held by the Trustee on trust to apply them:
(a) first, in payment of all costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred by the Trustee and indemnity amounts and
other amounts owing to the Trustee (including without limitation remuneration payable to it and legal expenses
properly incurred) in carrying out its functions and/or exercising its rights and discretions under or in connection with
the relevant parts of the Trust Deed, the Bonds (which for the avoidance of doubt includes the fees, costs, charges and
expenses of any Appointee appointed by the Trustee pursuant to the relevant partsof the Trust Deed for so long as they
are acting as agents of the Trustee);

(b) second, in or towards retention of an amount which the Trustee considers necessary to pay any amounts that may
thereafter become due to be paid under Clause 7 (Costs and Expenses) or 8 (Remuneration and Indemnification of
the Trustee) of the Trust Deed to it or any Appointee, to the extent it considers that moneys received by it thereafter
under the relevant parts of the Trust Deed may be insufficient and/or may not be received intime to pay such
amounts; third, in payment of any amounts owing in respect of the Bonds pari passu and ratably; and

(c) fourth, in payment of any balance to the Issuer, for itself.

If the Trustee holds any moneys in respect of the Bonds which have become void or in respect of which claims

havebecome prescribed, the Trustee will hold them on these trusts and shall apply them as set out above.

Right to Deduct or Withhold

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Trust Deed, to the extent required by any Applicable Law, if the Trustee
is or will be required to make any deduction or withholding from any distribution or payment made by it under the
Trust Deed, or is or may become liable to, tax as a consequence of performing its duties hereunder and whether by
reason of any assessment, prospective assessment or other imposition of liability to taxation of whatsoever nature and
whensoever made upon the Trustee, and whether in connection with or arising from any sums received or distributed
by it or to which it may be entitled under the parts of the Trust Deed (other than in connection with itsremuneration as
provided for in the relevant part of the Trust Deed) or any investments or deposits from time to timerepresenting the
same, including any income or gains arising therefrom or any action of the Trustee in connection withthe trust of the
Trust Deed (other than the remuneration specified in the relevant part of the TrustDeed) or otherwise, then the Trustee
shall be entitled to make such deduction or withholding or, as the case may be, to retain from sums received by it an
amount sufficient to discharge any liability to tax which relates to sums so received or distributed or to discharge any
such other liability of the Trustee to tax from the funds held by the Trusteeupon the trust of the relevant parts of the
Trust Deed.

The Trustee shall not be obliged to gross up any such distribution or to pay any additional amounts to the intended
recipient of the distribution or payment as a result of making such deduction or withholding and shall not be liable to
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the Issuer, the Bondholders or any other person for any of the aforesaid. The Trustee shall notify the Issuer as soon as
is reasonably practicable of the making of any such deduction or withholding.

The Issuer undertakes to the Trustee that:

it will provide to the Trustee all documentation and other information in relation to Tax required by the Trustee from
time to time to comply with any Applicable Law forthwith upon request by the Trustee: and

it will notify the Trustee in writing within 30 days of any change that affects the tax status of the Issuer pursuant to
any Applicable Law and will provide the Trustee with any information or instructions required to effect payments
which the Issuer determines are required to be made to the relevant Authorities in respect of the Bonds in light of such
change.

If any Taxes become payable with respect to any prior payment to the Issuer by the Trustee, the Issuer acknowledges
that the Trustee may debit any balance held for the Issuer in satisfaction of such Taxes, to the extent permitted by
Applicable Law. The Issuer shall remain liable for any deficiency and agrees that it shall pay any such deficiency upon
notice from the Trustee or any Authority. If Taxes are paid by the Trustee or any of its Affiliates, the Issuer agrees
that it shall promptly reimburse the Trustee for such payment to the extent not covered by withholding from any
payment or debited from any balance held for the Issuer.

It shall be the sole responsibility of the Issuer to determine whether a deduction or withholding is or will be required
from any payment to be made in respect of the Bonds or otherwise in connection with the Trust Deed and toprocure
that such deduction or withholding is made in a timely manner to the appropriate Authorities and shall promptly notify
the Trustee and each Agent upon determining or becoming aware of such requirement. The Issuer shall notify the
Trustee and each Agent in writing a minimum of seven (7) days prior to the date on which any payment for which a
deduction or withholding is required of (i) the amount of such deduction or withholding and (ii)the relevant Authorities
to whom such amount should be paid. The Issuer shall forthwith provide the Trustee and eachAgent with all information
required for the Trustee to be able to make such payment, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law.

The Issuer shall notify the Trustee in writing in the event that it determines that any payment to be made by the Trustee
under any Bonds is a payment which could be subject to any deduction or withholding, including without limitation,
FATCA Withholding if such payment were made to a recipient that is generally unable to receive payments free from
any deduction or withholding, including without limitation, FATCA Withholding, and the extent to which the relevant
payment is so treated, provided, however, that the Issuer's obligation under this paragraph shall apply only to the
extent that such payments are so treated by virtue of characteristics of the Issuer, the Bonds, or both.
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The Trustee is under no obligation to enquire as to the residency or status of a Bondholder or a potential holder of
Bonds.

Expenditure by the Trustee
Nothing contained on the Trust Deed shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any
financial liability in the performance of any of its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights, powers, authority or
discretion hereunder or pursuant to the Terms and Conditions, if it believes in its discretion that the repayment of such
funds or satisfactory indemnity against, and/or security and/or pre-funding for, such risk or liability is not assured to
it

Trustee’s Actions
Notwithstanding anything else contained in the Trust Deed, the Trustee is not obliged to do or omit to do anything,
and may refrain without liability from taking any action in any jurisdiction if the taking of such action in that
jurisdiction would, in its opinion or based upon legal advice in the relevant jurisdiction, be illegal or contrary to any
Applicable Law or regulation or any directive or regulation of any agency of that jurisdiction or any decree, order or
judgment of any court, or practice, request, direction, notice, announcement or similar action (whether or not having
the force of law) of any relevant government, government agency, regulatory authority, stock exchange or self-
regulatory organization to which the Trustee is subject or of any state or jurisdiction. The Trustee may also refrain
from taking any action if:
(a) it would constitute a breach of any fiduciary duty or duty of confidentiality or would otherwise in its
opinion renderit liable to any person in any jurisdiction;
(b) in its opinion or based upon legal advice, it would not have the power to do the relevant thing in that
jurisdiction byvirtue of any Applicable Law in that jurisdiction; or
(¢) it is determined by any court or other competent authority in that jurisdiction that it does not have such power.

The Trustee may without liability do anything which is, in its opinion, necessary to comply with any such law,
directive or regulation.

No obligations to monitor

Except as provided in the Trust Deed, the Trustee shall be under no obligation to monitor or supervise the functions
of any other person under the Bonds, the Trust Deed or any other agreement or document relating to the transactions
herein or therein contemplated and shall be entitled, in the absence of express notice of a breach of obligation, to
assume that each such person is properly performing and complying with its obligations, or to ascertain whether any
relevant event under the Trust Deed or the Terms and Conditions has occurred. Other than as specified in the Trust
Deed, the Trustee shall be under no obligationto monitor any financial performance of the [ssuer and the Trustee shall
not be responsible to the holders of the Bonds for any loss arising from any failure to do so or for any loss arising from
any breach by any party of its obligations.

No responsibility for Recitals ete.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for recitals, statements, warranties or representations of any other party contained
in the Trust Deed or in any transaction document relating to the Bonds or other document entered into in connection
herewith or therewith and shall assume the accuracy and correctness thereof or for the execution, legality,effectiveness,
adequacy, genuineness, validity, enforceability or admissibility in evidence of the Trust Deed or any such agreement
or other document or any security constituted thereby or pursuant thereto.

No responsibility for condition of the Issuer

Each Bondholder shall be solely responsible for making and continuing to make its own independent appraisal of and
investigation into the financial condition, creditworthiness, condition, affairs, status and nature of the Issuer, and the
Trustee shall not at any time have any responsibility for thesame and no Bondholder shall rely on the Trustee in respect
thereof.
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Enforcement

The Trustee may at its discretion take proceedings against the Issuer to enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the
Trust Deed, provided that the Trustee shall not be under any obligation to do any of the foregoing unless it shall have
been so requested in writing by the Bondholder(s) or by a Resolution of the Bondholders, in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Trust Deed.

For the avoidance of doubt:

The Trustee shall not be bound to take any step to enforce the rights of the Bondholders in respect of whom it acts as
a Trustee against the Issuer unless it has been directed to do so in writing by the Initial Bondholders or the Bondholders
of not less than 66%4% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding

The Trustee may pursue the rights and remedies available under the Trust Deed in respect of whom it acts as a Trustee
to enforce the rights of the Bondholders againstthe Issuer in accordance with the terms of Trust Deed. Nothing in the
Trust Deed shall preclude the Bondholders to enforce the security by itself against the Issuer under the Trust Deed.

Consolidation, amalgamation etc.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for any consolidation, amalgamation, merger, reconstruction or scheme of the
Issuer or any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer or the form or substance of any plan
relating thereto or the consequences thereof to any Bondholder.

Consent

Any consent to be given, or any discretion to be exercised, by the Trustee for the purposes of the Trust Deed or the
Bonds may be given on such terms and subject to such conditions (ifany) as the Trustee thinks fit and notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in the Trust Deed or the Bonds may be given or exercised retrospectively. The Trustee may
give any consent or approval, exercise any power, authority or discretion or take any similar action (whether or not
such consent, approval, power, authority, discretion or action is specifically referred to in these presents) if it is
satisfied that the interests of the Bondholders will not be materially prejudiced thereby.

Professional Charges

Any Trustee being a banker, lawyer, broker or other person engaged in any profession or business shall be entitled to
charge and be paid all usual professional and other charges for business transacted and acts done by him or his partner
or firm on matters arising in connection with the trust of the Trust Deed and the Bondsand any properly incurred
charges in addition to disbursements for all other work and business done and all time spentby him or his partner or firm
on matters arising in connection with the Trust Deed and the Bonds including matters which might or should have been
attended to in person by a trustee not being a banker, lawyer, broker or other professional person.

Special Damages and Consequential Loss

Notwithstanding any other term or provision of the Trust Deed, or the Bonds to the contrary, the Trustee shallnot be
liable under any circumstances for special, punitive, indirect or consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever
including but not limited to loss of profits (whether direct or indirect), goodwill, reputation, business or opportunities,
whether or not arising directly or indirectly and whether or not foreseeable, even if the Trustee is actually aware of or
has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or damage and regardless of whether the claim forsuch loss or damage
is made in negligence, for breach of contract, breach of trust, breach of fiduciary obligation or otherwise.
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Force Majeure

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Trust Deed or in any other transaction document, the Trustee shall not
be responsible for any loss or damage, or failure to comply or delayin complying with any duty or obligation, under
or pursuant to the Trust Deed arising as a director indirect result of any Force Majeure Event or any event where, in the
reasonable opinion of the Trustee, performanceof any duty or obligation under or pursuant to the Trust Deed would or
may be illegal or would result in the Trustee being in breach of any law, rule, regulation, or any decree, order or
judgment of any court, or practice, request, direction, notice, announcement or similar action (whether or not having
the force of law) of any relevant government, government agency, regulatory authority, stock exchange or self-
regulatory organization to which the Trustee is subject.

“Force Majeure Event” means any event (including but not limited to an act of God, fire, epidemics, explosion, floods,
earthquakes, typhoons; riot, civil commotion or unrest, insurrection, terrorism, war, strikes or lockouts:
nationalization, expropriation or other governmental actions; any law, order or regulation of a governmental,
supranational or regulatory body; regulation of the companying or securities industry including changes in market
rules, currency restrictions, devaluations or fluctuations; market conditions affecting the execution or settlement of
transactions or the value of assets; and breakdown, failure or malfunction of any telecommunications, computer
services or systems, or other causes) beyond the control of any party which restricts or prohibits the performance of
the obligations of such party contemplated by the relevant parts of the Trust Deed applicable to such party.

Directions from Holders

Whenever the Trustee is required or entitled by the terms of the Trust Deed or theTerms and Conditions to exercise
any discretion or power, take any action, make any decision or give any direction or certification, the Trustee is
entitled, prior to exercising any such discretion or power, taking any such action, making any such decision or
certification, or giving any such direction, to seek directions from the holders ofthe Bonds by way of a Resolution or
clarification of directions from the Bondholders, and the Trusteeis not responsible for any loss or liability incurred by
any person as a result of any delay in it exercising such discretionor power, taking such action, making such decision,
or giving such direction or certification where the Trustee is seeking such directions or clarification or the instructions
or clarification sought is not provided by the holders of the Bonds.

Insurance
The Trustee shall not be under any obligation to insure any certificate, note, bond or other evidence in respect thereof,
or to require any other person to maintain any such insurance.

Duties
The Trustee shall not have and shall not be deemed to have any duty, obligation or responsibility to, or relationship of
trust or agency with the Issuer or with the Depository.

Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorism

The Trustee may take and instruct any agent or delegate to take any action which it in its sole discretion considers
appropriate so as to comply with any Applicable Law, regulation, request of a public or regulatory authority (including
“know-your-customer” and other compliance policies) which relates to the prevention of fraud, money laundering,
terrorism or other criminal activities or the provision of financial and other services to sanctioned persons or entities.
Such action may include, but is not limited to, the interception and investi gation of transactions on the Issuer’s or any
Bondholder's accounts (particularly those involving the international transfer of funds) including the source of the
intended recipient of any funds paid into or out of such accounts. In certain circumstances, such action may delay or
prevent the processing of the Issuer’s or any Bondholder’s instruction, the settlement of transactions over such
accounts or the Trustee’s performance of its obligations under the Trust Deed. Neither the Trustee nor any of its agent,
delegate or attorney will be liable for any loss (whether direct or consequential and including, without limitation, loss
of profit or interest) caused in whole or in part by any actions which are taken by any of the Trustee or its agent,
delegate or attorney in this respect

Payment to Nominee

If a Bondholder is a natural person. he may appoint a nominee who shall on the death of that Bondholder is entitled to
all money in relation to the Bond held in the name of the Bondholder in the Register. Bondholder shall inform the
Registrar in the prescribed form the name of his nomineeand upon receipt of such information the Registrar shall
record the name of nominee in the Register and shall informthe Issuer. If a Bondholder is more than one natural
person each natural person who is a Bondholder may appoint a nominee for himself who shall hold the Bond along
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with the other Bondholders. Payment to the nominee on the death of the relevant Bondholder shall be sufficient to

discharge payment obligations of the Issuer to such deceased Bondholders.

Details of Fees Structure & Expenses:

Estimated Cost

In BDT Crore

BSEC Consent Fee 0.10% + 15% VAT

0.35

Trustee Fee + VAT (BDT 5.0 Lac/Year)

0.29

Trustee & Trust Deed Registration Fee + VAT

0.14

Legal Counsel Fee +VAT

0.34

Other Costs Related to Issue Management + VAT

2.66

Total Cost (estimated)

3.78

For details, please refer to Subscription Agreement.

Notices

Addresses for notices

Al notices and other communications hereunder shall be made in writing (by letter or fax) and shall be sent as follows:

Issuer: 1f to the Issuer, to it at:

Address: DBH Finance PLC

Head office; Landmark Building (14th Floor),
12-14 Gulshan North C/A, Gulshan-2,
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

Tel: 09612 334142 (Direct)

Cell: +880 1613195645

Email: nahid@dbhfinance.com

Trustee: If to the Trustee (as appropriate, acting as trustee for the Bonds), to it at:Address: UCB

Investment Limited,
BULUS Center, Plot- CWS (A)-1
Road: 34, Gulshan Avenue
Dhaka- 1212, Bangladesh

NS

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CED
DBH Finance PLC.

A Jashim Uddin FCS

Md. Abdul ' Company Secretary

EVP & Chief Fitancial Offfcar DBH Finance PLC.
DBH Finance PLC. Landmark Bldg.

12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka.
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Cell: +880 1927 111555
Email: tanzim.alamgir@ucbil.com.bd

or, in any case, to such other address or fax number or for the attention of such other person or department as the
addressee has by prior notice to the sender specified for the purpose, in writing.

Effectiveness

Every notice or other communication sent shall be effective if sent by letter, three days after the time of dispatch andif
sent by mail at the time of dispatch provided that any such notice or other communication which would otherwise take
effect after 4.00 p.m. on any particular day shall not take effect until 10.00 a.m. on the immediately succeeding business
day in the place of the addressee.

™

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director At
DBH Finance Vi o

e

EVP & Chief Financial Officer
DBH Finance PLC.

Jashim Uddin FCS
Company Secretary
DBH Finance PLC.
Landmark Bldg.

12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka,
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Declaration about the responsibility of the directors, including the CEO of the issuer in
respect of the information memorandum

This information memorandum has been prepared, seen and approved by us, and we, individually and collectively,
accept full responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and adequacy of the statements made, information given in the
prospectus, documents, financial statements, exhibits, annexes, papers submitted to the Commission in support
thereof, and confirm, after making all reasonable inquiries that all conditions concerning this public issue and
prospectus have been met and that there are no other information or documents, the omission of which make any
information or statements therein misleading for which the Commission may take any civil, criminal or administrative
actions against any or all of us as it may deem fit.

We also confirm that full and fair disclosures have been made in this information memorandum to enable the investors
to make a well-informed decision for investment.

R

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEO
Date:

Annexure 1: Entire/Detailed Audited Financial Statements
Annexure 2: Credit Rating Report of the Issuer

Annexure 3: Credit Rating Report of the Issue
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Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEO
DBH Finance PLC.

Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements
of
DBH Finance PLC.
For the year ended on 31 December 2022

Jashim Uddin FCS

Md. Abdul Ahad, F¢ DRE o Searstary
. I e ‘
EVP & Chief Financial Officer 5 dm;r;“g;dg_
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Managing Director & CEO
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Chartered Accountanty
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BDBL Bhaban (Level-13 & 15) Telephane: (+88-02) 410 20030 o 35 (Level-13)
12 l\.lwrgh Bazar (_&_rmr_ncmai Arta {+88-02) BIB0428 1o 29 {E&'vcé 15)

A Dihaka-1215, Bangladesh. Facsimile: (+88-02} 410 20036
E-mail: <acnabin@banglaunet, Wely wwwacanbin com

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of DBH Finance PLC.

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of DBH Finance PLC. (the Company), which comprise the
halance sheet as at 31 December 2022, and the profit and loss account and statement of changes in
equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financiat position of the Company as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as explained in note # 2 to the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and
Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Risk ! ~ Our response to the risk

Measurement of provision for loans and advances .
The process for estimating the provision for | We tested the design and  operating |
loans and advances portfolios associated with | effectiveness of key controls focusing on the |
credit risk is significant and complex. . following: |

e |

@ bmftiuy Bram;%s --‘13 Buiiglye No 7 {1st Floor, N ' del Lt}mmcmai Area, Chanogram-4104, i'}zz}.g.iadrsh
Wﬁhﬁwma ek { *"' | Y Fam<88-031) ¥ N bingtg@acnabin-bd.comy, Webr wwwacnabincom
3 T F Secretar ’ B :
M flllii?il‘lg Director & CED EVP & Chiel Financial Officer Landmark Bldg. Managing Director & CEO

DBH Finance PLC. DBH Finance PLC. 12-14 Gulshan-Z. Dhaka. UCB Investment Limited



i

ACNABIN

Chyrtered Accosnrants

For the individual (party-wise) analysis, these
provisions consider the estimates of future
business performance and the market value of
the collateral provided for credit transactions.

At year end the Company reported total gross
loans and advances of BDT 44,535,972,899
(2021: BDT 43,830,505,644) and provision for
loans and advances of BDT 941,521,996 (2021:

' BDT 1,105,800,154).

We have focused on the following significant
judgments and estimates which could give rise
to a material misstatement or management
bias:

« Completeness and timing of recognition of
loss events in accordance with criteria set out
in FID circular no 08, dated 03 August 2002,
FID circular no. 03, dated 03 May 2006, FID
circular no.03 dated 29 April 2013 and DFIM
circular no.04 dated 26 July 2021,

+ For assessed provisions, the measurement of
the provision may be dependent on the
valuation of collateral, estimates of exit
values and the timing of cash flows;

« Provision measurement primarily depends on
key assumptions relating to the probability of
default, the ability to repossess collateral,
and recovery rates.

« Tested the credit appraisal, loan disbursement |
procedures, monitoring and provisioning |
process;

* Reviewed the process of Identification of loss |
events, including early warning and default |
warning indicators; '5

» Reviewed quarterly Classification of Loans
(CL);

Our substantive procedures in relation to the !
provision for loans and advances portfolio |
comprised the following: -5

« Reviewed the adequacy of the companies
general and specific provisions;

» Assessed the methodologies on which the
provision amounts were based, recalculated |
the provisions and tested the completeness |
and accuracy of the underlying information;

« Finally assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank
guidelines.

See note # 7, note#1211andnote#1212totheﬁnanaalstatements

Legal and regulatory matters

We focused on this area because the Company
operates in a legal and regulatory environment
that is exposed to significant litigation and
similar risks arising from disputes and
regulatory proceedings. Such matters are
subject to many uncertainties and the outcome
may be difficult to predict.

These uncertainties inherently affect the
amount and timing of potential outflows with
respect to the provisions which have been
established and other contingent liabilities.

Overall, the legal provision represents the
Company's best estimate for existing legal

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the}
design, and tested the operational effectiveness

of the key controls over the legal provision and |
contingencies process. :

We enquired to those charged with governance -
to obtain their view on the status of all significant |
litigations and regulatory matters, .

We also assessed the Company's contingent |
liabilities disclosure.

R '} @
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Managing Director & CEO EVP & Chief Financial Officer
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 matters that have a probable and estimable
| impact on the financial position. '
See note # 2.27, note # 17.1 and note # 17.2 to the financial statements.
Accuracy and completeness of revenue recognized

The Company reports revenue of BDT 518.00 | Our audit approach included a combination af
crore from Interest on loans, short-term | controls testing, data analysis, and substantive | ,
investment, term deposit receipts, Commission, | procedures covering the following:

exchange and brokerage income, investment | « We understood the significant revenue
income and related activities. processes, including the performance of an
end-to-end walkthrough of the revenue |

The application of revenue recognition assurance process and identifying the
accounting standards is complex and involves a relevant controls (including IT systems,
number of key judgments and estimates, interfaces, and reports);

including those applied on revenue | » We tested the design and operating
arrangements with multiple elements and those effectiveness of the relevant controls;
contracts where there is the existence of | « We reviewed significant new contracts and

principal and agent relationship. requlatory determinations, the accounting |
treatments opted and testing the related |
Due to the estimates and judgment involved in revenues recognized during the period; '

applying the revenue recognition accounting | « We performed data analysis and analytical |

standards and the degree of complexity of IT reviews of significant revenue streams; g
systems and processes used, we have| « We performed specific procedures to test
considered this matter as a key audit matter. the accuracy and completeness of |

adjustments relating to multiple-element
arrangements and grossing up cerfain
revenue and costs; and
+ We performed procedures to ensure that |
the revenue recognition criteria adopted by |
the entity for all major revenue streams is |
appropriate and in line with the accounting |
- | ___policies. il
See notes # 18, 20, 21 and 22 to the financial statements o '
" Investment and provision for diminutions in the value of investments
The Company reports investments of BDT | Our audit approach included a combination of
251.70 crore, which is comprised of  controls testing, data analysis, and substantive |
Government securities BDT 165.86 crore, | procedures covering the following:
-marketable securities of BDT 79.09 crore, non- |« We obtained sufficient audit evidence to
| marketable securities of BDT 6.45 crore, and conclude that the inputs and methodologies |
| preference shares BDT 0.30 crore. used for the valuation of the investments are |
within a reasonable range and that the ]
The process for estimating the provision against management of the Company cons%stently
the investments associated with credit risk is applied valuation policies.
; significant and comiplex. « We assessed the controls' design and |
operating effectiveness, measurement, and |
We focused on this area because of the oversight of financial assets' valuation risk.
significance of the investments in the financial

%
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statements and departure from the recognition | « We verified the existence and legal |
and presentation criteria of IFRS 9, IFRS 7 & ownership of equity investments and mutual
IAS 32 to comply with the circulars of funds by confirming investment holdings with |
Bangladesh Bank for determining the valuation the portfolio statements of brokerage houses |
| methodology and presentation to be applied by and CDBL.
| the management of the Company. « We tested the calculations of provision for |
diminution in value of the investment and |
checked if the presentation and disclosure of |
. investment are in compliance with FID |
| circular no. 8 dated 3 August 2002 and DFIM |
' circular no. 2 dated 31 January 2012 issued |
by Bangladesh Bank. :

B I Ca—

- |
See note # 06 and 12.1.3 to the financial statements
IT systems and controls _-
Our audit procedures have a focus on IT |We tested the design and operating |
systems and controls due to the pervasive | effectiveness of the Company's IT access
nature and complexity of the IT environment, | controls over the information systems that are |
the large volume of transactions processed in | critical to financial reporting. We tested IT'
numerous locations daily and the reliance on | general controls (logical access, change-
automated and IT dependent manual controls. | management and aspects of IT operational
controls). This included testing that requests for |
Our areas of audit focus included user access | access to systems were appropriately reviewed |
management, developer access to the | and authorized. We tested the Company's !
production environment and changes to the IT | periodic review of access rights. We inspected
environment. These are key to ensuring IT | requests of changes to systems for appropriate
dependent and application based controls are | approval and authorization. We considered the
operating effectively. control environment relating to various |
interfaces, configurations and other application |
layer controls identified as key to our audit. '
Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate |
procedures. In addition, we understood where |
relevant, changes were made to the IT
landscape during the audit period and tested
those changes that had a significant impact on |
financial reporting. !

Other Matter

During our audit, we checked the Information Technoiogy General Controis (ITGC) of DBH Finance
PLC. and observed that there are rooms for further improvements, which are being communicated to
the management through our letter to the management for their consideration and taking action.

, U
@ pakertil
Wa&y WEMEER y Jashim Uddin P;C? r-
Nasi Sl Company Secretar "'"l a ‘
J\:J?,!-I'.I[I.l‘l:-;:”d-un~ m Md. Ab.du| Ah? yP DBH Finance PLC. Tanzim Alamgir
dEINE Lhirector & CED EVP & Chief Financial Officer Landmark Bldg- Managing Director & CEO

DBH Finance PLC, DBH Finance PLC. 12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka. LCB Investment Limited



5
Mbakert;uy ‘{'ﬁ Jashim iddin FCS
T Sy Company Secretary
Md. Abdul Ahad,

Nasimu] Baten

ACNABIN

Chantered Accountants
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
The Draft Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report
but before the finalization of the Annual Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
will communicate the matter to those charged with governance of the Company so that the matter is
duly addressed in the Annual Report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as explained on note # 2 and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

DBH Finance PLC.
Landmark Bldg.
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content.of the Company' financial statements,
including the disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Financial Institutions Act, 1993 and the rules and
requlations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also report the following:
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a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

¢) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the annexed notes dealt with by
the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns;

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business for the year;

e) the financial statements of the Company have been drawn up in conformity with Financial
Institutions Act, 1993 and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
explained in notes as well as with related guidance, circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank to
the extent applicable to the Company;

f) adequate provisions have been made for loans, leases, advances and other assets which are,
in our opinion, doubtful of recovery and Bangladesh Bank's instructions in this regard have
been followed properly;

g) the financial statements of the Company conform to the prescribed standards set in the
accounting regulations which were issued by Bangladesh Bank after consuitation with the
professional accounting badies of Bangladesh;

h) the records and statements which were submitted by the branches have been properly
maintained and recorded in the financial statements;

i) statements sent to Bangladesh Bank have been checked on sample basis and no inaccuracy
has come to our attention;

i) taxes and other duties were collected and deposited in the Government treasury by the
Company as per Government instructions found satisfactory based on test checking;

k) nothing has come to our attention that the Company has adopted any unethical means i.e.
window dressing’ to inflate the profit and mismatch between the maturity of assets and
liabilities;

[) proper measures have been taken to eliminate the irregularities mentioned in the inspection
report of Bangladesh Bank and the instructions which were issued by Bangladesh Bank anc
other regulatory authorities have been complied properly as disclosed to us by management;

m) based on our work as mentioned above under the auditor's responsibility section, the internal
control and the compliance of the Company is satisfactory, and effective measures have been
taken to prevent possible material fraud, forgery and internal policies are being followed

appropriately;
7 /
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n) the Company has complied with relevant laws pertaining to capital, reserve and net worth,
cash and liquid assets and procedure for sanctioning and disbursing loans/leases found
s satisfactory;

o) We have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Company, and we have spent
around 2400 person hours for the audit of the books and accounts of the Company;

p) the Company has complied with relevant instructions which were issued by Bangladesh Bank
relevant to classification, provisioning and calculation of interest suspense;

g) the Company has complied with the "First Schedule" of the Bank Company Act, 1991 in
preparing these financial statements; and

r) all other issues which in our opinion are important for the stakeholders of the Company have
been adequately disclosed in the audit report.
Dated, Dhaka ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants

29 MAR 2023

-
Muhammad Aminul Hogque, FCA
Partner
1CAB Enrollment# 1129

DVC:2303291129A5543002
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DBH FINANCE PLC,
Balance Shest
As at 31 Decamber 2022
L Not Amount in Taka il
"_] [__31 December 2021 |

PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Cash 75,264, 558,066,972
in hang 3 99,203 101,192 |
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and ts agent Bank 32 575,164,881 557,965,870 |
Batance with other banks and financial institutions 1 65 14,725,958,032
I’ Bangladesh 4.1 11,018,065,981 14,725,958,032
Qutside Bangladash -
Money at call on short notice 5 2,700,000,000 -
Investments 6 950,591 678,218,185
Govarnmesnt | 1,658,567,002 H 8,241 051 |
Others 858 367,589 663,577,097 |
Loans and advances 972 899 43 644
Loans and advances 7 " 44 538 9 | 43,830 505,644 |
Fixed assets including land, buiiding, fumiture and eguipments 8 254,482,380 262,581,058
Other assots 9 145,349 837 223,282,952
Total Assats s:lwmgn 503?&5&&“3
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabitities
Borrowing from other banks, financial institutions and agents 10 11,080,141,587 6,175,673,065
Deposits and other accounts 40, 59 43,978,360,429
Fixed deposits 111 40,566,580,590 43878 360,429 |
Other deposits = |
Other Habilities 12 2,610,392,699 2,880,448 299
Total Lizbilities 53,751,124,876 53,034,481,793
‘Shareholders' equity
Paid-up capitat 132 1,949,903 640 1,772,63%,850 §
Share pramium 14 55,000,000 55806080
Statutory reserve 15 1,894,900 641 1,603,418,189 |
Other reserves S 3,575,040,000 3,125,080,000
Retamed eamings 3 113616 597,537,221 |
Total equity 7,994,960, 7,244,131,090
Totzl liabilities and Sharsholders' equity 61,746,085,77 60,278,612, 883
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Contingent liabilities 171
Accaprances and endorsement
Letter of guarantes
Irrevocable lefter of credirs
Bills for coflection
Other contingent habilities =
Total contingent liabilities * %
Other commitments 17.2
Dotumentary credit & shost-term trade: related transaction |
Forward assets purchiased and forward deposit placed |
Ungdrawn pate ssuance and revolding underwriting faciities i
Undrawn formal standby faciities, credit lines and other commitments |

Total other commitments
Total Off-Balance Sheet items including contingent liabilities

Notes:
1 Indepengdent Auditer's Repert-Page § to 8

2. The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an Integral pant of these financial statements,

3, These financial statements were approved by the Board of Oirectors on 28 March 2023 and were signed on its behatf by:

. Ch pr.AM RW Nasimul Baten
Cha Vice Chalrman Managing Beecthr &CED
Dated, Dhaka ACNABIN, Accountants
28 MAR 2023
Muhammad Amjput Hoque, FCA
Partner

ICAB Enroliment # 1129

DVC:2303291129A5543002
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

IMIF———r—-{

Interest Income Q,BII 163 437 5053574673
Interest paid on deposits and bormowings ett. 19 01,976}
Net Interest Income z,ns.mm 2,163,672,697
Income f_mm mnvestment ] 20 145,220,7 125715088
Commission, exchange and brokerags 21 182 884, 368 1RG0
Other aperating income 2 J33,705 16,469,035
Total operating income 2,134,630,055 2,482,773,320
Salary ang altowances 23 377,435 742 364, 346,554
Fent, taves, insurance, electricity etc. 24 35,613,730 37,625,853
Legat & professional expenses b3 17,808,124 15,727,000
Postage, stamp, telecommunication elr. 3% BAB.116 B673.068
Stationery, printing, advertisements ete, 27 19,947,884 11,304,741
M_mming Diracior's salary and faes 27.1 13,006.000 13,0008.006
Dwectors' fees and expenses 28 956,075 1,069,840
audﬁwfs fees _ pa:] 575,000 546,750
Degracistion, repairs & rmaintenance 30 70,854,191 66,127,952
Other expenses ki 65,760,218 46,651 883
Total pperating expenses 10,462,120 565,128,192
Profit before provisions 1,524,167,935 1,917,645,128
Provisicns:
Loans and advances 1214 (164,278,158 226,288,475
Diminition in value of ivestments 1213 105,946,283 {33,795,686)
5 &m Assels 2,235,804 4107128
provisions {56,092,071) 196,599,918
Profit before tax 1,580,260,006 1,721,045,210
Provision for tax: n
Current tax 1 &6}3259{36[ 651,404,107
Deferrsd tax expense’(incume) 208,341 (14,247 960:
63,534 677,156 23?
Profit after tax :
Appropriations
Statutory reserve [ 206,989,452 [ 12,488, 378
General reserve 450,000,000 300,000,600
650,989 450 547,488,378
Ratained surpive esaas307 536400595
Earnings Per Share 34 5.21 333
Notes:

1. Independent Auditor's Heport-Page 1 10 8
7. The annexead notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financlal statements.
3. These financial statements wers aporoved by the Board of Girectors on 28 March 2023 and were signad on &S behalf by:

Dr. A M & Chowdhury Nasimul Baten
Wice Chairmman Managing Dwector & CEO
Diated, Divaka
wmﬁmm
Prtner
ICAB Envpliment # 1120
DVC:2303291129A8543002
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DBH FINANCE PLC.
Cash Flow Statement
For tive year ended 31 December 2022
2 [m" Amount in Taka
Cash flows from operating activities
Intecest receipts 4,862 890,985 5,074,320,924
Interest payments (2,932,185 465) (3052, 493,225
Dividend receipts 33,308,674 44,572,304
Fees and commission receipls in cash 1B2, 885,368 LRT,520,507
Cash pay to employees, suppliers and various cperating espense (563,848,822} (501,978,448}
Trcome tax paid (751,242,259} (645,436,953)
Recaipts front other opérating activities 115,445,861 16,323 437
Cash generated from operating actvisies before changes in operating assats and fatulities ILTETG 1,112,272, 068
Increase/{decrease} in operating assets and liabilities
Loans sl advances to customers (782,262,181 (1,082.255,820)
Tavestment in trading securities (179,525,069) (128888.015)
Cther assets 31,417,955 (77,246,445}
Loans and deposits from hanks and other custamers {3,917,769,839) 151485403
Interest suspense (3,36B,205) 22,898,384
Other abilties {6 148 1843 (6,023,628
Cash generated/ (utiized) in operating assets and labilities (%,777,594,523) {L120281,0513
Net cash flows from/(used in} operating activities 37 {3,830,337,180) (7,938,943}
Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds(Payments) for sale/purchase of Treasury Bond {1,850,325,009) {7.200,776}
Other investments 3,000,000 27000008
Purchase of property, plant & equipment {27,9749,469) (10,127 450
Proceeds from sell of praperty, plant & eguipment 1,887,651 311,618
Net cash flows from/{used in) investing activities (3,873,417,727) 9,983,299
Cash flows from financing activities
Net Receipt of Loan & Zero Coupon Bond 4,649,422 568 718,995,736
Cash dividenc paid (205 Bk ob 2y (231414870
Net cash flows from/{used in} financing activities 2,383, 526,616 487,781,914
Met increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {1,120,228,291) | 489,826,370
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 36,852 2,162
Cash and ¢cash equivalents (net off overdraft] at the beginaing of the period 15,121,649,494 14,631,820,962
Cash and cash equivalents (net off overdraft) at the end of the period 74 __ 14,001,458,055 15121 640,494

Wﬁ%{ﬁw

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEO
DBH Finunce PLC.

Nestes;
1. Independent Auditor's Repont-Page 1to 8
2. The gonexed notes | 10 42 formt an integral part of these financial statements.

3, Thess fmancial stataments were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2020 and wers signed on its behalf by

DrLAM dw

Nasimul Baten
Vice Chaiman Managing Directar & CEG
Dated; Dhaka ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants
78 MAR 2B
uwmﬁmm FCA
#artner
ICAB Envoliments 1126
DVC:2303291129A8543002
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DBH FINANCE PLC.
- Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Amount in Taka
Particutars Paid-up Capital [Share Premium|  Snaciory g m‘“"‘“ Yotal
Balarice as on [ January 2022 1,772,639.680 55,000,000 1692914188 | 3,125 040.000 597,537,201 7,244,131 080°
Net profit {after tax) for the prriod i - - ¥ 1,018,725, 755 1,01£,725,755
Transfarrect 10 reserve funds - 200,989,452 450,000,000 | (650,989,452}
Stock dividerst sssued 177,263,960 - . {177,263,960) .
Cash dividend paid = s o (265,895,952} {265,895,952)
|Balance at 31 December 2022 | 1,949,903,640 | 55,000,000 | 1,§94,903,641 | 3,575,040,000 | 520,113,616 | 7,994,960,397
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the yearended 31 December 2021
Amount in Taka
Particulars Paid-up Capital |Share Premium|  Spacey | SOTer & Other|  Retained Total
{Balanca as on L Janusry 2021 1541425810 55,000,000 1,485,425 ,B11 2,525,040 000 523,564,368 6,431,455.98%
[t prodit (after tax) for the penod . : i - | 1,043888,973 1,043,888 57
ransferred t reserve funds - 207,488,378 I0G,000,000 | (507,488,378}
Stock dwidend wsued 131,213,870 {#34,213 870} .

Caslx dividend paid ‘ » - - (231,213,873} (231,213.822)

Balance at 31 December 2021 1,772,635,680 &!MO:_M 1,683,914,189 | 3,125.040,000 | 597,537,221 7,244,131,090

Page 12
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DBH FINANCE PLC.

Liguidity Statement
As at 31 December 2022

Page 13

Amount in Taka
ito3 3to 12 1to5 Above
Particulars Up to 1 Month Months Months Vaare S Years Total
Assets
Cash {In hand and balance with Bangladesh Bank 3
and s ) 5??;26@.985 : " : 575,264,085
Balance with other banks and financial | 4,810,675,819 6,207,390, 162 2 - - 11,018,065,981
. at call on shert notice 2,700,000 000 - - . 2,700,000,000 |
vestments 770,884,089 : 9,500,000 . . 1,736,566,502 2,516,950,591
Loans and advances 925,304 504 1,591,147.148 6,124,456,201 21,738,100,868 14,155,964,177 44,535,872 899
Fixed assets inclugding tand, building, furniture, 5
's & ROU 3 iﬂ:?,iﬂ? 6,277,657 18,975,850 73,639,304 15?,462,322. 254,482,380
Other assets 29,563 544 98,004 060 13,177,224 4,170,000 : 145 349,837
Total Assets 9,815,309,288 7,902,824,037 6,166,109,275 21,816,910,172 16,044,933,001 61,746,085,773
Liabilities
|Borrowing from other banks and financial institutions 6,047,185,076 1,348,705,841 1,143,891 921 2,540,358,749 - 11,080,141,587
Deposits and other accounts 1,042,588, 560 5,037,536,758 4,741,858, 166 109,766,059 29,128,841,047 40,060, 590,590 |
Other liabiities 421,580,130 457,008,142 742,522,223 500,628,216 | 488,656,968 2,610,392, 659
Total liabilities 7,511,353,766 6,843,247,741 6,628,272,310 3,150,753,024 29,617,498,035 53,751,124,876
Net liquidity gap 2,303,955,522 1,059,576,296 (462,163,035) 18,666,157,148 {13,572,565,034) 7,594,960,897
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DBH FINANCE PLC.
Motes to the Financis! Statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

¢ 1 Company and its activities
{a) Legai status

D8H Fnahce PLC. (here-in-after refermed to ac "DBH" or "the Company") formerly known as Delta Brac Housing Faance Corparaton Lid. was
incorparated a8 a public bimited company and oitaned the Cerditate of Commencement of Business under Tompanies Aot 1994 on May 11,
1986, The Company nas also been granted iosnse under the Frsncial [nsttutions Act 1993 on huly 15, 1996, The regetersd agdemss of the
Comparny & situsted 8t Landmark Budding, (Sth floor), 12-14 Guishai (J&, Guishan-2, Dhaka The Lampany went for pubbc igsue 1n 200708
and the shares of the Company are lsted in Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges » Bangladesh,
(b) Nature of business
1) The principal activities of the Comgany are providing loans for construction of houses, purthases of fats or houses, extensions and
impravernents of edstng houses or fiads and purchase of heusing plots.
) The Company mmwmmmmwmmmmmmm,nmmm doubds
money deposit, annual income deposit, quarterdy intome depost, thly income deposit, easy way d etc. for s mdividual and componate
clients.

- ; Significant sccounting policies and basis of preparation

2.01  Statement of compliance
mmwmmmmammwmmmmmmm and therefare do mat

take intd comsderation the effect of infia The grep and i of the financial st mdmeduﬁosumamfmmx.:mw
tieen siade i accordance with the DEIM girculsr no. 11 dited 23d Decamber 2008 o confi enal Fnancal Regorting
S&&M{mxIMMMIMWMMMM;MM&ﬂWMW&?mlmruﬁeﬁfﬁmma
and Chittagong  Stock Exchanges and other apphcatie faws & requistions in Bangladesh and practices g iy Fodidwed By H g Fingiee
Institutions,
Mwmmswmmdmmlmwww*mcmmmmm;nyww
BUATEINENLS Are gvEn prefg o IFRSS, where any contradictions anses,
202 Going concern
The financial statements have Deen prepared on a going concern baws, which o i+ the realization of assets and the satishachon of

fLabiities ;) the nonmal course of business,
2.03  Reporting period
These Gnancal statements have been prepared for the penoad from § Januery 2002 10 31 December 3023,
2.04 Functional and presentation currency
Thesa financal statements are pracented in Taka, which is the company's functional currensy swept as indhcated. Figures have been rouiied off
1 the nearest taka
2.05 Disclosure of deviations from few reguirements of TAS/IFRS due to mandatory compliance of Bangladesh Bank's requi

Bangiadesh Bank & the prime reguiatory body for Non-Banking Financial Institutiong (NBFL} i Bangiladesh, Some requirements of Bangladesh
Baok's rules and regulatichs contradict with the mowrements of TASS anet TFRSs. As such the company has departed from those contradictory
requirernents of TASs and 1FRSs in order to comply with the rites and reguistions of Bangiadesh Bank, which are disclosed below

i) Compiete set of financial statements
1AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements”

s per A5 §: %mmm&fwwﬂwgmdﬂmmm
i) staternent of fancist

d)mdw&«mmeﬁmmﬂm

T} statement of charges in equity,

w) statement of cash flows,

v} notes, memwmwmm
Vi) Compar In respect of the praceding penod

As per DFIM Ciecular No. 11, dated 23 December 2009, tomplete set of financial statements are
i} batance sheet,

i) profit and loss aocount,

1) cash flows staternent,

iv) statement of changes in equity,

) statement of hguidiy,

i) rastes, comprising significant aceounting policies and other explanatory information.
Thete s no financial impact for this desathure i the financia! statements,

i} Current/ Non-current distinction

IAS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statement™

A5 per Para 60 of [AS-1 “Presentation of Financial statement™ an entity shall prasent current and non-Cirrert a55ets and furrent and Bon- Corowl
abiites a5 separate classification in ks statement of finannial position.
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Treatment adopted as per Bangladesh Bank

MwDﬁMWM.ILWE}f‘ ey 2009, Banglad Bank has Issued templates for financal statements which & aopheable for el
the Financial Instituth In the temglates, there is no current and non-curant segmentation of assets and liabilities,

;::-wmmamwwmm Hawever, the liguidity staterrent shows the qument) nen-curment portian of assets and labiltics i
regard

it} Off-batance sheet items
1451 wumm

There is no soncept of off-balance sheet items in 145-1 ; hence there i no requirement for disclosure of off- balance shieet ftems on the face of
the balanee sheet,

Treatment adopted as per Bangladesh Bank

As ger DFIM Circular No. 11, dated 23 December 2009, off-batance sheet tems {2.g. letter of credit, letter oF guiarantes ete.} must be discisa
separately on the face of the balance sheet.

There is no financal anpact for this departurs in the | staty 5

iv) Intangible assat

IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements”

As per IAS 1"Presentation of Fmancial Statements” Para 54, the statement of financial position shall inclutie separate Ine tem for imlangitie assets
Treatment adopted as per Bangladesh Bank

As per DFIM Circular No, 11, dated 23 Decernber 2009, there i no option for separate fine item for intangible asset in the kalante heat. We
present intangible asset in the bslance sheet as pant of fixed assets snd provide detalls in note-§ and ancexure-A 2% Separate line item.

There & no financial impact for this departure.

¥) Other comprehensive income
IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
As per 1AS 1: "Presentation of Financial Stal " Other Comprehensive Income [OCT) is & compenent of financial 5 ity of the el

of OC1 ane to be included in & single OCT statemant.
Treatment adopted as per Bangisdesh Bank

Bangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial statements which will striictly be followed by financia! institutions, The templates of finaras
staterments ksued by Bangladesh Bank neither inclutle Other Comprehensve Income {OCT) nor are the slaments of OC1 allowed to be Included
a single OO statement. As such the finarcial institution doss not prepare the Other Comprehensive Income statement. However, slamenss of
OCL o &y, are shown in the statements of changes in equity.

There s o financial enpact for this departure during the yeas,

vi) Disclosure of presentation of profit

TAS/IFRS

There is rio requirement o show appropmation of profit in the Face of st of compeohenshve Ingome.

Treatmint adopted as per Bangladeésh Bank

A5 per DFIM giroulsr no 11 dated 23 December 2009, an appropriation of profit should be disclosed in the face of prafit 2nd lass acount.
This is & presentation wsye and there is no financial impact.

vii) Preparation of "Statement of Cash Flows”

IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™

The Cash flow can be prepared using either the dwect method or the indirect method. The presentation & ssiected 1o present these
cash fiows 0 3 manner that is most appropriate for the busingss or industry. The method selfected & anpliad congistently.

Treatment adopted as per Bangladesh Bank

Cash fiow stats t has been prépared in comphance with DPFIM Groular 8o 11 dated 22 December 2009 which & the mture of deest asd
mdrect method,

Presentation of statement of cash flows is not fully aligned with the requirement of 145 and there s ng Bnpnciat inpact,

viii) Presentation of cash and cash eguivalents

IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™

Cash enuivalents are short trm, highly igud wwestments that are readily convertibhe 1o known amounts of cash and onlfy inchade those Frvestments

which are for a short tenare fike: 3 monihs or less period. In the light of above, balance with Bangladesh Bank and fixed term deposits should be
treater] s investment asset rather than cach equivalents as it s llquid asset and not avadiable for use n iy 1o day operstions.

Treatment adopted as per Bangladesh Bank
Sangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial statements vide DFIM Crrcular No. 11, dated 23 December 2089 which witt stesttly be foliowed
by all NBFls. The tempiates of financiaf stalements prowided delall presentation for staternent of cash flows.

Presentation of faancial statements is not fully aligned with the requirement of IAS,

ix) Measurement of deferred tax asset

IAS 12 “Income Tax"

A deferred tux ssset shail be recognired for all deductible terporary différences to the extent that & §s probabie that taeble profit wil be
avatiabie against which the deductible termparary difference can be Utilzed.
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Treatment adopted as per Banglagesh Bank

s per DFIM circular No.7, dated 31 July 2011, no deferred tax ssset can be tecognized for any deductibie tempotary difference against lnans
and advantes.

During the year net provision charged for loans and advances was Taka (57.42) million (note#12.1) and deferred taw liability of Taka 2151
miflion was not recognized on this temparary tifference.

x} Presentation and disclosure of Financial Statements and Financial Instruments

FRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure”

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”

TFRS 7 and TFRS 9 require specific presentation and distiesure refating to ail nancial instruments,

Treatment adopled as per Bangladesh Bank
hﬁmmmwmmmwmmnﬁmwmuwﬁwmmmm»mmmf
by all MBFLs,

As per Bangladesh Bank quidelines; financis & ae gormed. recognized and measured differently from these prescifed o IFRE B
Mg such some discosue And presentabion requirements hawe not Doen made m the 300ounts.

Presectation of financial statements 15 not fully aligned with all the requirements of 1AS.

®il M of provision for loans and advances {financial assets measured at amortized cost)

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”

As per IFRS 9 an entity shall recognize an impairment allowance on inans and advances based on expected credif loss. At each repaiting date an
WMWmwmsmobﬁmmﬁdmﬂmatamme(mmdfmmdmsmurmaw1Mcasiﬁ
npaired, If any such evdente exists, expected credit loss are 4o be measured th ER at an egual to (1) the 12
marith Expected Credit Losses, ECL-Stage 1, {memmmmmﬁmmdﬁmmmmﬂmmlmﬁmmw
possibile within 12 months after the reporting period); or (i) il Metime expected credit lusses, ECL-Stoge-2, (expected credit lasses that ressit
frem #i possibie default events over the life of the financial instrument].

Trestment adoptad as per Bangladesh Bank

As per DFIM circular No. U4, dated 36 Rdy 7001 (Master Circular: Loan/Lease Classification and Prowsionng) and oiher related orculdes of
Bargladesh Bank 3 generai provision at 0.25% tv 5% under different categores of undlassified loans (good/standaid lsang) has @ be
mantained irrespective of objective evidence of impaliment on mmmmwwfmabﬁmmmm ety
investments and bad losses has to be orovided at 20%, 50% and 100% respectively for | deperding on the duration of

in the Financial Statements, provision amounting to Taka 164,28 million has been released for the year 2022, Among which Taka 2.1 million
chasijed as Gereral Provigion and Taka 166.42 million is released as specific prowvision,

xii) Recognition of interest incorme for SMA and classified loans and advances

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Income from financial aseets measured at amaortized cost is racogeized through effective interest rate method over the term of the nvestment.
Ore 4 financial asset s impaired, investment income s recognized in profil and foss account on the same basis based on revised terrang
Treatment adopted as per Bangladesh Bank

As_per DFIM circular No. 08, dated 26 July 2021, onge an investinent on loans and advances is termed o5 "Special Menton Account (SMAY,
interest ncorme from such investments are nol alipwed to be remognized as intome, rather the respective amaunt nesds o be oedlited a5 o
Hability account lke: interest suspense account,

Diririg v yadr intarest siiipense bas decreased to Taka 77.18 milfon from taka BD.5S milion resulling.in an decrease of Taka 3,37 million

xiii) Valuation of Investments in quoted and unquoted sh

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

IFRS § requi ties to all j I equify nstruments 3t fair value (mmmw%la“ervmmﬁmu
Investment ki shares falls either under at “fair valué thraugh profit/ioss™ or “Fair vaiug through other comp ibime™ where afly (hange

in the fair valise in case of falr value through profit/ioss at the year-end is taken to profit m-mamwc?mmmfwmmtméﬁﬂw
vatlue throuah otfier eomprehindive Ingime 15 (aken 1o other comprehensive icome,
Treatment adopted as per Bangladesh Bank

&s per £10 circular No. 08, dated 03 August 2002 investiments iy Guoted shares and unguotad shares are rvalusd L the year end af market
price and a5 per book value of last audited balance sheet respactively. Provision should be made as per Banglagesti Bank DFIM arcular No. 02
dated Jaruary 31, 2012 for investments in marketable securities and as per Bangladesh Bank DFIM crcular No, 05 gated May 11, FO15 for Mutieal
fundls.

There s no financial impact during the year,

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of fingncal st s sBgU < to inake judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the applitaton of
accountng policies and rapaned o s of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, sstimates. Assumptions also require for dsclasure of

contingent assets and contingent liabilites at the date of financial statements. Such estimates aad askumplions aie Mgde 0N STORCH axpercn
and other factars that are considered reasonable under the. required circumstances, Actus results mav differ from these estimates.

Fenmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed orr an ongeing basis. Revisions to sccounting stumiates ae sCognEes i te pend inowhech
the estimates arte révised and in any future perpds affetted. The key ftem which involve these udgments, estunates and assumphons a7g
dhscussed below:
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Impairment losses on leans and advances

In adciton ™ the peovision made for loans and advances based on the gudelne of Bangladesh Bank, DEM roviews €8 nans and aovaniss
portfolio on monthly basis to assess whethir any forther aliowances! were back for imp, T shaudd bie provithad 15 the income stitement. Tha
jusgment by the management 1S requisad in:the sstimation of these 15 and such: patimad afe based on ascmphon about & number of
fagtors though actual resunts may differ, ressiltng s future changes o the prowsions.

1097  Materiality and aggregation
Each materiai iem considered by management a5 significant has been presented separately in fivangal statements. No amount Nas been set off
mmmma&wmwm&wmmm&sw«Mmmm!mnaﬁmmmmmamm
only when permitted by fhe el £ i 9

188  Foreign currency transactions
Transsctions in currencies ciher than the Company's fussctional currency (foreign currencies) ane recoeded at the rates of exchange preveiing at
mmaﬁmmkmmma&,wmwnmmmermmmummnm
at thie balange sheet date. Exchange diffs are recognized in mrofit of kess i e period i owhich they asss,

208 Liquidity Statement
The licusdty statement of assets and Sabilites a5 on the reparting dale has Besn prepared on sesicdual maturity term 1S e the followng bases:

a} Balance with other banks and fnandcial institutions, money at call o shost notice | elc. ate on the bass of ther maturity term and past
historical end.
b Invegtmants ang o the hasis of their respective matuty.
©) Loans and advances are on the basis af their repayment scheduie and past rend of earty setfiement.
d) Faeed assets are on the basis of their useful lives.
&) Other asssts are on the basis of thels realzation | amortization.
f) Barrowings from other banks, finandial institutions and agents are as per their maturity/repayment term,
o) Depasks and other &ccounts are on the Dasis of their maturity term and past trend of withdrawal by the depositors.
) Cther kiabilities are on the basic of their payment] adjustrmen schedibe.
2,10 Accounting for Leases (IFRS 15)
A weaption of 3 contract, DB assess whether 3 contract & or Conains, 2 Jease. A contzact IS, Of CUNtams, & wase I the conbrast cumeys the
nght 40 control the use of an wentified asset for a paviod of time in exchange for consideration. To asses the sght tn conteol the use of a0

igentifieg assel, DU jvess whethier:
qmmm«swﬂurmmm
il the sconomic benelts from the use of the asset Broughout the pesod of use,

mwmmmwmmma&em When DI fos thie dession makinig rights that are most reievant 1o changing how and for
The pekcy s appheit to o the lease ageeements having lease Tero for 17 months o more 45 G 158 January 2015 and the contracts eatersd e,
Or changed on of after that date.

As lessee

#s lessee DB recognizes the Right-of-use Asset and lease lability at the inveption of lease colfract. The nght-of use asset s initislly sasured
at cost which comprise the mitial amount of lease liabllity adjustad for any lease payments mage at or bafure the commencansant date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to demantie and remove the underlying asset of to restore this unierying asset o the sae
an which It |5 located, less any lense incentives received.

The nght of use asset is Beprecated using the stramit line methods from the -mqm»mwnrdmemﬂnmwmorw
end of lease term, In additon, the right-af-use asset i periadicolly redized by impairmeént losses, if any, and adjusted for cottais e
measrements of the leass liabitity.

The lease lablity is intially measured at the present value of the-lease payments that ang nol Paid 2t the commeniemant date discounted usmy
the interest rate snplict in the lsase or, if that mte could not be readlly svadable, DBH's incremental borrgwing rate, The fease bobidity &
mmasred 3t amontized cost Using the effactive intenest rate method. When lease liability 5 re-measured for any change of an index or e, the
wresponding adiustments are mase.
A3 fessor
TFRS 16 does not change substantially how a lessor Btounts for ases, Uinder IFRS 15, 3 lessor continues i classity feases a5 exther ficance
fease or nperating lease and account for those two types of lease diferently.

241 Property, plant and equipments

a. Recognition
1o pursoant to TAS 16 "Praperty, Plant and Equipment” e cost of an item of property, plank and equipmient 18 recogrized as @) asser €, and
oy if 1t 5 probable that futire economic benefits associated with the itern will fisw to the patity and the 208t of the item 2an be manssred
relably.

Fixed aseits have besn dccounied for at cost less acnavilsted depratiation. Cost includes expenditure that s diecily atintutaiie (o he
acquisitian: of the items,
WmﬂsdMwmmwmmmwnmmuﬂvd&ntﬁmmmmilnﬂm
economic benefs assciated with Ehe itden wil flow 1o the company and (i cist of such itams can be measured rafiably. All ather expenditures
are charmaet! to the Profit & Loss account durinag the financial perod in which they are nurrad,
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b. Degreciation

Foead assets are recorded 3t historical cost jeds accunwiated depreniation as per JAS- 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment”. Deprstation & tharmed
on strwgit fne method wting the following rates an o feed assets:

Category of assats Rates of depreciation per annum Estimated useful life
Fusmiture & Fatures ' 15% - X% 5 6.67 years
{Equipeent A% - 25% 45 years
jComputen and CompiRer squipment 0% - 5% 4 5 years
Vahicies 0% § years
Butiing % 33,33 years
Intangible asset 0% T years
Right-of-use ssset Based on lease term { Lease term
— Not Oeprevioted :
Depreciation ¢n newly acquired assets are caloutated from the month of acquisiton (fuli 1) and na degreciation is charged for the month o
which the assels are disposed off.
c. De-recognition

An fter of  property, plant and equipmant i de-recogiized on &5 disposal. Sale price of fixed assels are determined on the basis of T vasks: of
He assets, Gain of 1055 0n sale oF assers ave recognized i Profit B 5055 account as per privision OF 1AS 16 “Proparty, Plant and Equpment™. Such
gain o sy s determinedl as the difference between sales proceeds and carmying amount of the asset

212 Intangibie assels
In actordance with 1AS 38 “Intengitie assets”, intangible assets (computer software) ate recurded at hstontal cost less atoumuiates
amortzation, Amontization i caiculated on straight Bne method wsing the mite of 20% (estimated five yeurs uselust lfe)

213 Loans - secured
Repayment of mortgage loans is mage by way of Equated Mopthly (EM1) consasting of priscpal and interads, There are twa modes
&WWMMM mmnthly reducing or annaat reducing method as per Inan agreement between ousiomer and DBH. Flecer

mamuwmmmmdwmmmmmwwamm EMI commentes onde the

entire boars are sty 4. Pending wement of EMIs, pre-EMI interest is payabile every month,

.34 Investment in securities
Investments are ubially recognized at cost indluding acguisition charges with the investments. After inibal recognition, nwestments i
marketable securities except DBH 15t Mutial Fund, Green Deita 15t Mutuat Fund have been valued al cost o market pnce whichever i
lower on an aggregate portfofio basis. Above mutual Tunds and Peninsula SBC Unit Fund-l1and Peninsida AMCL Undt Funtl Bave been
waiued ot 85 % of latest publshed NAV as on December 31, 2022 or cost price whichever is jower. Investment in non marketable
secunlies have been valued at cost. Full provigion for diminution in value of secunities at the year end on aggregate poctfaiia basis
excepts investment in mutual funds and unit funds are made in the financial statements as required by Bangladesh Bank DFIM crouiar
No, 02 dated January 31, 2012, Provision for above mutust funtis and unit funds 3t the year end (s made as required iy Banglatiesh
Bank DFIM circular No. 05 dated May 11, 2015,

215  Investment in Government Treasury Bond
As per 1FRS 9, Financial assets ars chassfied as either () amertiped cos () fair walue Hwough profit o loss (00 fair walue thgugh other
comgrehensive income. In case of valuation of investment i Government Sonds, DBA followed arportized cost method, a5 ibmeets both the

216 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivaients tonsist of cash, FDR, call investment and bank balances. For the purpase of statermend of cash flow, cash and tn
eguvalents are prepared net off bank overdralts
Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement s prepared in compiiance wath the UFIM crcular Mo, 11, dated December 23, J009 of Bangladesh Bank

2,17  Revenue recognition
As per IFRS 150 "Revenue from Contracts with Customerny”, revenue s only recognized when it meets the followng five steps magdel: (1)
identify the contracels) with customer, (il) Identify performance obligations in the contract, (i) Determing the transaction price, (w]
Aliocate the persaction pnce to the performance obligation in the conract and (v) Recognize the revenus when the enfity satisfies a
performance obigation.
Interest income
Interest income on loans: apd advances & mcognzed o6 accrual Bass except owverdhst ntorest and nterest of the loan sccounts bensdered as
nor-performing. Interest Income & suspended and full p is made against the receivabies on all nor performing ians when the
nstabments are cutstanding for more than s months or aky cther accousts wiich are considerad doubtful of recovery on the basis of judgment
of the manspement.
Fees and other charges on loans
Receipt of loan processimg/servicing fees and other fees are recognuzed as wome when the perdormance sbhgations are satsfied and the
ampunt of the transaction price s allocated to the performance abligations.
Dividend income and profit/ {loss) on sale of marketable securities
Dividerd income s recognized on accrual basis when the right to receive mopme is established, Profit or loss arising from the sale of securities ©
accounted for only when shares are sold in the market and profit is realized and loss is incuresd.
Interest suspense account
Interest on noarperforming loans is ok recogrezed as revenue and Credited o interent suspense actount. Non pesflinming ioeds refer 1o The faans
wﬂmwxmmmswmrwmmmmwewmmummmmm impatred on the basy of
btk of the “
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2.18  Employee’s benefit obligation
i) Defined benefit pan {Gratuity schame)
The Company has a funded gratuity scheme for afl confirmed emplovess who comiplete iminkvan 5 years of service wilh the Company. Heguined

. amount of gratuity is caculated on the bacs of fast basic pay depending on the length of senvice for every compieted year 35 wed as

meﬁmmdmaﬂmmmm Thils schwimié is appeowed by the Mationa Boand of Revenus
{WSWWWMW!MdTmMmﬁMMMNmmmMLmMsmf
adequacy of the lability for the scheme as per Intemational Accounting Standard - 19 “Employee Benelits”
Foliowng benefits are payabie on retirement, death or leaving service:
Leos thon S year of service - Ni
Service between 5 ang 10 yvear - One month's last drawn basic pay for every completed year of servica.
£in compietion of 10 years confirmed service and above - Tw) month's ast drawn basic pay Fof every compisted year of servee,
Maximem benelits - 55 times basic pay
h)mmmmmnpmﬁmw)
The Comp y provide rwﬂfuumemmm:mxwmmmwmdurmm\m;
mewamamwswmwmr iy and e smiploy

2.19  Waorkers Profit Participation and Weifare Fund {WPPF)

Estanlishment of Workers' Profit Parsicipation art Wellare Fund (WPPF) Is a matter of Banking and Financial Institutions Sectar as a whole
Miristry of Finance through its letters ro, S3.00.0000.311.22.002.17-130 dated February 14, 2017 ang 0o, 53.00.0000.31 1 22.002. 17140 daten
February 25, 2018 expressed its apinioh that Thaptes 15 pn “Participation in Compary Prafits by | " iy thie Bangiadesh Labor Act 2008 ang
améndinents rmade therein on July 22, 72013 should not be applicable for Banks and Financiad Trstitutions and reguested 1o the Minstey of Laley
and Emgloyinect to take necessary steps in this regard as well as not to apply the said chagter of Labor Act 2006 for Banks and Finance!
Instibutions. Therefore, hiee other Banks and Finanoal Insitubions, DB del not recognize the WPPF,

220 Taxation
Current tax

Frovision for income tax has been made ab best estimate keeping in wew the provsions of Income Tax Ordinance 1983 and amendments made
theretd from tme to time, Applicabiie rate of income tax for the company 15 17.5%.

Daferred tax
Prrsisnt (o 145 - 12 "lncome Taxes™ Mmmmmmm&mmexwmmmmmmw
e tax base of assets ang labeites and thee carrpng value for & i reporting D Tax rate sting at the b shwet (late 15 wmed (o

MMWmmmmmmwmwmwwhmmmdwﬁmdwmmaﬁam liatakty
231 Provision for foans

In addition to the peovision made for loans and advances biased on the Quideiines of Bangiadesh Hank, the Company’s palicy i 1o make provesion
for tha loans and advances to cover the prindipg amount in respect of non perfoming inans when instaliments are cutstanding for more than s
maortiis and any tther overdue acoowits on the bass of management’s assessment whiere there are possibinties of mpainment iy futuee, The
Company has made adequate prowvision which & more than the ke reculatory requirement,

222 While oft
Write off refers to recognition of the reduced or zero valup of an asser. Tt alio spfers 1o an wwestment Tor which 3 flurn on the mvestment i
now mipossinke ar unlikely. Potental retiam along with such & L 3 this canceliad and samoved Mwritten off') from the compiny's balencs
sheet.

Recovery agenst debts wrtten off & oedited 1 revenut. [acome s recognized where amounts r either recoversd ang/or adisted agarst
securitiesfproperties or advances there aganst or are corsaderssd recoverabie.

2.23  Interest expense
The Company has moored interest and related sxpenses on acraent of term foan, depes:, overdralt and shont term) Joa, In temms of pomesss

of the Intemational Acounting Standard (1AS] -1 “Presentation of Franial S " D are teeogaized on acorust bess
2.24  Eamings per share
Earmings Per Share {EPS} has peen caltulated in accordance with [nbe i Ag g Sla “33°E g% Per Share™ and shews an the

faneof profit and oss acgount and computalion shown i Gote 34,

135  Related party disclosures
As per Internaticns] Accounting Standards (TAS) 24 "Related Party Disciasures™, parties are considernd 10 be refated if one of the party has the
abihty 1o control the other party or exergise sordfices mfisence ower the other party = making: financial and operating decsions. The Comparyy
cormad out trangacions in the crifinary cowrse of business on an ann's length Basis & commieTcial 7ates with 43 relted parties. Relsted party
drsciosures bave bees given in npte 40,

2.26  Events after the balance sheet date
As per 1AS 10 "Events after the balance sheet date”, ail materdal svents acurring after the balance shaet date have been consitered angl where
negessary, adjusted for of disclosed in note 421
The Company does nob recognize contingent Bability and contingent assets but dmcloses the exictence of contingent liability in the fmancisl
staterments. A contingent Hability is possible chiligation that anses from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the ceaurence or aon
occurrenge of uncertan future events not withen the control of the company of p ¢ obhgation that i not recognized because ouliow o
resources i not likely or obligation cannot be measured refiably.

2.28 Branch accounting
The Company has folrteen offices (head office B thiteen branches), with no overseas branch as on December 31, 2002 Accounts of the

brarches ave maintaned @t the head office which are inchuted in the accompaniing financal staternenty
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239 General

) Figures appearing in these Financial Statements have been misnded off 1o the nearest Yaka.

b} Previows year's figures have beer rarranged/restated/reciassified, where pecessary, In ardef 1o Confirm o curment petsd’s prasentation.
230 mxwmxmmunmamwwmm

o o oE ¢ 8¢ n&im m;.!n;
Irventories 7 Y
Statement of Cash Flows 7 e
Aztounting Pohcies, Changes in Accounting Estimatas any Ervor 8 haphed
Ewents after the Reporting Peniad 10 Apphed
Incoime Taxes 13 Aptiert
Property, Plart and Equipment 1 Auphed
Employee Benefits 19 Apphed
Accounting for Government Grants ais Disclocurs of G ebts Assitance = WA
Fhe Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 21 hgplind
Borrowing Costs 23 Wik
Falateg Pamy Discitoures 4 Apgitied
Acchunting and Reponing by Reticorment Bensfits Plans % NfA
Separate Financial Statements s NA
Investment in Assacistes ant loint Ventures 28 HeA
Finangial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Ecaniomes FL MA
Firanciat Insunents: Présentation ) .
33 Apgrivad
3 Apphed
1 Applied
b * Apphes
B Apghenyl
40 L
41 Nen
IERS No. Status
1 MA
i N
3 N#A
4 BfA
Nor-tunents Agsets held for sale andd discontinued cperations § WA
Exploration for énd Evaluation of Minerst Bescurces & L
Financizl Instraments © Disciosures 7 s
Gpeniting Segments # A
Financial Instruments. & -
Consolidated Financlal Statements 1 /A
Joing Arrangaments i1 NiA
Dasclosurs of intevests i other Ertities 32 NiA
Fair Value Meaturement 12 Applied
Fegulatory Deferrad Ancounts 14 NfA
Reverue From Contracts with Customers i Appfied
LEEseE 1B Appilies

** Dg management has foliowed the principles of 1AS & IFBS consstently o the praparations of the financial statements 15 1hat extent at
appheatils to the financial instmiticn, Some of the standards have not been complied with, about which Bangladesh Bank has speon! guadeling.
/A = Mot applicabie

231 Financial risk management

The Company abways Loncentrates on delivering high valus to its stakehalders through appropriate teade-off betwern nsk snd rtbin & sl
meﬁmwmmmmWWMMmmwmmMs«wm
Company th address neks relaing fo credit, M&Wmmmmrhmwmmﬁmm identifying
3N Mieasunng risks, the Company also considers o for ging core tisks of financkl instintions isssed fry the Country's Conirat Back,
Bangladesh Bank, vide FID Circular No. 10 dated September 18, 2005 for management of sieks and BFIM Crodar No, 03 dated 24 January 216

Credit risk
To encounter and meigate cradit risk, the company employed  mulilayer approval process, policy for © i BEEET FEE et
mandatory search for credt ceport from Credit Infosmation Burssi, lsking into pay pertarmance oF cu sefore finanaity, anoug

review of chients, adeguate ingurance coverage for funded 3ssess, vigarous monivrng and foliow up by special assets mansgement team, stapns
fokow up of compliance of tredit policies by internal audRt department. taking cofiateral, seeking extemai legal siinion, maintaining neutrsity o
politics ared falowing arm's length approach » related party transactions, regular seview of rmarket situation and industry exposure eic

The Asset Liabilty Committes (ALE0) of the Company regularly meets to assess the changes in interest rate, market conditons, carty oul asse:
mwwmwmwwmwmmmmmmwwmwmu rate risk. To encourss
mmewmmmmhmmmmmmamm maintsinmg a bakinced dersfication o

and maintaining prudent provisioming policies. The ( has also strong Access 1o mioney market and credt Gnes at o
competitive rmemmughgmdmptmn strong-eatnings, financial strength and credit rating,
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Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk arises when 2 company is unatie 1o mest Ihe shont lerm obiigation 1o its kenders and stakeholders, This arises from the atverse
mismatch of maturities of assets s Kabilities tmmwmwammmmwammme
far ensuring that sufficent funds sre available o mest short term obligations, even & a crisis & and for mak W A dhersdy of funding
souices. Treasyry Division mamtains guidity based on hisiorica) requirements, mfmmmmmmm
positeons, coliections from Fsencing, evadable sources of funds ard risks and returms,

Operational Risk

Operational risk s the tial loss arising from = breakdown 0 ompany's Systems and procedures, Internal tontrol, compiiante reOUEETEN O
WWWMMQWam fransdl, faitire, damage of repidabons, delsy 1o perform or comprosse of the compeny’s
interests by poropriate | control res ave in piace, at the Company, t0 addnss eperational risks. The Company nas ake
estatibished an control & pllance department (IC0D) to address operatonal rek and 0 Trame and implement policess 10 sntountsr such
risks. This deos tisk across the Company as & wholi and st BN EDEOD BNGRONK st 10 idindity, assean
audwmmﬁﬁ

MW'MMMM

in DEH, snoney laundering ard! it f g risk ki o DeoRG (RmEnsIons:

@mmum&mmmmmmmmumﬁms
Wmmewm DEH fails to mest regulatory obligations under the Money Laundenng Prevention Act 2012 and Anti Terrgrism At
{amended in 2013).

DBH lias been adhering Lo various guidelines and ciniulirs tssued by the Bangladesh Financial Intethgence Unit (BFIUY and pul o place o strt
mmmmdnmgwwnmwmm

aii‘" aned i sakion of lebernal policies, procedunes ! chntrols 1 wlentify snd report Instances of monsy Buncering and Terroest
ojmummmmmmwmwammmﬂw for AML and CF T comglisnce;

<} Appointment of an AMLCFT Cornpliance Dfficer, kv 23 the Chief Anti Maney Laurdenog Officess {CAMLCO), to lead the TTL;

d) Indegendent testing procedures Cartied oot By nlemal 3utit fuacton 10 ensure effectivenass of AMUICET program,

&) Dngoing employee | % ey

Additional risks required to be addressed under new regulatory requirements

WIWMWWMFWWM;WWMWWWW& 03 dated 24 Xewiary 206
ber of following additional nisks that financial institutions are now reguares 0 address o cover &8 the magor sspeces of gk wingh sy
m&awmdm

Strategic Risk

memmmmmwmmwwwaM«mm mm fation, nethtmnces
memmmummnm i ang o gacismng. Sualege ngk ntuces
horal foms that lally hamp -wmmmpmammwumﬁmmemmmmaw
mwwm Mmmmm:-u-wmra > e and albo v for e sisk control ae explained n
e guiciebnes
Sance ity inception, DEH has been managing strategic risks wist e evidant frons the dy S fss mGtel of the Conipany te the vears. Mapr
organEatonal URITS Are SSSIONES D Ainess the AT SYBIEGIC FEks ASDICTS WIth & view I SunimiZe the negative impact of those ks
Compliance Risk
Conmmbmr&dwmWWMWWMWWHWWuaMameWmmn
its own reguiations, coce of conduct, snd standards of Destigood practice. Comp rigk i3 sormebimes soo refernet 10 a0 ategety rek Decsase o
Fi's reputation s clossly connected with its-sdherence 1o princigies of Hlegrity and Tair dealing.
ﬂxmmmuwmdMMW G and comgh function undts in mansging compliance risks and the FT<
board of drpctors IS rasponsible for 3 e manhoe of the FI's comgdliance nisk. The boded shauld establish a romplancy function and
Wummmgm.mmmmmmmmmdmmamrmm,
Aurt Coramittes snd Risk Management Committes of the Board. The Compliance departmant of DEH s responsiie for assessng compbance risk
redation 12 institutonal matiers such as governance, best praclices and corporate soal responsibility.
The sbjective & to identify any compliance rd at an sarly stage that may srdenmine Hye miegoly and the seocess of DBH and to mitigate the risks o

DSt PP WY,

Reputation Risk
Wmummw-ﬂdmsu,mmmmmammaﬂummmdw(mwxmmmﬁ«
evants that iy reduce the confidence of the ¢ & chents, e eaiOrs, TErp PRy, Crialt el apence,
TS a0 gEnersl sl on DBH.

The guidelines explain the roles of the Board and senior management in Maraging repxtation risk. The management. ensures that DEM s svars of any
changes in market perceplions as soon a5 possibie. Accordingly, 2l business policies and transattions are subjected o careful consideration. TEY

mmmhmmmmmmmmmmm,wa i risks. Reputatonal sk

& akd factored Nt imajr Credit decisions that mary e 10 dredit proposal being dechned.

Environmental and Social Risk

Erveironmentat risk i 3 faciitating elemant of credit risk anising from enveronmental issues. WMEMWWMMM(&MR}MM

ﬁmnommﬂmsmmmwmmmmme % t from an angd Socal (EAS)

perspective — g aif the envi wwfammasmtmmmwmmwnsemwwnﬂwwm,W
10 BDBOVING @ loan.

232  Implementation of BASEL-IT
Towmmwwmmmwmwmmmwnesaswmwr:mummmmm,m
stabie, Ba Yot Bank i Peglatory capited fran “jigk Based Capial Aderuacy for FI'S® with effiect from G1 Jshuaey 2017
mmﬁmmmawmmwwﬁmmmmmulmh
implementation thmmittes is hiaded by Mansgng Director & CEO.
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m NETWORK MEMBER

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEQ
DBH Finance PLC,

Islamic Finance Wing
ms«aﬂucﬁwdmﬂrﬁwﬁc.(Dm-lpuia12%mmﬁmmz_m1whmlfwamms@
Isiamic Financing Wing ({FW) #t ail the existing DEH branches in ticn 1o iy Conver Financing subjeet 1o the approval of Bangladesh
Bank, Ammw mwmmwmgaﬂ;mw;mmmw 2022 from them 10 protised wih contitions ang
Suthmi for op g DBH FW As per their letter, DBH jed its M i of Assoviglion and Articles of
W“WhmdwmmrmWnMswwde&mm,
Commities, Afterward, DBEH formed Shariah Supervisory Committes and |siamis Binancing Dnizion (IFD) ncluding 4s Org | Strusiore
ana provided raiming 1o the concemed Execulives and Ofcials of fts iFW. 1t aiso adapted required palicies, p and Product Programme
G {PPGs). B mmsmums;mmmwwwwwwmw;mm
businésses On January 16 2023 DBH spplied to BB for approval of opening DBH FW ! all the existing branches of DEH in responss. on
Felwuary 23 2023 we raceved mmnswlm&ﬁnaofmlmmmmmmmmmm hiether few
documents lor obtainng faal approval Tor opening DBH FW
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31 December :mn" 31 December 2021 |
Taka e |
. 3 Cash
31 Cashin hand
Local Chrrency r ge g & 101,180 |
Forewgn Currency - E i
99,203 181,302
3.2 Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank
Local Currency { 34,900, 376 E ssr.m.&aﬂ
Foreign Crenay 224,177 186612 |
£75,124,553 557,505,281
Balance with Sonak Bank bemg an agent of Banglatesh Bank 40,329 60,589
Bl 64,882 557,965.870

3.3 Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Reserve (SLR)
Cash Reserve Requirement and Statutory Liusdity Reserve have been calcuiated and mamtained in acoordanca wih Fmancial Institenon Azt - 1983
angt Financial Instifetion Rudes - 1994 and DFIM groutar nes 04 dated June 21, 2020.
Cash Reserve Reguirerment (CRE) has been caloulated ot the rate of 1.5% on 'Total Term Deposits’ which & p wct i) S En ACcound mmntaned

with Bangiadesh Bank. Total Tesm Deposits’ means Tenm or Fied Depost, Security Deposit agang Lease/Loan and other Temn Degosds, regessn
from indniduals and nstin@ions {except Banks & Fnancal Institubons)

Statutory Liguidity Reserve {(SLR} has been calcuited 2t (he ate of 5.10r% on Total Liabdives, including CRR of 1.5% on Total Term Depest. S8 &
mantaned i bguwd assets in the form of cash in hand (notes & coin in BOTY, Belance with Bangladesh Bank and other Banks angd Financiat
Institutions, unencumbered freasury Dils & bonds & any other 2asets 2ppeoved = Government Sazetle o by Bangladesh Bank,

33.1 Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR)

Required reaerve ; m,w.szml 529,409,297 |
Actual average reserve maintained i 568,857,086 §i 548,433,458 l
Surplys/(defict) 27,239,502 . 18,024,166
3.3.1 Statutory Liquidity Reserve (SLR)
Reguired reserve {including CRR) 1 2,003, 207,087 F 1.844.250,554 |
Actual reserve maintained (Induding CRR note -3.3.1) L zemwessias | 12,584, 7865507 |
e Lol ... 5813655136 11,780,525,968
4 Batance with other banks and financial institutions
In Bangladesh {Hote 4.1) | 11,018,065,981 }I 14, 725.958.002 |
Outside Barglagiosh = =
4.1 In Bangladesh
Current depasits 18,523,190
Short-term deposits 4,336,60055%
Frced depasits B.666,213, 712
. 11,018,065981
4.2 Maturity grouping of balance with other banks and finandial institutions
Payabie on demand 610,675,815 7.748,382,471 |
Lig'to 1 mionth £, 200,000,000 2522819.50 |
Over 1 month bit not more than 3 months B 307 350,162 7,227,480,9%2 |
Orver 3 mmoinths bat not more than & months - 1355, 946,875 |
Over & mgnths but ot mose than | year 521,323,183
Chenr % year but fot rove than 5 years -
Crepe § years pome
1 281 14,7 32
5 Stoney at call on short notice
NEC ok Lieh 1,000,800.000
Aggrant Bank Lid. 1.000,000.000
REE Bank Ltd, 100,00, 000
[@ iy Bank Bangiacesh Limited 00,000,000

L] Investments

W SECIHTES 1.658,567,002 8,241,083
Mon marketable secunties (Nate-6.1) - £4,499 500
Preferead € Share {Unicn Capaal L.} 3,006,000
HMarketable secunties (Note-6.4) 790,884,089
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3151 December 2022 31 December 2021 |
8.1 Investmant in non marketabie securities e =
. No. of shares
Bangladesh Rating Agencies Lid. 34,995 2,499,500 2,495,500 |
Pemnsuta SBC Unit Fund-1 4,000,000 40,000,000 D, 000,000
Peninsula AMCL BOBL Unit Fund-1 250,000 2500000 2,500,000 |
Energyoeins Lid, | Pre-iR0 shares) 10,000 G,500,000 4,500,000
Yanguang AML 1604 10,006,000 | 10,006 501 |
64,499,500 54,499,500
62  Investrient in marketsble securities
Markaet price |
31 Decamber 2022 e . '
Taka  soper 0 |
56,878,372 72,155,258 §1.89), 706
9,345,000 12,588,252 8,926,251
- : 8757, 240
35,302,230, 48,095,001 21,595,561
21,840,607 22,749,799 408,175
63,368,195 74,841 010 SEE9 82
26,781 BB 34,644 408 4,582,084
14,820,229 23,634,264 26:218, 108
11,920,260 12,197,798 14,521,810
144,900,000 219,742,081 210,621 841
b 2,360,244
180,104 695 201,066,017 130,414,042
154 883 76,500
43,357,540 58265107 45,748,523
5880758 6,5 L8 11,426,735
.. 524825344 790,884,089 = 599,477,592
Al investment in marketable securiies are valoed on an aGgregate portfolio basis except Mutual Funits, Mulusl Funds have Deen vatued at 85% of laten!
pubiishied NAV avaliable 35 on December 31, 2020, As 6o December 31, 2022 there was Th. 119,197,748 provision 'on fweiment in maketable ksted
secunties and Th, 23,057,098 for non markstable secunties (Bengladish Rating Agencies Lz, Primaenengy (10, Preference Share of Union Capital L1d
Vanguaid AL Grosvth Fund, Peninsia AMCL Unit Fund and SBC Periniiids Unit Pung), Marker value biag bees determinnd an the basis of the walue of
securities 8 last trading date of Decomber 3021 (tast trading date was December 29, 20073
63 Maturity grouping of investments: )
Oy demand* 770,584,089 S AESGE
Lty 1|ty . S, 500,000
Drvar | ot byt not more than 3 maoths
Cver & mortts Dot act more than § mealis - |
Over & monts bist not mixe than | yos 9,500,000 5500000 |
Ower | yasar Dot ot more than 5 vears - |
Qv 5. yoars: 1,736,566,502 2239 |
1.516,950,591 678,318,185
“Exchuding BOT 20,600,000 ivestment in DBH Mutual Fund.
7 Loans and advances
Tnside Bangladesh =4 -
Hesusing Loan 41,362, 250.523 40,881,560, 141 |
Term Loan 2840021322 2,683,734.28 |
Loan against Deposts 184,945,027 128,506,734 |
Stal? joan 141,455,477 136,683 486 |
_.54,535972.809 = 43.830.505644
Outside Bangladesh ; i
7.1 Maturity grouping of loans and advances
Reparable o demarsd 221,813 406 ZAGES, bk |
Hot riove i § montiis 2. 20,538,297 2331, 869,708 |
Ower 3 months but not more than | year £,124,455 201 RARLEIAN A |
Over | yoar Bl not more than S years 21,738,400, 868 D975660.000
Over S yoars 14,195,964,177 12,573 500, ¢
_44,535,972,8%9 A43,820,505,644
7.2 a) Loans and advances 10 ingtitutions In which directors have interest - .
B} Loans and advances B chief executive . 2
) Loans and acvances tn senior executives 34,672,429 FEBED 716 |
o} Lowans and-advances 1o austomer group: |
£ Howsing foan - nustomer 41,367,250,623 AG,881,560,141 |
) St ian-housing & others 108, 76,098 113,831,772 |
8} Loae s gnosins 184,945,007 128,526,734 |
) Term Lodn 2,840 321,322 ;e‘r\s.;‘;g_é&l
34535972899 43,830,505.644
" i H:m;';n ra:im; Beml Eetate = #:961,140.321 |
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31 December :wn][ 31 December 2021
Taka Taka |
73 Loans and advances - geographical location-wise
Insids Bangiadesh:
Urban L,
Dhaka 8,790,587,906 38,888,314, 07¢ |
Cratogram 218,357,807 217,151,504 |
Syitwet 195 985,539 204,099 17
Curilia 540,562,635 486,970,567 |
Ganpus 2076,797,218 1,693,003,594 |
i 500,537,616 332,531,045 i
Khidna 164,387,248 7,853 738 |
Rapshati 70,974,528 |
Rangput 1:,,_ 592
Outside Bangladesh:
_M_ME&_“
7.4  Details of large loans and advances '
There were no CIents Wah oulstanding amaunt and classified loans/advances exceeding 15% of total capital of the mstituficn.
75 Particulars of Loans and advances
i} Loans and advances considered good n respect of which the francial instiution s fully 44380, 122 BaB 43767623400 |
i) Lisans and advances comdidersd good agamst which the finannial institution holds no security 6.351.361 Sa}‘;&.‘:li
othar than e Jebtors personal secwrity, it iy
W3 Loan and advances considered good and secured by the personal security of one or mone 137,286,670 S'!Mﬂlﬂ'-;
parties i sdeition (o personal guarantee of detions. TR
i} Loan and advances adversely classified! for which no provision is created. ?
_.A4,535,972,899 4_.%5&@&5:!.
v} Loans and advances due by directors and officers of the financial institution o gy of therm 434 ’ 136,602 465
eithier separately Bt gty with any i 143,455,592 0,682,
vi) Loans and advances due by companies or firms in which the directore of the financial
Institution have interest as directors, partpers O MANAGING agents or i case of privale cumpanies,
as rmembers,
ity Masmum total amount of advances inckiding temporary advanies made 3t any tme dunng
the periot to divector, managers or officers of the financial estmtion or ary of thes either 143,455,927 340,396,912
separately of oty with any other perign.
vail) Maimam tital amount of advances, mcluding temporary atvances, granted dudng the penod
o compaties or fums in which the directors of the financial institution Pave interedt. as directons,
partners O Mmanagng agents oF 1 Ihe case of privite Companes as members,
) Thue Fromn other bank and financial institunons
¥} Irdormation i respact of Classified 108N and advances
) Classified loans for which interest/ peofit not credited o incame
i Increase/{decrease) of provision (spectic) (165,418,711} HE AT
i) Amount of witten off debt against fully provided debts
) Amopnt of debt recovered againgt the debt which was previously wrilten off
5 Amount of provisan kept agamst ioan cassified a5 badvioss at balence sheet date 306,518,001 251488 308
oy Aot of mierest craditable to nterest Suspense acoou 71,181,151 B0,549, 138
¥ Curmudative amount of written off oans ang advances
Tiperiinng Fatance 8,820,658 BH26.658
et writben off during the yaar #
Amount recoverad against ipans and sdvantes pravigusly wiithen off "
Batance of writien off loars and advances veL to be recoverer 8820658 L8558
The amount of wiitten off Bans, agvances and eases G which lsw sulbs Nave been filsd. Qars s QaI80EE
7.6  Classification of loans and advances
Unciassified: i
Standard (mcksfing St Loan, Loan sgdinst Deposits and Others) [ 000,433,838 u 43, 300,820, 3%
Specal mention account (SMA) 147,787, 36¢ | 253135 0%
44,151,206,200 43,533,985.471
Classified:
Suby-stancdard 70,152,435 12,005,518
Doubsthad B.096, 263 12003.5%
Bad/loss : 306,518,001 751,400,708 |
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.3a

mwmmwms
Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEO
DBH Finance PLC,

bakertilly

Base for provision Rate (%) Provision required ]
43,580,410, 159 i 435,804,102 |
48612, 2 1,892,259
134,491 5 8,724,565
Famo 11,8274 2 2,365 484
1,214,439 5 B 120
61,136,000 e 81,136,004 |
143455977 i 1,434,559 |
154 945 027 1 iB0as0 |
El. mmmg 31 December 2021
Taka Taka
Fixed assets including land, building, furniture, equipment and right-of-use asset:
Cost
Batance as of 07 January l 531,208 #ha [ S16,308, 556 |
Addtion during the year 41,6049 26,107,088 |
573,033,849 536,412,675
Disposat/ Adjustments (4,585,524 {5.180,806)
Balance as of 31 Decernber 568,448,325 531,228,869
Depreciation b
Balarce 24 of 01 January 258,647,811 226,424,538 |
Addition turing the year 49,861;986 47,830,946 |
318,509,797 274,255,584
DisposalAdiustments (4,543,852} (5,607,772}
Balance as of 31 December 313,965,945 268,647,811
Written down vahie o 258,882380  762.581058
Detaiis are stiown m annexuse A,
Other assets
Accousts receivable (Note-2.1) 125,600,497 178,902.774 |
Advances, deposits and prepayments (Note-3,2) 6,674,756 10,971,855 |
Stamzs and pay orders in hand 3,450,762 3642394
Deferred tax assets (Note-9.3) 9,623,792 27651011 |
—Ai3,349.837 " 333283095
Account receivables
Interest receivable 42,687,530 81,842,905
Dridend recevabie 10,494,882 28|
Sundry recerable 72,418,076 803,337,345 |
L .. A78,902,779

Sundry receivable intiudes seceivabile from Green
Adbvance tn employees

Advarwe to suppliers

Advance against 1PO

1
mm.mwm.num,m t

gla securities, City Bank Capita:

Prepaid expenses

Deferred tax assets
Opening balance )
Addition [{Release) during the year (Note-§.3 ay

Calculation of deferred tax assats
Carrying amount of Fixed Assets {excludiog fand and ROL Assgts)
Tax hase value of Fixed Ascets

Dedectible temporary difference

Appiicable tax rate

1) Dwferced tax assars on fixed assets

Cartying amaunt-1.oss an sale of securities

Tax base

Appliesble tax sate

il} Deferred tax assets on loss on sale of securtes
Total deferred tax assets | i+ i)

Dferded tax assets at the beginning of the year
Defertad tax income/{prpenses)
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EVP & Chiei Financial Officer
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132,668 530,250 ]
1,299,800 2,078,234 |
. H2083,030
4,470,000 ,
1023118
6,674,786

L 9,786,013 l[

! {182,271) B ?ﬁwé.ﬁlaj
9,623,791 9,766,013
206,508,868 04, 288,057
232,172,334 230,230,757

15,663,446 26,042, 7003
37.50% 37505
9,623 792 2,766,013
10% 1%
9,623,792 9,766,013
9,766,013 -
{242,223} 9,766,013

Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & GEQ
UCB Investment Limited
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10.2

10.3

1
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T e

Nasimu) Baten
Managing Director & CEQ
DBH Finance PLC,

Insich Bangladesh (Note 10.1)
Gutsigle Bangladesty

Inside Bangladesh
Secured Short-termy ipan:
Standard Charfered Bask
Citi Bank, Na

Unsecured Short-term loan:

Brac Bank L),

Hational Credit snd Commarcs Bank Ltd,
Thwe Tty Baink Lid,

Trwe Trust Bank Lid,

Divarka Bk Ltd.

Unsecured fong-term loan:
mﬁm:mm refirance]

Bank overdrafl;
Commargial Bark of Cevion PLD
Wit Bak

Pubah Bank 14,

Stamwdard Charterss Bard

TFILC Bank 3.

Call loans:
Tonvmunity Bank Bangladesh (.
Brac Bank Lir.

Uitted Commercial Bank Lo,
Jarists Bank Ui

Zero Cowupors Bond:
Zero Coupor Bond
Votal node Sangistest{g+ e ordredt)

Secured
Lirtsecursd

I:x mm" 31 December 2021 |
i Taka Taka =

11,080, 191,587

6,175,670.065

L 1,300,000 160 ” 1, 3056,000,500 |
4300000000 1,590,000,
2, 500,006,000 |
1,000,006,000 |
800,006,000
00,000,000 -
x 500,000,900
4,900,000,600 1,300,0069,000
1,239,991 060 1470263578
1,239,991,060 1,470,261,573
5,836,386 x,m,a'sa"!
143,545,227 146,642 475 |
172,950,438 8569 |
& 015,816 |
- Wt 3
291,872,011 162,375,510
60,000,000
00,000,606
. A0, 060,006
- 1100,000000 960,000,000
1,248 278,516 73053982

.~ MLOBQ18LSRT 175,673,065

f 151,872,011
o 3486,268,576

L7 375.510 |

4,473,207, 555 |

6,175,673,065

mmmumammmmgw,l a) are secured by furst charge on company’s 31 present and fisiine movable and immovable assets
inchuding ook debts ranking Pari-passi sty charges with other lenders of the company. Baik overdralt from Commercial Bank of Coylon ple aeet
wmmﬂemmauy:mn-pmmmwmnﬁm.&wﬁwmmwwmmammﬁm

Maturity grouping of borrowings from other banks, finandial institutions and agents

Payatie on demand

Upi o1 month

Dvier | et Bt within 3 monthie
Ower 3 mondhs bt within 1 yesr
Cropr | yesis bt swathin 5 yesars
Ower 5 yeare

Deposits and other accounts
Fixisel deposits (Hate: 11.1)
Ot ot

Fixed depusits

Ciprervng balivice

Ackdifion dunng the yesr

Repayment made tyring the yesr

Clasing hatance

Group-wise break-up of deposits and others accounts
Gewarnienizit

Bank

Othar westitutioens
Indiwdisis

Md. Abdul A%§

EVP & Chiel Financial Officer
DBH Finance PLC.
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ompany Secret
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1, B0 000, 000
4047, 185,076
1,348,705 B4
1,143,851 50

000, 06 B8 |
1 E e g8 |
3 kg |

2.540,358,739 |

40,060,590,590 I] 43,578, 160,429
= L
43,978.360,429 43.826.674.916
75 9L 586, 115
135,230,461, 146
91,253,100, 717
257,737,144 35,392,991 |
3,000, 008,000 850,000,000 |
17,387 994,516 16,456,814 58 I
19,414, 855,250 EL R A RER L)
; : 2

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEQ
UCE Investment Limited
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L:z December 202211 31 December 2021 |
Taka Taka !
113 Maturity analysis of deposits
5 Payabie on demand . {
Upto & month : :

) 1,04, 588 et AAa2a2 |
gz ; mw;; m almu 7,982, 194,485 9,136,457,062
et mm-m ey \-:ar 1,797,200 438 3,004,567,275
oindp e i l\;ﬂr 109,768,055 3,381,331
a0 Iﬂm £ & yoars 23?&15;5;@,”! 6L A

3t 136 SA83 735 575 ;
43,078,368,429
12 Other liabilities )
Prosssian for lans & investment (Note: 12.1) 083, 735 838 2,058,714 |
Provisian for income tax {Noke: 12.2) ﬁgffsz [;;;231;:
w m(m 123 7r184431 80,549,336
mg‘&s (_Nutg{g:)l 1,158 485, 72% L2t ara s
(hnsrwms\msmmﬂm “_‘ <125} 1,642,121 LiREB0 |
: : v 5,346,933 4107130 |
tmcizimed dividend acomnt 3,084,168 DO L =2
9

As per the BSEC directhe No. aswcmmmlmwumt.amnmamwummmmwmw Pesitinn for

Unciaime dvidend accourt DB, being a fisancil metitibon, ' requred ta

Prepare sl present Anancual statements as per DFIM Gieoutsr Ko, 11, dated 10

mmwm-smmwm, Therwlore. & ser i itewr for Unchaimed dviging Acuoant % presentect ¥t notes 1 e fnancs!
121 Provision for isans and investment

i i z,m.nss,m 3 m.sas,«;zsr

Priwision racovered for the yaar |

Provision charged/ (reksased) for the vear 331,875 %,492.785 |

by e g (58,331,875 Va2 47 ]

He aof 4y previously written off i

Chosang batance 839 14 '”_\4"":
12.1.1 General provision . L143,058,

Opening batance 345 564,357 Az EEaAE |

Charged during the L 2,140,953 H 18034918 |

Cingig balance 442,704,930 377
12.1.2 Specific provision

Spening balance 235,707 451,500, 25

Provision weitten off - el ig

Prisision recoversd during the year : <

L SRS Soain) b s vy (166,918,711) 208,253,557 |

Pre 4 longer sires) written Hack

Recoveries of amounts previously weitten off ety

Closing batance 493,817,066 660,235,777
12.1.3 # for diminuti i the value of investments

Cpening bk

Prowsn chisrged/{releassd) during the vear

Closesy Batsnoe

12.1.A Provision on loans and advances

Garmral Provesirs tharged  during the year
Sppeific Provsicar chirged Hrplesrsed) dunnd the year

1E033,915 |

L 140,553 Il :
368,418 71 1)) 208 751 %8

(163,278,158) 226,288,475
12.2  Provision for income tax
Provision o o
Opening batance 5,965,392, 054 5,893,967 857 |
Less Brcess/{Short) provisdn sdustment Do |
: 39 5,273,987,857
Add: Prosision made dunng the year 563,025.906 §81 904, 167
Ciosing balance 5,528,717,960 3,965,392,054
Advance tax
Dpmning balance 5.530,553,919 4584116 905 '
Add: Payment made during the year |
Untder Sactinn 64 and 74 of 170, 1984 629,471,514 539,956,350 |
Dextuction af source 121,770,745 106,482 G |
Cittuaes s
§,281,796,178 5,530,553,919
LEss. Adpstment during the yiar for completad fax assessmert S i
Clesivg bifance . 6,281 796,178 5,530,553,919
Mt balance 246,921,787 434,838,135
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31 December azzﬂ_ 31 December 2021 |
Taka Taka j
123  Interest suspense
Opening balance 80,549,336 || 57,668,957 |
Interest suspended during the vear (3,368.205) 22088304 |
Wintten off suspended interest durig the year ‘
Clasing balance 77,181,131 £0,549,336
12.4  Other payabies
Intarest payabrle on deposits & ioans B2B,457,657 BAL B8 |
Lease atdlivy 79,936,200 40,432,625 |
Surndey chiditnes 134,689,332 135,254 657
Unclaimed instruments 11,876,411 11,622,588 |
Payable to chents 90,419,001 LR RS
Loan under [itigation 8,022 686 19852510
Priviieged creditors 102.014,11% G, 327 573
Liability for expenses 4,504,208 #,048.320
1,190,489,725 ;,211‘515‘333
125 Calculation of deferred tax liability

Camying amoued of Fied Assets {extiuding tand)
Tax base value of Ficed Assets

l il

A} Tawatie vemgpossy difference = i
Fight-of-use: Asset -Carrying amount I 34,315,197 E B |
Right-of-use Asset -Tax base - |
Tanable remperary difference 34,315,393 44,634,635
Lease Kabilty- HOU -carying aesount L 23,936,301 g’ 40,432,825 |
Lease Babiliny-ROU-Tax hase |
Deductitde termporary difference :s,sg‘:m
B) et taxabie temparary difarence -ROU asset 4,378,988
Total taxabie wemporaty difference (A+ B} 4,378,989 4,393,570
Appicable tax rate 32.50% 750%
Totad defarred tax Gakiity l 1642101 i[ 1,576,001 |
Daferred tax labiity st the beginning of the year 1576801 | 5,057 344 |
Deferrad tax Expense/fncoma) 66,120 {4,481 947)
13 Share capital
131 Authorized capitat
199,350,000 Gedtlinary shares of Tk, 15 sach 1,59%, 500,000 1,999,500, |
5,000 Preference shares of TL. 100 sath socmj SO |
200,008,000 Orainary shares of Th. 13 each 2 i .2‘ s m_.-
_ma_ 000,000,000
13.2  Issued, subscribed, called and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares
Gpening 1,772,635,680
73,321,387 Crdinary shares of Taka 10 sach ssued a5 bonus shan
17,776,396 Ordinary shares of Toka 10 each issued as bonus share 177,263,060
_mmm_mg,
133 Capital of the Company is held by the following sharehalders — 3t zezfm i
Qrdinary shares '
m*"m" ARl 358,556,170 |
Delta Life Tnsurance Company Lid. 34,371,756 37,500 |
Gré:n Celta Insurance Company Lid, 29,34-3.8?5 M435§qy |
General shareholders 59‘37*;‘3;;9 593,790,000 |
Foreign shareholders:
General sharehiliders
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134 Break-up of Paid-up capital:
i 31 December 2022 it
Date of Isgua Bumber of Shares  Face Value Amount
11 May 1996 to 28 June 1998 2006000 160 200,000,600
12-Dec-1% 200000 109 0,090,000
5 Ape-08 500000 100 0,000,000 |
2-Dec{8 810000 100 H2,060,000 |
a9 526500 100 42,650,000 |
B-Dec-10 1609125 100 100812500 |
Zd-Hov-11 5045625 ; 1030 SO2.582 50X} |
e T 10091350 100 L&,m boo
Face Value Change (20113 106912508 10 1608 195 o |
14-Nov-12 15136875 10 151,368, /50
245 How-15 5802458 10 58,0124, 659
HeMar-19 12185184 10 101,851 #30
17-Jun-20 20105554 10 31,648 Nal
17-May 21 23124987 10 muisn
[5-May-2? [ 12726396 o 77 2k, 960 |
Total paid-up capitai —124990363 g, 1,849,903.640
nmmnu 31 December 2021 |
Taka Taka ]
13.5 Capital adequacy ratio - As per BASEL-TT
1, Tier-1 {Core Capital )
B Fully Paid-up Capital/Capital Deposited with 88 1.545,503,640 unasgaso]
1.2 Smtulory Ressrve LES4, 903,641 1,621 914,189
13 Norrrepayabie Share premivm: account 55000000 55,000,800
13 Genesal Reserve 3,325.040,000 2875,040,000 ;
15 Retained Eamings 520,152.616 $57,537,201
16 Minority irtergst in Subsliaries -
i7 Ko Eurmditive irredesnable Preferenges shares .
1.B Draiend! Equsaiization Account 250,006,000 250,050,004 |
L8 Others (if any dem approves by Bangladesn Hank) z ]
1.10  Sub-Totai (1.1 to 1.9) e 7 994,960,897 7,244,131,090
Dedusctions from Tier-1 [Core Capital M=l el e T = O o Vel B e T e =
LAt Book valie of Goodwall and value of any contingent assels which 3ee shown as assets |
8 ) mmwmmwmm
113 Shwtlail in p st m shares
118 Remawing defics on umdmna{mMMmummmmmhumaw
L15  Any investment axceeding the approvad Smit.
116 lnvestments i Subsidiaries which are not consolidated
LI7  Incresse i equity capial resulting from a secuntization exposure
118 Other (d any} ST
1.19  Sub Total {1.11-1.18) = y -
1.20  Total Eligible Tier-1 Capital (1.10-1.19) . 7,994,960,897 7,244,111,090
2 Tier-2 (Supplementary Capital) -
2.1 General Provision (Unclassified loans up to Specified Bmit = SM& + off Balance Shoet exposure) 332,745,606 3anL e |
22 Assets Revaluation Reserves up o 5% |
23 Revaluation Riserve for Securities up to 45%
24 Revaluation reserve for eguity anstrument up 86 10%
25 All other prefevence shares
26 Other (i wry Aem approved by Bangladash Bank)
.7 Sub-Total {2.1 to 2.6) 307,749,606 309,491,921
B Applicatie Deductions {if oy - .
2.8  Total Eligible Tier-2 Capital (2.7-2.8) . 307,749.606 309491971
Total capital ~—B302710,503 553,633,011
Totat risk weighted sssets 367 753,050 25,116, 989,679
Required capital based on nsk weighted assets! 1054) 2,926,775,305 2,911,638.098
Suurhiss 5,27%,475,198 4.641,904:51 1
Capeal Adeguacy Ratio:
Dn core capital 27.30% #4.88%
On actuad captal (against standacd of minimum 10%) BI% 3594
Supplementary Capital (o risk weighted assets 1.05% 1.06%
14 Share premium account
Oramary shares —— SEOG008 | E5000.008
_,,.m PRS-
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]
31 December 20221 31 December 2021 |
Taka Taka |
15 Statutory reserve
ponkeg ttaie 1,693,014,180 H TEE TR
Adc: addition during the year 200,589 452 _ 207,488 378
Closing batance 1,894 903 641 1,693,914,180
This resenve has been crasted 85 per the provision of Financial Instintion Act-1993 and Financial Institution Rules-1904
16 Other reserves
Contingency Reserve (Note 16.1) 1,275 000,000 1,275,000, 005
Emmalkem{m 16.2) 12,050,000,000 1LHOG.000,000
wmmmw(ﬂmms} 250,000,000 ewm&ml
Capital redemption reserve wm . 30,003 |
..... 040, 3;125,040,000
An amount of Tk, 90,000/- wes transfesred o £y 2014 Nmufpmf’&m “Capital redempion reserve” mmnoid preterence shaie
8 X, anghaswsmﬂmsx’}dmwm 1994
16.1 Contingency reserve
Cpening balange f 1,275,000,500 4275 065,506 |
Addt: addition during the yesr I
g e .__t.ez&mm___gm
16.2  General reserve
Spesing Galance 1.600,500.500 |i 1,300,000,508
Add: addition during the year H 38,000,06)
Closing balancs .- 20850,000000  1,600,000,000
18.3 Dividend equalization reserve .
Opesing balance 350,000,000 50,000,080 1
Add: addition daring the year ] e 1
Closing baiance 250,000,000 250,000,000
17 Business commitments and contingencies
17.1  Contingest liabilities % -
Thete & ng contingent Sability during the year t Sisciase.
17.2  Other commitments 4 5
In the nemmal course of Business, the Lempany makes Yarous commitments, contracts and disbursements. NO matenial losses are antiipited s o
result of these ransactions.
17.3  Capital expenditure itment:
#) Conitracted and inturred but not provided for i the aceourts S M
B} Approved by the Board bt act contracted for tidl
17.4  unarknowledged debts
Thie Company haémdam,Wmmwmﬁmms.wwmwasmxmmmmt
I 2022 “‘l 2021
L Yaia i Taka
18 Interest income i
Interest on lgans £877,254.710 4, 1855,008,064 |
Interest or placement wah othar banks & 58 FX deposis 743.516.885 HAR.060, 060 :
Trterest oo short tesn Swestrant 110,390 458 500,000 |
7 'Mﬂ,guigﬁ
19 Interest paid on deposits and borrewings etc.
Iterest o e isans 68,163,545 T Pa%, 75 |
Interest on deposits 246549, 402 5073425 |
Interest e short-térm Bomowing 366,138,588 302,708,189 |
Interest o overdraft 8.694,201 1204044 |
Interest on Zero Coupon Sond 125,549,452 5,435, 756
Firtarwce cost 8,561,392 3457458
Interest expense-iease 2,742,176 . ZALSES |
2,889,901 é‘_zﬁ
20 Income from investmeants
Gain/(loss} on sale of marketable securites 14,886,429 80,108,171
Dividend incomie 36,782,337 44,908, 368
Inderest on Treasury Hond 135 | 32,541

Md, Abdu‘ Ahaél é ;:

EVP & Chiel Fmancial Officer
DBH Finanee PLC.
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Nasimul Baten
Munaging Director & CEO
DBH Finance PLC,

mmmmamm
Loan fees
Cihwr charges and fees

Other operating income
Property service income
Ganon sale of Fived assets
Miscellanens income
Forfestiend Pravigent fund income

Salary and allowances

i 2022 ” [ T =1
" Taka i
L 105,017,881 [ 101991 977 |
n,sz 375 75,528,535 |
177,520,507
17,946,224 i 15,745 420
1,845,579 183,140
601,642 435 288 |
e 105080 |

20,733,765 16,469,035
377,439,782 364,346,554

Salary and showances include annwal contribution of Tk, 12615311 to DBM 5% Provident Fund and Tk 1,371,534 to DBH Employess Giatuty

Fund which are recogriset by NBR,

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity atr.

Rent, rates & taxes(Note 24.1)
Insurance

Eipctricity

Water

Disclosure related to Rent, tates and taxas
Actyal expenses
Less; Re-clasgification of rent expenses #s per IFRS-16

Legal and professional expanses
Law charges
Other professional charges

Postage, stamp, telecommunication elc.
Postage & courier service

Stamp expenzes

Telephone & intemet

Staticnery, printing, advertisements ete.
Prnting

Stationery

Pubhcity and advertisement

Managing Director’s salary and fees

Directors’ fees and expenses

Fees for attending meeting
Iincidental meeting expenses

Statutory anaial audit fees [including VAT)

Depreciation/ Amortization, repairs & maintenance
Depreciation / Amortization:

Freehoid ssgets

Rught-of-use Asset

Intangible assets

Repairs & maintenance:
vishicle

Office agudpment & premises
Computier hardware & software

Md. Abdul /
EVP & Chiel Frnancial 0'“09‘
DBH Finance PLC.
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Jashim} Uddin FCS
Company Secretary
DBH Finance PLC.
Landmark Bldg.

12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka.

23,449,275
4,555,765
7,020,003 60818 |
548,687 476,124 |
35813,730 37,625,863
50,779,579 52,816,056
. 22,320, 30w 26.310.486 ;
23,448,275 26,496,550
L 15,470,116 N 13,273,484
;‘g:g,tm 2,563,516 |

17808124 15,777,000

838, 796 623,065 |
3,741,712 750,231 |
3,846,608 | 4,299 771 |

8,428,116 8,673,069
1,557,762 1,456,100 |
2,537,569 27064,335 |
15,902,553 2,789,357 |

19,997,884 lhm“ﬁé

816,000 958,000 |

140,675 4 . longand
956,075 1,069,840

575,000 546,255
AR, 226250

154395 23,652,840
29,145,016 23015554
1,173,040 1172517 |

L2520
13,218,860
B, 584 705

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & C_ED
UCB Investment Limited
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31 Other expenses

Staff training & reCrtment axpensa
Ciffica i

Bty
Canteen expense
mewmmmm
Car fuel
Mmm
Barik charges
Revivsery prpenses
m&ﬂmﬁmmmrm
Puble reaion & AGM experse
Expenses for Islamic Wing
Outsource agency charges
frokerage
ol welfare expence

Provision for tax
Current tax

Provision for income tax

Less: Excess/(Short) provision sethastment

Beferved tax

83,789,218

[T e :
4,530,907 3398667 |

31,082,658 25.667,950
2,093,446 1,492,753 |
S20.279 Boa,077 |
1,717,388 L58%,066 |
116 i1aw |
5.553.631 5163440 |
2,808,940 | 2.307,904 r
8,215,561 561,524 |
435,500 148,460 |
769,518 [
5,176,208 %8,00 |
1,138,125 268,046 |
736,49 536,519 |
—— 35,651,883

Dmr*@mmg g

Fxpense/lincane) on tamside temporany diferences (Npte-9.3 2) 142,321 (9.766,01331
Expensei(income) on taable temporary differences {tote-17.5) 66,12 LB ABE 7y
208,341 (14,24 ?"-&g’]
Reconciliation of effective tax rate 2023 2021 =y
Taka % Taka %
Tis using the company's tax rate 592,507,502 37,509 45,391,954 37 50%
Tax-effoct of -
Ptqunfoa' nen-deductible expenses 975006 0.06% L5270 0.00%;
Adpstment/ provision releaseg CUING the year 21,032,522) 1335 TR 4, 29%
Other companents of tax as per ITO §984 (16,332,895) “E5% {30,058,495) L%
Difference ben Y G &0 tan depi L 1aLH%6 [ B4, 144 0.05%
Effective tax rate 563315906 137 40.17%
: e e o
33 Retained earnings g
Opening hatance 587,537,221 || 523,564, 368 ]
w:mmmwmmwmmamm A 725.759 1,043 885 577 |
Acumidated peafit avatanis fnr destributiin 1,614,262, 980 1,567,453,341
Less: Approprations _ .
Transferred m statutory reserve 207 488 278 |
Transferred ta penerdl rsanve 300,000, 008 |
i55ue of bonus shares for previous year 23r21287 |
mmmmwm H 213870
: 969916120
Ciosing batance 520,113,616 597,532,321
e i
34 !aumg per share
Frofit after Tax 1006108 755 1043 EaR. 023
Frofit sugiiable for ardinary shareholgan 1,016,725,759 1,043,888 573
Husmiber of shares sutstanding for calcudating basie EPS V34 990 364 Y54 95, 364
Baskc gamings per share 5.1 5358
Mo dilured earning per-share i TeGuired 16 be calculated for the year s there WRSA0 convRrtible securities for dlution dunng the yeg:
35 Met asset value (MNAV] per share
Sharetalders’ Equity 7,994 960,597 T34 13050 |
Nursbier of Share 194896, 364 104,950 354
Mmm(ﬂv}p_&rmmnnm _m 3715
35 Net operating cash fiows per shate (NOCFPS)
Het ciash from operating activities (3,830,337, muﬂ (7.938,943)]
HMumber of Shave 950, 364 194,990 364 |
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) ek 19:64) (0.04}
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37 mwuumm&mmmmmw
o
Particulars 2021  Remarks =
. Profit after tax 1,016,725,759 1,043,888,973
Pravision for income tax 563,539,247 B77,156,337 | Hon cash item
Deprecation 49,861,988 47,830,945 | Nor cash e
Provision for Loans and advances (164,278.158) 226,288,475 | Nori tash et
Provigion for other assets 2,239,804 4,107,129 | Non cash tam
Provision fer Diminution in value of investment 105,946,283 (33,795,686 Non cash tem
Interest Suspense (3,368.205) 22,868,384 | Mon cach o
Gaingloss on sale of facd assets {1,845 879} {383,190) | Now-operating tem
2C8 interest accruad 125,549,453 5,435,755 | Honcash e
Accruat for divident, LAD st intesest recesvabie 28,255,484 20,800,279 | Changes i aetrual
Accrual for expenses (16,598,306) (153,125,601} Changes i il
Purchase & sale of trading securitiss (191,408,998) (208,953, 187) | {4w)/Dec ot assars
Logns and advances (702,202.181) (1,082,426,920}| (Inc)/Dec of assets
Other Assets 32,408,011 {78.836,558); {Inc )/Dec of assats
Loan ane daposit from Baniks and Custarver (3.917,760,829} 151,485.493 | lac/(Dec) of febdies
Ciher Tabities (6,146,184) {E021,629) Inef(Dec) of Hebilves
Iigome tax pakd (751,242.2 (546,436,953
‘hmmzzﬂ 31 December 2021 |
Taka . (R
374 Cashand cash equivalents (net off overdraft) at the end of the period
1ri hang 99,7203 151,102
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and 25 agent dank 575164 807 S5, 958 430
Ealance with other banks and financial institutions 11,018,065,981 18,725 958,095
Money at call on short notice 2, TOE00,000
Bank Cheerdrait (291,572,011} (E62, 375,510}
- 14,001,458,055 _  15101,649,594
38 Dividend on ardinary shares
Proposed dividend: :
e Board of Dirstors in s wmg.mamzummnmrmmmmmm@ 15% {be. Taka L5 per ordinary stare) and stuick dividiae
@ he thmm-mwmmwmmanemmmnmmuwmwmmvamwm#wa
of the coenpany.
Foreign currency inward foutward remittance
Buting this vear n0 such transaction occurred that should be reported,
Related party transactions
Tﬁemm;myhasmmmmmmmmwmwmmmwmmdr&mmmw
Intermational Accounting Standasd-24 “Related Party Dusclosures™. The terms of related party transgetion are not significantly different fram thase
A i il iy thirdd parties. The significant 1 ek A "-‘ i ™ 5 =
Retationship Particulars i !' !m’
Delia Life Insurance Compary Limited (DLIC) Sharcholder Feikurance 3,488 B85
i siniae |
Green Delia Insurance Campany Linitec( GOICL) Shareholder m | 1,292,606 |
| Share Buy (Taka) | Share Sale (Taka) | __Balance (faka) |
196,374,667 168,188,870 5,241,761 |
6,474,836 6,423,519 17,345 |
) Interest & Principal .
wm Paid during the Bawnce (Faka) |
{ren) period {Taka)
200,000,950 17,201,369 457,316 853
- 1,340,207 IG5, 185
6,105,709 107,153,545 |
'] Divid Balance
16,000,600 La42.421 16000006
Investrnant in : Balance receivable |
of thavntutod paity Relationshi Prat share Recsived (including dividend) |
N " | (opening batsncey |  OTInG theyear asof31 Dec 2021 -
One of the Directoes of |
e ciose farmit BERTAG |
infors Capitaf Uit {65 s g 6,000,900 2,000.950 7,558 5,
Chalrman |
In the year 2022 (Jan 22 ~ Dec 22) Taks 49,236,134/~ wat pakt as saiary and slowances 1o the top S employers of the company. The amount wthudes
Shov e esmpinyiee Denefits of Taka 48,787,114/ ard post-empicyment benefits of Taks 2,449,020/
Page 34
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Nasimul Baten L
Managing Director & CEQ
DBH Finance PLC.

Chartered Avcountants

During the year under Judit, there were 266 (2021: 233)

wammnumaamwT&aEﬁmmﬁmmmw.

42. General Disclosure
4.5 m.mmmmmmmmmmuuwﬂmamnwm

employess ampieyed for the full perod and 142 {2021 105)

. : - 4
Name m“"“ Name of the Organization in dsit
which they bave interest
Green Deita Insurance Company L3, Achviser
Nasioen Hai e e e et
United Hospital (Pve) Ltd, Bieactor (Beprasenting GINC)
M dadir A, Choudhury Chairman Greer: Dettas Secutitius Lid, Chasman
Green Deita Capital Ltd, Chinseman
GO Assist L2, Chadrman 1
vice s
Dr. A M R Chowdhurg
Ly Chalrman BRAC Urinetieity Memiber, Bosd of Trustens
Ms. Mehreen Hassan, Bar-at-Law Cirecte: it Hil
Green Delta Insurance: Co. Lty Adckbonal Masaging Divector
GO Agsit Ltg. Managng Disector
M. Syed Mesnuddin abmed Director Green Delta Dragon AMC Director (Representing GOIC)
Professional Advancement Bangladesh | Director (Regresenting GDIC}
Sepllent Knif Limited Maraging Beector & CED
Mr. Khandksr Manwatul Tsiam Direcror
Hateem Groug Sweater Division CED
Mr. Nazir Rabhir Chowdhury Director M.LM. Fashion Wear Ltd, Vg Chasrmian
Ms, Rastieda K Choudhusy ! "’”“‘mm"‘ i ’fm‘wj Hhkaon Executive hractor
Major Ganeral Syeed Alved B9, (Rerg) | PORpEndent il i

Sirecton

Page 35

Md' Abdu‘ Aha§0 i g:;

EVP & Chiel Financial Officer
DBH Finance PLC.

Jashim Uddin FCS
Company Secretary
DEBH Finance PLC,
Landmark Bldg.

12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka.

-

Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & C_EO
UCB Investment Limited



ACNABIN

Chartered Accountants
42.2 Audit committes
mmmmmmmmﬁwmemm 31 December 2022;
. n Status with the Status with the £d 1 Qualification |
Saior Genara! Syeed Abmed {Hetd | indepandent Dyeetor Lharman BA (Honours, BR, sawc. g 3 i‘l
M3 Reshads K. Choudhury Independent Ditertor Member A |
M Syed Mainugdin Abmed Drrector esmbar [ |
Mr_Mohammad Anisur Rahman Divwe terr Member el |
Mr, girar Manwerul idam Dirsctor ) Merbe 2ABA |

423

42.4

ars

@ bakertity

tfming&:eﬁeﬁmfmhnmrywmmz,wmm«wwmmaﬂw)mw.

Si. No. _MeetingNo ,
1 E 28-Feb-12
2 o) 17-Apr-23
3 51 -0l 22
4 B2 6-0er-31

The Committee discussed antong others, the follswing issuss:

Bewiew a1 1 i Compliance Report,

Rewiew of the un-dudited ey financial statements and the autited financial statemants,

AL | Re-apogin of Statitory Auditors,
nmmmmmmmmmmmmwms&mﬂm

Disclasure as required by FRC

et 0o, I78/FRCAPRIZ021 72807} dated 22 Dec 2024 with further seference of DFIM iccular fc.-08 dated 17 August 2001
aaﬂm--smymmafébmm«mmmmeemmmwwmﬂmnmm:mz&.xmizl
fes corporste dients and their portfsio was Taka 27.81 crore (0.629% of the total portfoiic) only. The company disbused Taks
n.w-mwwm-imfmsmgmw(:tmmw'mm-'&'mmecwm
Auneiticty of the information of 190% of the fles thraugh the DVS system.

Comparative information

Cornparative figures have been re-arranged wh g dered 1 ary to ensure berter comparability with the current pericd
without causing any impact on the profit and value of assets and liabilities as reported In the financat statements.
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Nasimul Bates Md. Abdul Ahad, DBH Finance PLC!.{ Managing Lirector & CEO
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A
Annexure-a o z
Schedule of Fixed assets and Intangible assets: i‘.
For the year 2022 a5 >
AvoustinTekn & Y
Tost . tion " _] £ me-
z Particuiars Balance as on | Additions during | Disp gi Batance asat Balance as on | Charged for the | Adjustment on | Balance as at value as at -3 z
) % a 1 January 2022 the year the year 31 Decamber 2022 |1 1 January 2022 year disposals |31 December 2022 | 31 Becember 2022
% Lol > Furniture & fixtures 0857012 7.037.359 4,872,034 76,122,337 55,933,920 6,646 555 1,856,936 60,713,073 15,403,264
- % z Offtce Equipment. 34,089,990 2,740,209 2,046,248 34,783,951 27,947,978 2,700,650 2,645,198 28,603,430 4,180,521
E’, n e Computer 3nd computer equipments 53,589,220 3,008, 194 63,965 56,623,449 44,741,283 4,378,811 33315 48,586,670 8,0%, 576
2
8 a > Velicles 42,039, 785 14,957,757 B3,277 56,354,215 39,451,219 4,689,134 598,404 43,741,949 12,652,266
o Budging FSRAR 625 198,480,625 31,044,942 5,928,544 3,972,491 161,507,634
!'o' - Land 13,658,300 - 13,658,300 - 13,658,300
. Right of use asset 107,794,251 13825581 d 121,615,762 63,158,554 43,145,016 : 872,200,570 15192
520,605,183 41,658,980 4,585,524 557,676,639 261,773,798 48,688,946 4,543,852 305,918,892 251,759,747
Intangibie asset;
Softwace 10,623,686 146,000 : 10,769,686 5,874,013 1,173,040 . $,047,053 2,132,633
Total 2022 531,128,869 41,804,980 4,585,524 568,448,325 268,647,811 49,861,986 4,543,852 313,965,945 254,482,380
",,'3"‘09;" Schedule of Fixed and Intangible assets:
G g_ g 55 For the year 2021
3 8Smph f - Taka
= E=p . " Written down
= EE o I Particulars Balance as on | Additions during | Disposals during | Balance as st Balance ason | Charged for the | Adjustmenton |  Balance as at value as at
E"mﬁ g& L 1 January 2021 the year the yaar 31 December 2021 | 1 January 2021 year disposals |31 December 2631 | 31 December 2021
el 1] — i -
Ny ﬁ B Furituse & futures 67,571,775 3,917,009 531,862 70,957,612 43,995 445 6,465,375 527,398 55,933,372 15,021,690
= g ﬁ .(1)1 (fice Fauiprment 12,285,503 2462,114 b5#627 34,089,990 25,782,452 2,817 648 652,522 27,9479 6,142,012
o {
g <
= Computer and eomputer equipments 56,718,690 13,907 1,643,317 53,589,220 42,057,767 5,508,325 3504809 44,241,783 9,347,937
Vehigles A1,767, 205 823,580 351,000 42,049,785 3,829,174 2,073,043 350,008 39,451,219 2,588,566
o Buileting 198,480,625 196,480,625 25,115,893 5,928,549 - 3,084,442 167406, 148
= - Lang 13,658,300 13,658,900 13,658,300
e % Right of use agser 47,810,612 2,978,539 _ 187,790,251 41,692,406 23015 504 557 448 JH3,155 554 L Aa s aay
= a N, 508,292,650 17,496,339 5,183,806 520,605,183 216,673,137 46,708,434 5,607,773 261,773,798 258,831,385
@ g3 ntangible asset: '
38 Saftware 8.012.53 2610950 : 10,623,686 5,351,501 1122512 : 5,874,013 3749473
z } g = Yotal 2021 516,305,586 20,102,089 5,183,808 531,228,869 226,424,638 47,830,946 5,602,773 268,647,811 261,581,058
L =@
2 o=
ﬁ,’ m
o O
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Date of Incorporation +May 11, 1996

: Mr. Nasimul Baten

+ BDT 4,000.00 miflion

* BDT 1,949.90 million  (As on December 31, 2022)
: BDT 61,746.09 million (s on December 31, 2022)
:BDT 53,75L12million  (As on December 31, 2022)

im;ﬂ Baten
2‘:’ g it & CEO

: i . Jashim Uddin FCS el O v R S
Nasimul Baten Md. Abdul Ahad, Fca Company Secretary ) 512
Managing Director & CEO EVP & Chiei Financial Officer DBH Finance PLC. Tanzi lamgir

o — % Landmark Bldg. Managing Director & CEO
DBH Finance PLC. DBH Finance PLC. 12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka. UGB Investment Limited
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2023 Surveillance Review

DBH Finance PLC.
Major Rating Factors

Strengths mﬂmmmm@mmm
: : mmwmmmmmammnom

» BTl
“. Good e resulting into healthy Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

" Experienced and well-organized management team

Challenge/ i ho
-y / memmwﬂiimm:mmmmwmmm

. Minimal growth i loans and advances
“  Fall of net interest hmm:ﬂd

/ and advances reaching BDT 44 :
r indcating sl cau regarding the decision 1 reduse the decli o
| Ml,,‘ mmmm been observed that the real estate sector of the country

offes @ siump in the second half of FY2022 due to price hike in raw materiais,

| “finplementation of new Detailed Area Plan (DAP), shortage of dollar and inflationary

expanded branch affices outside Dhaka like in Khulna,

Rajshahi WWWWWMMWMTW, Boske, Beratnt

RO

e Nl Baien
DBH Finance PLC. "B _ Mauaging Director & CEO ™~ -
E % R 9 ING inance PLC. Page 20025

e Md . .Jashinl Uddin FCS
) U A Company Secretary ' : = aEEa
, DBH Finance PLC. Tanzim Alamgir

I‘i:mimul Baten oo

aghag Direcvat 8 7 EVP & Chief Financial Officer

Managing Directol | o s,
) DBH Finance PLC. Ild;mli%ﬂrlkh’,aldég-nb : Managing Director & CEO

L Al i JucB |nvestment Limited

pDBH Finance PLC.



memmngmm(wmma-mmmmmwmmwmzm
o.ss%mmzi.uaems,umﬂm- one of the stry's lowest NPL
mm.ﬂmmmymmmmmmoﬁmmm.mmmnw

mmm@mmzwm@mm,mmmm
(FI) holds a prominent position in the private sector of the counitry. This is evident in
its sector-wise allocation of loans and advances. Specifically, in FY2022, the housing
finance/real estate sector accounted for 93.21% of the total loans and advances,

mﬂwamwmmm,ma_mwmof
271.11%m1dt§hemvesm1emsmadmm7 2,516.95 million in FY2022. The rise in
m@msmmdﬁmnbyw-mwm government and

In FY2022, the financial institution. (FI) had a total capital (Tier-I and Tier-11) of BDT
8,302.71 million, indicating an overall increase of 9.92% compared to the previous
year. m.mmm,‘mrrsmskwaghmdmmm}ammmmam
29,267.75 milion in FY2022, up from BDT 29,116.28 million in the previous year. The
FI m_ﬁncam'adequxyrmmwmwam
adequacy ratio of 28.37% in FY2022.

+ s . ‘ e e g g e i e bl i i
DBH Finance PLC. Nasimul Bateg EMERGING Sage 3ot 25
Managing Direcior & CEO Credit Ra ting
DBH Finance PLC. s e\ Tt ;
m G eee - Jashim) Uddin FOS £ | s
Company Secretary - Alamair
Sl DBH Finance PLC, Tanzim Alamgir
Nasimul Batcn\ _ Md’ u F Landmark Bldg. Manaqirig Director & CEO
Managing Director & CEO EVP & Chief Financial Officer 12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka. UGB Investment Limited

DBH Finance PLC.

DBH Finance PLC.



Nasimul Baten
Munaging Director & CEQ
DBH Finance PLC.

million in FY2021. Furthermore, post-tax profit marginal reduction
2.60%, resulting in a post-tax profit of BDT 1,016.73 m;mmaofmozz. .

Ecm;vims'owsmmﬁsmuuemmmm housing
ﬁmmwlﬂ:gooﬁ'm_mm-mmnﬁmma&mrmemt
capital base and good asset quality compared to the industry,

mzaww:mm&cm)
_FY 31 December

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEQ
DBH Finasce PLC,
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Director &

ngir
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A. BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

A.1. Company Background

MHWHQW)MMmMMWMWM.&am
banking financial institution which speciaiizes in Housing Finance In the private sector. DBH is one of
ﬁemmmmﬁmmmwmmm=mwmmﬁomwm
mdmmwm._mmw"ismmwms NBFI which
mwmmmdmmmmmmm'mmm.

Wm-w-m-mm,zﬂ& ik

cmmhasw:omm(tmdzomm&ﬁﬂrmmm}mmemmwﬂsm

¥ Sponsor/Directors

. @ General Public

Delta Insurance Company Limited who :
ﬂz;‘em, 17.63%, and 15.30% shares of |

NBFI e /. There are 104
36,696,062 number of shares and 9,223 |

|
' wFinancial Institutions |
~ &Other Companies |

& Foreign Investors

r oA __TW__ “Nasimul Ba‘t&q e
DBH Finance RLC. ~ Managing Director & CEEMERG
m  DBH Fingnce PLCA €redit Rating K
| ; L * S iFashim Uddin BCS S e |
Nasimul Baten Company Sccrciaéy m e
asine Director & CE( ; . - DBH Finance PLC. : i
Managing Director & CEO EVP & Chief Fin | Officer [__-_|;-,;jm:1|;;Ideg, THn?lTl1?T_C‘|rro

DBH Finance PLC. DBH Finance PLC. 314 Dulcinss onaka anagig o
UCB Investment Limited




As on December 31, 2022, the total deposit
deposit market share of 9.53% in FY2021

i

portfolio of the NBFI sector was BDT 420,900.00 million
llion as per Bangladesh Bank publication. DBH had a total
which was 10.35% a year ago indicating that the FI's
the other hand, DBH's market share in terms of loans and

advances stood at 6.47% as on December 31, 2022 which was 6.53% in the same period of previous
year.

DBH's Market Share

e

WNBF |

e T SV ——

e Shareby
Loans and Advances

47%

i NBFI
W DBH

SaET

2021

(B_iﬁ' in Millions)

~2022%

697,346.70

671,618.80 |

688,600.00

437,755.60

441,200.00

425,002.00

420,900.00

44,298.40

43,446.63

4383051 |

44,535.97

43,246.49

43,038.30 |

40,060.59

B. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

l supervisory system.

The Financial Institutions Act of 1993 gives
and to manage them. Financial Institution
Bank's minimum ratio of risk-weighted

B.1.1 NBFI's Operational Arena

NBFIs play an important role in Bangladesh's

B.1. Non-Banking Financial Institutions Industry

[ offers a multitude of banking services. NBFIs
i industry by offering a wider range of goods and

Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEQ
OBH Finance PLC.

EVP & Chief Financial Officer
DBH Finance PLC.

supervised by Ban

“a i th}ﬁpm'l

DBH Finance PLC.
Landmark Bldg.

12-14 Gulshan-2, Dhaka,

institutions that do not have a banking license but
have carved out a niche in the dynamic financial
services to meet changing consumer demands that

Bangladesh Bank the authority to issue licenses to NBFIs
asset.

credits, overdrafts, etc. However, NBFIs can obtain public funds directly or
indirectly by term deposits (with a minimum of three months' maturity), commercial papers (CPs),

- Nasimul Baten
Managing Director & CEO
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across 36 districts of the country.
B.1.2. Sector-wise Investment of NBFI

NBFIs of the country have invested in various sectors of the economy. However, the investments
mm-mamdm.mwmﬁuﬁmhﬁ

Figure 3: Sector wise investment of NBFI as of June 30, 2022

Investment Pattern of NBFIs as of 30 ]
Consumer Finance Others

Nasimul Baten
Managing Ditector & CEO
DBH Finance PLC.

B.2. Performance of NBFIs

mm-mwm@mwusﬂsisevamw mmmmmmms&

indicators that are capital ; ] :
N I et adequacy, asset quality, meemntemae.w, eamings, liquidity and

B.2.1. Capital Adequacy

N‘Bﬂsod’ttwwunhyareirmmwkmmcm_ y which intends to protect
mmm.mmmmm«m?@m.wwmz
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ﬂnmmﬁswhkhwas'imeﬂﬁﬁmhmﬂaﬂsm 1 January 2012. The NBFIs are
instructed to follow Basel II accord to maintain capital il adequacy ratio (CAR) of not less than 10.00%
of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) with at least 5.00% ift core capital of the F1,

B.2.2. Asset Quality
mwmwmmmwwasmmwmnzmmmzuzzwmchmsn'r
896.6&!!10;1&#&&1&-0"2&21.&&&%% wmof*ﬂ\eﬁmmmmmbya

faster 12.86% growth as on June 2022 compared to 2021. As a result, the liabilities to asset ratio
increased to 95.6% in 2022 from 91.9% in 2021. Additionally, the total deposits of NBFIs Increased

*As of June 2022 Sk s A iase

Figure 4: Totalloan/lease and dassified oan/lease

Total loan/lease classified loan/lease

| SR il ‘ & Dice ctor & CEO

i
|
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Assets are classified as standard, special mention accounts, sub-standards, doubtful and bad/losses
where NBFIs are required to keep 1%, 5%, 20%, 50% and 100% provision respectively.

B.2.3. Earnings and Profitability

I e S o A e A 8 o it .

DBH Finance PLC. i

IR

Nasimul Baten
vlanaging Director & CEO
BH Finance PLC.

NBFIs
69 | 83 | 75 (252 (1.9} | (28) | (9.9)
1.0 1.1 10 | 26) | (0.2) | (6.2 (0.4)

mmwmmmmwmwwwmmmmm
(mi.fcmmmm,mmummmwmmmw
deposit rates. PmﬁishfustinmeNBFISatmmabmwimw_MMwmmam

of scams and irregularities In recent years which impacted on NBFIs eamings as well as profitabliity.

An FI's eamings and profitability reflect its resource management efficiency and long-term viability.
mmmmmwmm.amm'mm&mhmmam (ROA),

2021 Both of the ratios on the whole NBFT industry showed deteriorating ing results indicating declined
mmmm.mmqummmmmnmn
Figure 5: Return on Asset & Retur on Equity of NBFTs

Return on Asset & -eﬁrn "im Equﬂ:y of

10.00
5.00
0.00
-5.00 }
=10.00
-15.00
P -20.00
- ‘25.90
-30.00
s=gemReturn on equity (ROE)
~ib=Return on asset (ROA)
As at June 2022 imu aten
Source: Bangladesh Bank Annual Report (2021-2022) ﬁf:g;: lbgﬂw, & CED
B.2.4. Liquidity ‘DBH Finance PLC.
Nmmmmmmmlmwm(mw&mmmmmzmm

least 2.00% in each day) cash reserve ratio (CRR) on bi-weekly basis. The SLR for the NBFIs that do

not take term deposit is 2.50%. Due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, the CRR was lowered

?nzmmlmmﬁ%ybaﬁsaﬁﬁmnlﬂﬂ%%l.ﬂ&%m-d;&ty.has&vawmm
20,

B.2.5. Deposits & Advances

The total deposit increased by 7.62% to BOT 478.08 billion by the end of June 30, 2022 which was
BDT 444.20 bitlion in the same period of previous year. At the same time, total loan portfolio of the
lndust:ryhadalsoinc_ﬂngdmwrgzs,aubiﬁlonat&ewofmzozzﬁbmmsa&%b&mm
the end of same period last year, HﬁﬂmmmmmWWMu}m
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and irregularities lowering the image of the entities in recent years. Moreover, NBFIs started to cut
their deposit rates amid slow lending activities contributing to de-growth In deposits and excess
mumwmmmmmmmmm in December 2022 from BDT
426,000.00 million at the end of 2021. On the other hand, NBFIs’ advances increased to BDT
688,600.00 million from BDT 667,000.00 million during the same time.

B.2.6 Cost of Funds Index of NBFls

According to a guideline published in 2013, NBFIs are required to send monthly statements of hase

rate and cost of funds to BB. The weighted average Interest rate on a nonbank financial institution’s
interest-bearing liabilities is known as the cost of funds. BB creates an aggregate cost of funds index

et et oy g R 0 e S Ak it B g

Figure 6: Cost of Funds Index of NBFIs :
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==w-Cost of funds  ~me=Adjusted Cost of funds

In FY2022, mmuwm.-mmﬁmmmwﬁxus._fmﬂummmw

increased during the year. This implies tough fund accessibility as there was limited liquidity in 2022

in the industry. |
| B.2.7 Interest Spread of NBFls |

The weighted average deposit rate and weighted average rate of advances of NBFI was 7.74% and
; 8.89% consecutively as of December 2022 as per Bangladesh Banks website (Source: Statistics
; Department, Bangladesh Bank, Head Office). The interest spread thus stands at 1.15% cons

the NBFI industry as a whole.

. _ f Nasimul Bate
| C. BUSINESS RISK ANALYSIS Managn Diecto & CEO
Risk is an integral part of financing business and thus every financial institution is exposed to sk of "*"¢¢ PLC.
different type and magnitude. So, the prime responsibility of every financial institution is to manage
| its risk such that its retum from business can be maximized. As a prudent and responsibie financial
institution, the Company attaches top priority to ensuring safety and security of the finances that are
l C.1. Impact of COVID-19

A oo e S sy et
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mmwmmaimmtmmmnmdmmwmmw
obstructed by the current pandemic. The govemment of the country at various stages lengthened
vaﬂmmmnwnaﬁsofbanmmrmmmmmmhspadmgesmwpbummy
afloat. But after receiving such loan facilities, the cus wers have changed their mind to no
to repay, mmwm&mmm ;mmmwmmm
loan on time which aiso jeopardized the overall financials sector’s loan quality. This has severely
affected the collection status of the financial sector. Moreover, interest cap in the finandial sector also
squeezed the overall banking and NBFI sector’s income. Moreover, the non-performing loans might
escalate in the whole financial sector after removing the moratorium periods fully, Hence, the 2023 is
going to be challenging year for the financial sector.

C.2. mm&

ST

ﬂﬁchvirtuaﬂyaliformdae&

highermerequkadretlm and vice versa. mw&mwrpamdﬁmbemmmm
hﬁpﬁammmwm

[ C.2.1. Credit Risk Management

Tommmmmmmnwmmwmmmm
vigorous monitoring and follow up by fully dedicated recovery and collectios » strong follow up
[ Mmmﬁianmcfced&mﬂdesWWammmmmwﬁam, forme
' valuation and legal vetting on the proposed collateral by members of their own dedicated technical
and legal department , seeks legal opinion from external lawyers for any legal issues if required,
i review market situation and industry exposures regularly and obtain insurance coverage for funded
} assets. In addition to the best industry practices for assessing, identifying and measuring risks, DBH
also considers Guideline for Managing Core Risks of Financial Institutions issued by Bangladesh Bank

[ for management of risks.

C.2.2. Credit Administration Process

DBH has a strong risk management unit to address different types of risk including credit risk. A
| detailed credit administration process has been outiined by the credit risk management department
through their credit policy which was approved by The Board of Directors of the company where
major policy guidelines, growth strategy, memmwmm
| described/ stated. Credit policy is regularly updated to cope up with the changing global,
environmental and domestic scenarios,

An independent Credit Administration Department is in place, at DBH, to scrutinize all loans from risk-
| weighted point of view and assist the management in creating a high quality portfolio and maximize
i returns from assets. The Credit department assesses credit risks and suggests mitigations and

ensures that adequate security documents are in place before sanction of loan and before
I disbursement of loans. Amwmmmm«mmmm

identifies early sign of delinquencies in portfolio and takes corrective measures to mitigate risks,
improve mmmmmmdmmaﬁmmmmmm

An Internal Compliance Department has been established to ensure compliance with all intemal
‘ guidelines, Bangladesh Bank guideiines, operational procedures and adequacy of internal control and

documentation procedures.
. en
PP RCLIC I YO LA -~ SN Sk - ‘B“ 4 .CEO
: ;ﬁ‘ii'ﬁ“" c.
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C.2.3. Credit Evaluation & Approval Process

Credit Policy acts as a guideline in every step of approval process for all concemed personnel. To
mitigate credit risk, DBH search for credit reports from Credit Information Bureau (CIB) of Bangladesh
mmmsmmmwmmmmt-mmm Department to
' understand the liabliity condition and repayment behavior of the client. Depending on the reports,

Opinions are taken from the concemed related parties for better understanding about client’s credit
I To ensure both speedy service and mitigation of credit risk, the approval process is maintained

mammm.mmmmmsm--mmmwwm
m.ammmmmmwzmm,mmmmsm
mmmmmngmmmmnmmmmmmmasmmm
risk is higher hence sanctioning authority is higher as well, Performance of loans is regularly
monitored to trigger early warning system to address the loans and advances whose performance
show any deteriorating trend, It helps the company to grow Its credit portfolio with ultimate objective
of protecting the interest of the stakeholders.

C.3. Market Risk

The risk of loss arising from changes in market variables such as interest rates, security prices, equity
index levels, exchange rates, commodity prices and general credit spreads are considered to be
market risks. Since DBH is a non-banking financial institution, market risks may arise in the form of
Interest Risk: Interest rate risk is the exposure of DBH's financial condition to adverse movements
in interest rates arising from re-pricing and/ or maturity mismatches, changes in underlying rates and
| ather characteristics of assets and liabilities in the normal course of business. Capital charge for

interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk is not applicable for DBH as It does not have such balance
sheet items.

| Equityltltl::Mﬂﬁ&m_wwmmmmwmw&yofmdMImm,
mwm_'mmmowsmmmmmmwmm
diversified and within the Company’s risk appetite. ;

I At DBH, business volume risk may arise in the form of risk of falling business volumes and market
[ of over trading may lead to insufficient capital. This risk may also be considered to be a part of
market risk.

—P_

C.3.1, Market Risk Management

I ammmwmammmmmmmwmm
short-term funding, liquidity contingency plan, local regulatory compliance etc. Treasury department
manages the Market risk with the help of Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and

, Liability Management (ALM) Desk in the following manner: %
Interest and Equity Risk Management Nasi
Tmmmmm«cmmmmummmasa -

1 movements in the market interest rates. In the normal course of business, DBH tries to mini the

, mmmsmwmmwmmmmmmm

; mmrmwmmmwmww.mmmewdmmmmrmwm
company is managed and monitored from two perspectives, being an economic value perspective and

i ALCO has established guidelines in line with central bank's policy for the management of assets and
liabifities, monitoring and minimizing interest rate risks at an acceptable level. ALCO in its regular
mmm:wmmmwmmgmm.-mmmmmm
sensitive assets and rate sensitive liabllities and takes decision of enhancing or reducing the GAP
mmmwmmmmmmhwmﬁs&mmw
mwmmmmmmmmwaummtm
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continuous monitoring of the level of assured risks. DBH minimizes the equity risks by
' giversification as per investment policy of the Company.

C.4. Liquidity and Funding Risk

C.4.1. Liquidity Risk Management

mmmmmmamwmmwmmmms
WWWMWMMM&MMWW even in a
crisis scenario and for maintaining a diversity of funding sources. Treasury Division maintains liquidity
Wmmwmmanﬁdpmwngmqu ements from operations, current liquidity
positions, collections from financing, available sources of funds and risks and retums.

D. FINANCIAL RISK ANALYSIS
The financial analysis process was based on both quantitative and qualitative aspects of the

institution mostly are based on the company’s policies in relation with the operating strategies, asset

D.1. Asset Composition & Trends
Exhibit 6: Selected Indicators of DBH

FY 31 Decembe
Total Asset (BDT Million)
Asset Growth (%)

Gross Loans (BDT Million)
| Gross Loans Growth (%)
Investments Growth (%)
NPLs (BDT Million) 387
NPLs Growth (%) 39.15
| Gross Loans to Total Assets (%) L.
| NPL Ratio (%) 0.86 {0
| Net NPL Ratio (%) LA am | e
- Loan Loss Reserve Coverage (%) | 28166 41301
_NPLs to Equity & Loan Loss Reserve (%) | 424 330

7

Despite the challenging circumstances, DBH saw a slight growth in its asset portfolio during the
m_wmmmmmammwamzm;amnﬁw
61,746.09 million. i
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In FY2022, the largest portion of the overall asset base of DBH was made up of gross loans and
advances, accouinting for 72.13% of the total assets. Other contributors to the asset base included

I balances with other banks/financial institutions (17.84%), money at cafl and on short notice (4.37%),
investments (4.08%), cash (0.93%), fixed assets (0.41%), and other assets (0.24%).

I D.1.1. Asset Quality
mmmmmmmwmmmmmwm(m
mmmmmmmmmmmmmm.mam

I eWWMngﬁmnmwmummmmlm
wmnmtmmmmmmmmmmmmmamm,m
fadilitating increased business from specific target segments. Furthermore, the financial institution
(FI) experienced a slight increase of 0.5% net loan disbursement during FY2022 compared to the

I mm.m.mmmmammdwl%mmmmm,
which reached BDT 44,535.97 million in FY2022. Interesting! , the increase in the FI's asset base led

to a reduction in the concentration of gross loans within the total asset portfolio. The proportion of

| gross loans decreased to 72.13% In FY2022, down from 72,71% in FY2021, marking the lowest level
in the past four years.
In contrast, the F1 has significantly increased its investment in government securities. In FY2022, the

I investment amount in government securities reached BDT 1,658.57 million, marking a substantial
leap from BDT 8.24 million in FY2021. At the same time, the market sentiment was bullish at the

beginning of the year, which prompted the FI to make the handsome amount of investment in capital
market. Furthermore, from the second half of the year, the market was slow and the FI didn't

l increase its investment further in this segment. However, this remarkable increase resulted in a
significant growth rate of 31.93% in FY2022 compared to the previous year, ultimately leading to a

_ staggering 271.11% increase in the FI's investment segment compared to the previous year.

I he non-performing loans (NPLs) of the financial institution (FI) have experienced a substantial
m Wﬂaﬂ'y M to the noi s 1 O 1 A5es,
payment holiday by the govemment credit levy and the central bank of Bangladesh. In FY2022, the

| NPLs of the FI witnessed a significant surge of 39.15%, amounting to BDT 384,77 million, compared
to BDT 276.52 million in m.mmwmmmﬂmwma
large number of accounts in FY2020, but in FY2021, the classification policy was refaxed with limited

I def‘enalfadll_ty,ale.mHmdam.mmmmﬁothm_wm.mmmy

hit moderately hard to increase the FI's NPL during 2022. Furthermore, in FY2022, the financial
institution (FT) did not reschedule any loans and advances, while the amount of rescheduled loans
stood at BDT 61.49 million as of December 31, 2021. Notably, among the NPLs, bad/loss loans
! experienced a significant increase of 21.88%, amounting to BDT 306.52 million. This _
Nmm xé?mm summ lly to the overall NPLs in mzz, accounting for 79.66% of the total
. This raises concemns suggests that recovering from this segment prove challenging in
l &wﬁmbbﬁm&zmmm,memmmdwmm,m
doubtful loans decreased in FY2022, representing 18.23% and 2.10%, respectively, of the total NPLs

during that period.
[ Figure 7: Selected Indicators of DBH
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Consequently, the Non-Performing Loan (NPL) ratio rose from 0.63% in FY2021 to 0.86% in FY2022.
| Nevertheless, the FI maintains one of the industry's lowest NPL ratios in the country, In FY2022, the

financial institution experienced a notable increase in new Non-Performing Loans (NPL), amounting to
, BDT 155.1 million. This signifies that 40.33% of the NPL originated from new NPL In FY2022, while
r the F1 had BOT 112.90 million fresh NPL during FY2021. As of December 31, 2022, the FI had BDT
, 111.81 million worth of loans categorized under the bad/loss loan status for over 2 years. However, in

the first quarter that ended on March 31, 2023, the FI experienced a slight 0.78% decline in its loan

and advances, reaching BDT 44,190.14 million compared to the data reported on December 31, 2022.

In FY2022, DBH maintained provisions totaling BDT 1,083.73 million, surpassing the required
provision as per the audited financial statements by BDT 571.91 million. However, due to a significant
increase in Non-Performing Loans (NPL), the loan loss reserve coverage decreased to 281.66% in
FY2022 from 413.01% In FY2021. Nonetheless, this indicates that the Fl has still maintained more
than sufficient loan Joss reserves to safeguard against any deterioration in kan quality.

Figure 8: Selected Indicators of DBH
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D.1.2. Loan Diversification and Concentration

muw-mmw_wmmmmmimmwmm(%fMa
prmnmtpos&iminwmmwmmy.'msethmmmdmﬁ
loans and advances. Smdﬁmﬂr.hm& the housing finance/real estate sector accounted for

mmmwmmmmymmmmmm.
Additionally, the FI has a significant concentration of loans in the Dhaka division, indicating a lack of
geographical diversification. This concentration exposes the FI to potential risks associated with
seographical location wise 87.12% of the ioan portfolio has been distributed in Dhaka. On the other
hand 4.90%, 4.66%, 1.19%, 1.12%, 0.45%, 0.37%, 0.16% and 0.03% have been distributed in
Chattogram, Gazipur, Cumilla, Narayanganj, Sylhet, Khulna, Rajshahi and Rangpur respectively in the

financial year 2022.
R
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Figure 9: Sector-wise loans & ieases of DBH
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D.1.3. Rescheduled and Written-off Loans

Over the years, the Financial Insttution (FI) has maintained the high quality of its loans and
advances. As of December 31, 2022, the FI didnt reschedule any of its loans and advances.
WMMMW written off amounts in the past three years (FY2020, FY2021 and
D.1.4. Large Loan Exposure

As of December 31, 2022, the finandial institution's top 20 loans reached total funding of BDT 935.91
million, representing 2.10% of the gross loan portfolio. This percentage was slightly higher ec

There was no off sheet exposure of the F1 inlast two years of FY2021 and FY2022 whik the
off balance sheet exposure of the FI was BDT 632.26 million in FY2020.
D.2. Capital Adequacy
Exhibit 7: Selected Indicators of DBH
FYE: 31" December

| Tier-IRatio (%) '

ik

DBH has consistently complied with regulatory capital adequacy requirements as prescribed the
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mandated to keep a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio of 10.00%, which DBH has successfully
maintained in all the periods under review.
DBH's Tier-1 or core capital took a spike of 10.36% to BDT 7,994.96 million in FY2022 from BDT
7,244.13 million In the prior year. The upsurge in Tier-1 capital was primarily aided by issuance of
bonus share leading to increase the paid up capital by 10.00%, 11.87% increase in statutory reserve
and 15.65% increase in general reserve during the period.
Furthermore, Tier-I1 capital of the bank witnessed a slight decline of 0.56% during the same period
mainly aided by a reduction of BDT 1.74 million in general provision. Cumulatively, the total capital
(Tier-1 and Tier-II) of the bank finally ended at BDT 8,302.71 million at the end of FY2022 which was
BDT 7,553.62 miillion in the preceding financial year, recording an overall uplift of 9.92% during the
On the contrary, the risk weighted asset of the bank has witnessed an escalation of 0.52%, standing
at BDT 29,267.75 million in FY2022 against BDT 29,116.28 milion in the prior year. Since the growth
rate of total eligible regulatory capital exceeded the growth rate of total risk weighted assets, it has
led to a moderate improvement in the capital to risk weighted ratio (CRAR) to 28.37% in FY2022
mm% in the former year, which is however well above the minimum capital requirement of
Figure 10: Selected Indicators
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D.3. Funding and Liquidity
Exhibit 8: Selected Indicators of DBH
FY 31 December
Deposit (BDT Million)
Deposit Growth (%) {
Loan to Deposit (%)
Net Loans to Stable Funding Base (%) i
- Net Loans to Customer Deposits (%) i
Deposits to Total Funding (%) '
Interbank Liabilities to Total Funding (%) | -
FY2019-FY2022 data extracted from Audited Financial Statements, year eaded 31 December.
D.3.1. Fund Management
Although the deposit base of DBH has experienced slight positive growth in last financial year, it
witnessed a significant 8.91% decline in its deposit base in the latest period under review here, The
FI's total funding base stood at BDT 61,746.09 million at the end of FY2022 as opposed to BDT
60,278.61 million in the previous year. The lion share of DBH's funding base originated from its
Wmmwmumwmmm.mmmm
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accounting for 17.94%, followed by equity (12.95%) and other liabilities (4.23%).

The deposit base of the FI ended at BDT 40,060.59 million In FY2022, exhibiting a reduction of
8.91% compared to a slight rise of 0.35% in the preceding year mainly due to a fall in bank deposits
by 5,650.00 miltion in FY2022. Due to rise of the costs of bank deposits in second half of the year and
introducing new rate cap for the NBFIs, the FI reduced bank deposits portfolio to maintain
profitability as well as ensure regulatory compliance. As a result, the deposits declined by 8.91% in
FY2022 even though the public deposit basket (Individual, Govt & Others Institution) has increased in
the same year,

endency on interbank liabilities has significantly increased which
imomatedl?%%ofﬂnmlﬁmdinqbasemmpmdmmmmwmyear It has been
mmmm'swueﬁmmmmmwmwmmmm
wmwammmwammam
year,

Total funding base of DBH climbed by 2.43% and stood at BDT 61,746.09 million at the end of
. FY2022 whereas the Iinterbank liabilities witnessed a notable 79.42% uplift during the same period.
Since the growth rate of interbank liabilities surpassed the growth rate of total funding base, it has
led to a moderate upswing in the interbank liabilities to total funding ratio to 17.94% in FY2022
compared to 10.25% in the prior year,

The loan base of the FI experienced a surge of 1.61% whereas a considerable 8.91% dedine in the
deposit portfolio has been observed at the end of FY2022. As a consequence; it has resulted in a
significant escalation in the loan-to-deposit ratio which stood at 111.17% in FY2022 against 99.66%

in the previous year.
Fimn 11- Sdecbed Indicatcss of DBH
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requirement, statutory liuidity reserve (SLR) of
amwmmm(mmeu.sa%mwmmMmhemm
[ NBFIs operating in Bangladesh. DBH has been keeping its CRR and SLR in accordance with the
standards set by the Bangladesh Bank. At the end of 2022, DBH was required to maintain BDT 541.62
million and BDT 2,003.21 million in CRR and SLR respectively, while the FI kept BDT 568.86 million
i mwrnmasmmbnascmwmmmwmwmmsmmm
maﬂmnﬁmof!ﬂ?ﬂ%mlﬂimmms,aﬁﬁmﬁbnmm FY2022.

According to the FI's liquidity statement, the assets and liabilities of DBH are appropriately spread

| throughout several time horizons. The FI's various maturity buckets did not have any liquidity gaps
mwmmmmmam::_izmmmwtmﬁamsmmm
demonstrates that DBH has a strong capacity |
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obstacles. Moreover, there was an overall liquidity surplus of BDT 7,994.96 million at the end of
FY2022.

D.4. Earning Trends and Profitability
Exhibit 9: Selected Indicators of DBH
FY 31 December

Smmmm(mm) b 0 1,785.79
Net Interest Income Growth (%) {1? 47)

- Non-Interest Income (BDT Milfion) E 34884

- Non-Interest Income Growth (%) 932

- Pre-Provision Profit (BDT Million) ;ﬁ;%l?:i

Pre-Tax Profit (BDT Million)

Post-Tax Profit (BDT Mitlion)

| Cost to Income Ratio (%) . AR 2@{@
FY2019-FY2022 data extracted from Auditad mmmm,mm 31 December.

DBH has experienced a fluctuating trend in the net interest income over the previous four-year period
from FY2019 to FY2022. Interest income of the FI saw 4.40% fall in FY2022, standing at BDT

4,831.16 milion as opposed to BOT 5,053.57 million in the former year. In contrast, the interest i
expénse experienced an escalation of 5.38%, ultimately reaching BDT 3,045.38 million in FY2022 :
compared to the previous year. Since DBH witnessed a surge in interest expense compared to 3
interest income in FY2022, it has resulted in a deteriorate result in net interest income during the gL
period from BDT 2,163.67 million in FY2021 to BDT 1,785.79 miillion in F2022, |
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BOT 348.84 million at the end of FY2022. This rise in non-interest income can primarily be attribute

to 16.07% surge in income derived from investments, 3.02% increase in commission, Wm

brokerage fees and 25.90% increase in other operating income during the aforementioned period.

However, the total operating income stood at BDT 2,134.63 million, showcasing a fall of 14.02% in

FY2022, whereas 15.57% uplift in the total operating income was recorded in the previous year.
Analyzing the composition of the total operating income, it consisted of 83,66% net interest income,
8.57% commission, exchange, and brokerage fees, 6.80% investments income and the remaining
0.97% other operating income.

In contrast, the total operating costs of the FI took off moderately, experiencing an upsurge of
8.02%, ultimately reaching BDT 610.46 million in FY2022. Consequently, it has resulted in a
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moderate rise In the cost-to-income ratio, which stood at 28.60% for the year, indicating a
deterioration compared to 22.76% ratio recorded in the previous year. The heightened gmm.h

operating costs ultimately led to a substantial decline of 20.52% in pre-provision profit, which
concluded at BDT 1,524.17 miflion in FY2022 compared to BDT 1,917.65 million in FY2021.
Furthermore, the post-tax profit witnessed a marginal reduction of 2.60%, resulting in a post-tax
profit of BDT 1,016.73 million at the end of FY2022. This marks a notable decrease compared to the

significant 17.17% upswing in post-tax profit observed in the previous year.

Moreover, the average interest spread of DBH experienced a slight decrease, concluding at 2.58% in
FY2022, as opposed to the 3.58% recorded in the preceding year. The net interest margin slightly
deteriorated to 3.06% from 3.74% in the previous year meaning lower profit generation compared to
interest earning assets.

Figure 13: Selected Indicators of DBH
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E. MANAGEMENT AND OTHER QUALITATIVE FACTORS
E.1. Corporate Governance

DBH mammmmmmmmm&wm
DBH's experfenced Board maintains an overview on the Company through the Supervisory
Committees. In addition to bringing valuable perspective to the Board, DBH's independent directors
contribute "wm*g : througt ""ifn . “':” m‘“' anding 4 x m‘”#"?‘:__‘ﬂ* mlﬂmmmemmm
values of credibility and accountability to serve its stakeholders with passion and commitment. Its
values and transparent processes act as a catalyst in growth.

DBH promotes accountability of its management and the Board of Directors acknowledges its

E.1.1. Board of Directors

The Board of DBH has an optimum combination of Executive Director and Independent Directors. The
Board comprises of total ten (10) members, out of which seven (6) are Non-Executive Directors,
Chairman, vice-chairman and two (2) are Independent Directors. The Managing Director i

mm%dmmmmamsm&fwm
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moderate rise in the cost-to-income ratio, which stood at 28.60% for the year, indicating a
deterioration compared to 22.76% ratio recorded in the previous year. The heightened growth in
operating costs ultimately ied to a substantial decline of 20.52% in pre-provision profit, which
concluded at BOT 1,524.17 million in FY2022 compared to BDT 1,917.65 million in FY2021.
Furthermore, the post-tax profit witnessed a marginal reduction of 2.60%, resulting in a post-tax
profit of BDT 1,016.73 million at the end of FY2022. This marks a notable decrease compared to the
significant 17.17% upswing in post-tax profit observed in the previous year,

Moreover, the average interest spread of DBH experienced a slight decrease, concluding at 2.58% in
mn,_%wmm_a.-mmmmmmammmmm
deteriorated to 3.06% from 3.74% In the previous year meaning lower profit generation compared to
interest earning assets,

£ e
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E. MANAGEMENT AND OTHER QUALITATIVE FACTORS
DBH has a strong institutional framework to meet the régulatory requirement of Corporate Affairs.

Committees. In addition to bringing valuable perspective to the Board, DBH's independent directors
values of credibility and accountability to serve its stakeholders with passion and commitment. Its
values and transparent processes act as a catalyst in growth, :

mmwwmmwmmammm
trustworthy, transparent, moral and ethical conduct, both intemally and extemally, and are
committed towards maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance practices in the best
interest of all its stakeholders. DBH strives that all its stakeholders have an access to clear, adequate

and factual information relating to the Company,

E.1.1. Board of Directors

The Board of DBH has an optimum combination of Executive Director and Independent Directors. The
Board comprises of total ten (10) members, out of which seven (6) are Non-Executive Directors,
Chairman, vice-chairman and two (2) are Independent Directors. The Managing Director is an
Executive and ex-officio Djrector of the Board. The Board of Directors is- responsible for proper
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governance, which includes setting out company’s strategic aims, providing the necessary leadership

to implement such aims, supervising the management of the business and reporting to sharehoide!

I on their stewardship. The Board is collectively accountable to the company’s shareholders for good
governance to facilitate efficient and effective management In order to defiver shareholder value over

I m._mmmaommmww.ma.omm,w.-ammisacmqas
Advisor of Green Delta Insurance Company Limited (GDIC). He Is in the insurance profession for over
the last 50 years and was the Founding Managing Director of GDIC until his retirement in May 2013.

| He is also the Chairman of Green Defta Securities Limited, Green Delta Capital Limited & GD Assist
Lid. Mr. Choudhury is an executive committee member of the Federation of Afro-Asian Insurers &
Wm(?ﬂa}.mmiﬁmﬂmﬁemwmm&m&mmm&@m

l Shipping Corporation for decades. He was the Chairman of Bangladesh Insurance Association, the
official body of all the private sector insurance companies of the country from 2001 to 2005. He was
honored with “Lifetime Achievement Award” by The DHL-Daily Star in April 2010 for his outstanding

; contribution towards the development of the insurance industry in Bangladesh. His other notable

I awards incdude: Lifetime Achievement Award by Asia Insurance Review as the first Bangladeshi
Insurer, Mother Teresa International Award for contributions as a Social Worker, Honesty Award by
Campus and Golden Award by Jalalabad Association.

I E.1.2. Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four (4) times a year, once in every 3 (three) months, inter-alia, to discuss

l and review the financial results, business policies, strategies etc. The maximum interval between two
Board meetings is not more than 3 months. Additional Board Meetings are held by the Company as
mmmmmmwmm_mmghtmmm.m,mmmwm
or an urgent matter, approval of the Board is sought through resolution by circulation, which is noted

I in the subsequent Board Meeting. The Company circulates the Board/Committee Meeting agenda and
related notes/documents well in advance which provides for quick and easy accessibility. During
2022, a total of nine (09) Board meetings were heid.

I E.1.3. Board of Directors Committees

The Board of Directors have constituted two committees namely ~ Audit Committee and Executive
I Committee which enables the Board to deal with specific areas or activities that need a closer review
and to have an appropriate structure to assist in the discharge of their duties and responsibilities.
I mmmammm-mmwfwmm.mw
Secretary acts as a Secretary to all the Committees of the Board.

l Executive Committee (EC):

The Executive Committee of the Board is authorized to review all the proposals of loans and advances

above authority delegated to the Managing Director & CEO with an upper limit of BDT 20.00 million.
l The Executive Committee was last reconstituted December 2, 2022 and the members are: Ms.

Mehreen Hassan as its Chairperson, Dr. A M R Chowdhury, Mr. Nazir Rahim Chowdhury and Mr.

N&MW,%WM&@Q.AWI&W(M)WN&@MW
I were held in FY2022.

Audit Committee (AC):

The Audit Committee consist of 5 (five) members: Major General Syeed Ahmed, BP, awc, psc (Retd.)
' as the Chairman, followed by Mr. Syed Moinuddin Ahmed, Ms. Rasheda K. Choudhury, Mr.
mmmmme.mmmwmmmmmmmﬁmm

mmmmmmmmmmmm&mammm
Head of Internal Audit concurrently reports to the Managing Director & CEO as well as to the Audit
I_ may be called, if required. During the period under review, 4 (four) meetings were held by the Audit
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E.2. Senior Management
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the Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Nasimul m.msmmmmﬁm
mmmwhﬁemwmmrnmmmmﬁmmmm.ﬁempmm«mas
m-mmmmm&mwdmmmammasmmm Director of DBH
from July 1, 2020 to 31,m,mmmmmwm

E.3. Human Resource Management

mmamummmemmmmnmhummmWsmwmweMas
human capital that provides future benefits. Humanammmmﬁngistzupim«mmm
mmmmaammmmmmmmmmm '
that its best investment is in the human resources, as the Company trusts that human resource is the
mmMMWsmmmmmmmm.&MWmms %
mmc#&hqm-hdnsdﬂ‘mmﬂmmmmiBMdmm&wm
mww-mmmm motivate and '

are male and 49 are female

101 employees has
nmmmathmimw&mmmmmmmm:m ]
mﬁonandemdmtsewhewms{mw&m.mmm«-mmmmw\aswds ‘
as introduction of diverse product range In DBH, ICT infrastructure and systems are being
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (AS ON DECEMBER 31, 2022)

Board of Directors . Status
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PABX : 09612 334455, (02) 9842374
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mﬁ has assigned AAAg (Pronounced as Triple A
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v, liquidity
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here on referred to as 'DBH' or 'the FI),

¢ mmmwmwwmm
assets of the Issuer to be shared pari passu with other

Themmseaect .m&mﬂmm&smwwm
| management, one of the lowest Non-Performing
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.mw However, mnmmm
tion #n housing finance indicating lack of diversification, minimal
e in net interest income.

Non-Convertible Redeemabie Fixed Coupon Senior Bond of
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ordable housing to lgwe e income group. Tha total face value of the
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business from specific target segments. This effort resulted In a slight incréase of
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8,302.71 miflion, indicating an overall increase of 9.92% compared to the previous
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K As on December 31, Qaeml portfolio of the NBFI sector
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_wmm million as.per Bangladesh Bank publication. DBH had a total
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Ratic of 10.00%, which DBH has successfully
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Furthermore, Tier-II aofmeﬁf

i iy m'wmaggz% during the

Onlmeunttarv mmm@m wﬁwmmmafm standing at
BDT 29,267.75 million in FY2022 against BDT 29,116.28 million in the prior year. Since the growth
rate of total eligible regulatory capital exceeded the growth rate of total risk weighted assets, it has
led to @ moderate improvement in the ¢ :m&mm(m)wmsmmwm
mzs%%mmmwwm hmmeﬁam&amwmummmﬁrmtm‘

10.00%.
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sition at d of the year of 2022 despite the tier-I capital
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slightly lowering from 28.37% in FY2022 and the risk weighted assets in the first half of FY2023
increased slightly compared to FY2022.
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- Chalienges triggered by global events, the financial institution (FI)
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i xpansion of 1.61% in the FT's loan portfolio
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H market. Furthermore, from the second half
increase its investment further in this Se
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- the FI had BDT 112.90 fresh NPL during FY2021. As of December 31, 2022, the FI had BDT
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5] ' st income of the FI saw 4.40% fall in FY2022, standing at BOT
4;831 16 -million a5 o) to BDT E,053.57 million in the former yesr. In contrast, the -interest

expense experienced an escalation of SB%NWWMBETBMMWMQWM
- compared to the previous . Since DBH wi
-interest income in FY2022 m == :
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- 8.02%, ultimately reaching BDT 610.46 million in FY2022. Consequently, it has resulted in a
% ?ise in the costto-income ratio, which stood at 28.60% for the year, indicating a
2 - 'mmmmm The heightened growth in
of 20.52% in pre-provision profit, which
= ed to BDT 1,917.65 million in FY2021.
& a mal reduction of 2.60%, resulting in a post-tax
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C. MARKET RISK ANALYSIS
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& in market prices. It arises due to change in different market variables like interest rate, exchange
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C.1. Interest Rate Risk .
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D.2. Market Risk
" mmﬁmmﬁammm‘ et variables such as interest rates, security prices, equity
! index levels, exchange rates, commodity prices and general credit spreads are considered to be
market risks. Since DBH is @ non-banking financial institution, market risks may arise in the form of
0 mmmmdeqtﬂ? ﬂskma}rﬂy
0 wﬂpmamapmmfm
& sk is not applicable for DBH as it does not have such balance
. mmm&%wmﬁmmwmmdmm
ai {'s' credit policy ensures that exposures are sufficiently
e e ﬂa@ﬂ risk of falling business volumes and market
H on and risk of over trading which may affect
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é
aimhg to mitigate Intaemst rate rkﬁ&. Conuaaﬂv's treasury
manages and controls g activities under the supervision of ALCO that ensures
o ' rlﬁ:s DBH minimizes the equity risks by portfolio
~n
i ents include the liquidity and
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wards maintaining t st standards of Corporate Governance practices in the best
! interest of all its stakeholders. DBH strive: MaﬂbmmMmmm adequate
and factual information relating to the
a9 E.,m,mwm *
A The Board of DBH tmwmmmmﬁnaﬁ%af Fxecutive :
Board comprises of total {xﬁ)mmwﬁmm(s)mﬁm-&mm
i Chairman, vice-chairman and m___g;)m ndependent Directors, The Mamg%ng Director is an
s mmmmmﬁm
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on their stewardship. The.
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Advisor of Green Delta Insurance CWWM(GDIC) He is in the insurance profession for over
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i He is also the of Green Delta Securi thzw Green Delta Capital Limited & GD Assist
Ltd. Mr. Choudhury i mmmmmm dﬁe&dmm&mmnlw&
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™ : ) Banglades
Insurer, Mother Teresa Intetnational Av@nifnr contributions as a Social Worker, Honesty Award by
- Campus and Golden Award by Jalalabad Association
E.1.2, Board Meetings } 1
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| and review the financial results, _
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g in the subsequent Board Meeting. mmammmmmamm
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related notes/documents well in advange which provides for quick and easy accessibility. During
B 2022, a total of nine (m)wsmﬁmgm__m
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E.1.3. Board of Directors Commi
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- 55 namely — Audit Committee and Executive
wmmmw%m@w@ fic areas or activities that need a closer review
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™ handie and resolve matters expediently. Minutes of the Committee Meetings are circulated and placed

4 before the Board of Directors in the subsequent Board Meeting for their noting. The Company
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B The strategic management ac
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- company where he serv :
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" ~Bank, IFC, ADB, FMO and other reputed local and international
3t 63 m . _' team for DBH's next phase of growth as
mmmmmwwmmwm He joined DBH in early
o 1998 and since then he | anaged almost all funcﬁonai areas covering b&m operations, risk
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mil as Head of Credit, Mof W d Affordable

_ tanaging risks on an enterprise-wide basis, Wlfyﬁ'ieadequacy of the risk
management function indﬂ&wg ensuring that it is sufficiently resourced to monitor risk by the various
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. g ' mﬁmw&meW&WMWMm@mmue
: m employees of the FI are 344 including 295
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' ' Active Directory, mm%mmm
: owsmmmmmw@ﬁm%ﬂm Central Patch management system for all
o~ workstations has also been impleme DBH considers Cyber security as a big risk and so have

- wmmmﬁ&m ity & risk management which is regularly monitored. ICT
security policy has also been updated as per regulator’s guideline.
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